(\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS, AND
WATER RESOURCES
COMMITTEE MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CALIFORNIA

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 8, 2017
9:45 A.M.

Or immediately following the
Community & Legislative Affairs
Committee Meeting

CALL TO ORDER

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board;
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise
authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code. Those persons wishing to
address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to complete and
submit to the Board Secretary a “Request to Speak” form which is available on the table in the Board
Room. Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker. Thank you.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous
vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action
came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted.

1. ACTION ITEMS

* Tecom
e Committee will be asked to approve the Engineering, Operations, and
Water Resources Committee meeting minutes from the February 8, 2017.



Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee
March 8, 2017

Page 2

A 2
- - - -

It is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Amend and increase the not-to-exceed amount of Contract No.
4600001868 to Superior Electric Motor Service, Inc. to provide
repair, rebuild, or refurbishment services of rotating machinery for a
total aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $440,000 over the existing
three-year period with a one-year option to extend,;

2. Amend and increase the not-to-exceed amount of Contract No.
4600001864 to Vaughan’s Industrial Repair, Inc. to provide repair,
rebuild, or refurbishment services of rotating machinery for a total
aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $390,000 over the existing
three-year period with a one-year option to extend; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts.

1. Approve the amendment to the Energy Management Services
Agreement between Inland Empire Utilities Agency and Advanced
Microgrid Solutions, Inc. (AMS); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to finalize and execute the
agreement amendment subject to non-substantive changes.

D. [PROGRAM—ENVIRONMENTAL—IMPACT—REPORT—{(PEIR)

"‘CERTIFICATION AND ADOPTION OF PLANNING DOCUMENTS
it is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2017-3-1, certifying the Final Program
Environmental Impact Report as complete; and

2. Approve IEUA’s Asset Management Plan (FY 2015/16), Recycled
Water Program Strategy (2015), Amendment to the 2010 Recharge
Master Plan Update (2013), Wastewater Facilities Master Plan
Update Report (2015), Integrated Water Resources Plan (2015), and
Energy Management Plan (2015).

IS recommende atthe ]

1. Award a three-year contract amendment to UtiliQuest, LLC, for dig
alert locating services for a not-to-exceed amount of $440,000; and



Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee
March 8, 2017

Page 3

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment.

F. RP=1CONSULTANT TASK-ORDER - AMENDMENTADISINFECTION)
Ttis recommended that the Committee/Board: '

1. Approve the consultant task order amendment for the RP-1
Disinfection Improvements, Project No. EN11039, to Carollo
Engineers, Inc., for the not-to-exceed amount of $398,324; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the amendment.

1. Award a design-build contract for the RP-1 Dewatering Building
Safety Improvements and RP-1 Vertical Conveyor Housing
Replacement, Project Nos. EN17047 & EN17048 respectively, to

Baghouse & Industrial Sheet Metal Services, Inc., in the amount of
$392,800; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the design-build contract.

H. = =
Tt is recommended that the Committee/Boara:

1. Award a design-build contract for the RP-1 Iron Sponges
Installation, Project No. EN17059, to W.A. Rasic in the amount of
$319,900;

2. Approve a total project budget amendment in the amount of
$200,000 for Project No. EN17059; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the design-build contract
and budget amendment.

= Tindings of the

2. INFORMATION ITEM

A. [OPERATHONSBIVISION-UPBATEAPOWERPOINT

B.  EHINOBASIN STORAGE PEIR-ADDENDUM (WRITTEN),




Engineering, Operations, & Water Resources Committee
March 8, 2017
Page 4

RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS

C.

1)

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS

4. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

6. ADJOURN

*A Municipal Water District

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary (909-993-1736), 48 hours prior to the scheduled

meeting so that the Agency can make reasonable arrangements.
Proofed by: 52 %
DECLARATION OF POSTING

1, April Woodruff, Board Secretary of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency A Municipal Water District, hereby certify that a copy of the
enda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. in the foyer at the Agency's main office, 6075 Kimball Ave., Building A, Chino, CA on Thursday,

rch 2, 201/%\\

Apn ruff \




Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee

ACTION
ITEM

1A



{\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

MINUTES

ENGINEERING, OPERATIONS, AND WATER RESOURCES
COMMITTEE MEETING
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CA

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2017
11:00 A.M.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Michael Camacho, Chair
Kati Parker

STAFF PRESENT
Chris Berch, Executive Manager of Engineering/AGM
Christina Valencia, Chief Financial Officer/AGM
Randy Lee, Executive Manager of Operations/AGM
Jerry Burke, Deputy Manager of Engineering
Nel Groenveld, Manager of Laboratories
Nasrin Maleki, Senior Engineer
Jason Marseilles, Senior Engineer
Jason Pivovaroff, Senior Engineer
Jesse Pompa, Senior Engineer
Craig Proctor, Source Control/Environmental Resources Supervisor
Shaun Stone, Manager of Engineering
Al VanBreukelen, Deputy Manager of Maintenance
April Woodruff, Board Secretary/Office Manager

OTHERS PRESENT
None

The meeting was called to order at 11:00 a.m. There were no public comments received or additions
to the agenda.

ACTION ITEMS
The Committee:

¢ Approved the Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Management Committee meeting
minutes of January 11, 2017.

¢ Recommended that the Board:

1. Approve a three-year blanket purchase agreement Contract No. 4600002251
to Downs Energy for the supply and delivery of diesel fuel with a three-year
blanket purchase agreement, for a not-to-exceed amount of $100,000 to
various Agency locations, through December 31, 2019; and

2. Authorize the Manager of Contracts and Procurement to issue a blanket



Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Management Committee
February 8, 2017

Page 2

purchase agreement;

as a Consent Calendar ltem on the February 15, 2017 Board meeting agenda.

¢ Recommended that the Board:

1.

Award Master Service Contracts (Nos. 4600002275 through 4600002282) to
the firms identified below for a two-year contract (two-year with two, one-year
options to extend) to provide professional engineering and financial services
for the development of water resources and the Integrated Water Resources
Plan;

No. 4600002275 to Arcadis U.S., Inc.

No. 4600002276 to CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc.

No. 4600002277 to Carollo Engineers, Inc.

No. 4600002280 to Kennedy/Jenks Consultants

No. 4600002278 to Thomas Harder & Co., Inc.

No. 4600002282 to Daniel B. Stephens & Associates. Inc.
No. 4600002281 to INTERA Incorporated

No. 4600002279 to Michael Baker International

Increase the General Manager’s authority set by Ordinance 101 to approve
and execute task orders in the amount of not-to-exceed $250,000 for services
rendered under this project;

Authorize the Master Service Contracts of not-to-exceed $3,000,000; and

Authorize the General Manager to approve, subject to not-substantive
changes, and execute the Master Service Contracts.

as a Consent Item on the February 15, 2017 Board meeting agenda.

6 Recommended that the Board:

1.

Approve the agreement amendment with Santa Ana Watershed Project
Authority to extend the temporary Brine Line connection to March 2020;

Approve the agreement amendment with Chino Development Corporation,
Chino Preserve Development Corporation, and Chino Holding Company to
extend the temporary Brine Line connection to March 2020;

Approve the agreement amendment with the City of Chino to extend the
permanent sewer facilities development guarantee to March 2020; and

Authorize the General Manager to execute the agreement amendments
subject to non-substantive changes.

as a Consent Item on the February 15, 2017 Board meeting agenda.



Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Management Committee
February 8, 2017

Page 3
¢ Recommended that the Board:

1. Award a design-build contract for the RP-2 Microturbine Installation Project
No. EN17065, to Geveden Industrial in the amount of $1,876,809;

2. Approve a ten-year service agreement with Cal Microturbine in the amount of
$752,460 for Project No. EN17065;

3. Approve a total project budget in the amount of $2,210,000 and FY budget in
the amount of $850,000 for Project No. EN17065; and

4. Authorize the General Manager to execute the budget amendment and the

construction contract and maintenance service agreement subject to non-
substantive changes.

1. Approve the consultant contract amendment for additional design efforts for
the RP-1 Improvements, Project No. EN14019 to RMC Water and
Environment for the not-to-exceed amount of $68,204; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the amendment;

as an Action ltem on the February 15, 2017 Board meeting agenda.

¢ Recommended that the Board:

1. Award a construction contract for the RP-4 Disinfection Facility Improvements,
Project No. EN14018, to W.A. Rasic in the amount of $1,839,400;

2. Approve a total project budget amendment in the amount of $284,400 for
Project No. EN14018; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract and
budget amendment;

as a Consent ltem on the February 15, 2017 Board meeting agenda.

6 Recommend that the Board:

1. Award a consulting engineering services contract for the RP-1 Primary Effluent
Conveyance Improvements, Project No. EN15012, to Stantec for the not-to-
exceed amount of $461,483; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the consulting engineering services
contract;

as a Consent Item on the February 15, 2017 Board meeting agenda.

6 Recommended that the Board:

1. Approve the consultant contract amendment for additional design efforts for the
RP-1 Power System Upgrades, Project No. EN13048 to Tetra Tech Inc., for the
not-to-exceed amount of $205,825; and



Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Management Committee
February 8, 2017
Page 4
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the amendment.
as a Consent ltem on the February 15, 2017 Board meeting agenda.

¢ Recommended that the Board:

1. Award a construction contract for the CCWRF Valve Replacement, Project No.
EN17051, to Ferreira Construction Co., in the amount of $178,809; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.

as a Consent ltem on the February 15, 2017 Board meeting agenda.

INFORMATION ITEMS
The following information items were presented or received and filed by the Committee:

Regional Pretreatment Program Local Limits Update
Laboratory Semi-Annual Update

RP-5 Expansion Design Contract Update

Engineering and Construction Management Project Update

o o & &

GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS
There were no General Manager’'s comments.

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS
There were no Committee Member comments.

COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
There were no Committee Member requested future agenda items.
With no further business, Director Camacho adjourned the meeting at 11:46 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

April Woodruff
Board Secretary/Office Manager

*A Municipal Water District

APPROVED: MARCH 8, 2017



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee

ACTION
ITEM

1B



(\\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 15, 2017

To: The Honorable Board of Directors

Through: Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee (3/8/17)
From: P. Joseph Grindstaff

General Manager

Submitted by: Randy Lee B[/
Executive Manager of Operations/Assistant General Manager

Albert VanBreukelen p|_ 0 AL
Deputy Manager of Maintenance

Subject: Amendment to Contracts for Agency-Wide Contract Services of Rotating
Machinery
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Amend and increase the not-to-exceed amount of Contract No. 4600001868 to Superior
Electric Motor Service, Inc. to provide repair, rebuild, or refurbishment services of rotating
machinery for a total aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $440,000 over the existing three-
year period with a one-year option to extend;

2. Amend and increase the not-to exceed amount of Contract No. 4600001864 to Vaughan’s
Industrial Repair, Inc. to provide repair, rebuild, or refurbishment services of rotating
machinery for a total aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $390,000 over the existing three-
year period with a one-year option to extend; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contracts.

BACKGROUND

The Agency has rotating equipment such as pumps, blowers, gearboxes, compressors, mixers, etc.
that periodically require major overhaul. After a formal solicitation process, two contracts were
established; Contract No. 4600001864 with Vaughan’s Industrial Repair, Inc. for a not-to-exceed
amount of $240,000, and Contract No. 4600001868 with Superior Electric Motor Service, Inc., for a



Amendment to Contracts for Agency-Wide Contract Services of Rotating Machinery
March 15, 2017
Page 2 of 2

not-to exceed amount of $240,000. Both contracts were established for a three-year period with a
one-year option to extend.

Since the initiation of both contracts, the Agency has utilized both service contracts extensively due
to unplanned major equipment repairs; €.g., the Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) influent
and drain pumps, Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP-4) and Carbon Canyon Water Recycling
Facility (CCWRF) mixed liquor pumps, the Roots blowers, and gas mixers at Regional Water
Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1). Due to these major repairs, expenditures on both contracts require
amendments to the not-to-exceed limits for the remainder of the contract terms, to ensure necessary
repairs to major equipment as negotiated under the current contract terms. The expenses encumbered
to date for Vaughan’s Industrial Repairs, Inc. is $230,000 and $163,000 to Superior Electric Motor
Service, Inc.

The awards of these amendments align with the fiscal responsibility of the Agency and the goal of
cost containment of the operating costs.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On May 20, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the award of Contract No. 4600001868 to
Superior Electric Motor Service, Inc. for a total aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $240,000 and
Contract No. 4600001864 to Vaughan’s Industrial Repair, Inc. for a total aggregate not-to-exceed
amount of $240,000 to provide repair, rebuild, or refurbishment services of rotating machinery over
a three-year period with a one year option to extend.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

If approved, sufficient funds are available in Fiscal Years 2016/17 and 2017/18 Regional Operations
and Maintenance (RO), Recycled Water (WC), and Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (NC) Funds,
Professional Fees and Services Budget, to support the contract services related to the repair, rebuild,
and refurbishments of rotating machinery.

G: /Board-Rec/2017/17065 Amendment to Contracts for Agency-Wide Contract Services for the Repair, Rebuild, or
Refurbishment of Rotating Machinery, 3-15-17



—

%:

i Inland Empire

ARMENDMENT NUMBER 460000i868-001
TO
MASTER COMTRACT NUMBER 4600001868
__FORPROVISIONOF
AS-NEEDED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT REPAIR SERVICES

THIS AMENDMENT, Number 460001868-001, to Contract Number 46000018648 between the Inland
Empire Utilities Agency and Superior Electric Motor Service, Inc., of Los Angeles, California, for as-needed
provision of mechanical equipment repair services, revises the Contract as follows:

Within the last paragraph of Article 6, PAYMENT, INVOICING AND COMPENSATION, replace the existing
call-out of this Contract's “total-aggregate price not-to-exceed $240,000.00" with the superseding call-out of
“total aggregate price not-to-exceed $440,000.00.” (This action represents a $200,000.00 incremental
increase to the not-to-exceed price limit of this Contract.)

¢

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF CONTRACT NUMBER 4600001868 REMAIN UNCHANGED.

Aé evidenced by the signatures that follow, the Parties hereto mutually agree and covenant as to the above-

stated amendment item(s) and in doing so designate this Amendment to become an integral part of the
Contract Documents.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY, SUPERIOR ELECTRIC MOTOR SERVICE, Inc :
A Municipal Water District:

Y 47 Y2417
P. Joseph Grindstaff (Date) Chris Marachelian (Date)
General Manager Vice President
AMENDMENT No. 4600001868-001 Page 1

rh



inland Empire

# " UTILITIES AGENCY

ANMENDRMENT NUNMBER 4600001864-001
TO
MASTER CONTRACT NUMBER 4600001854
FOR PROVISION OF
AS-NEEDED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT REPAIR SERVICES

THIS AMENDMENT, Number 460001864-001, to Contract Number 4600001864 between the inland Empire
Utilities Agency and Vaughan's industrial Repair Company, Inc., of Paramount, California, for as-needed
provision of mechanical equipment repair services, revises the Contract as follows:

Within the last paragraph of Ariicle 6, PAYMENT, INVOICING AND COMPENSATION, replace the existing
call-out of this Contract's “total aggregate price not-to-exceed $240,000.00" with the superseding call-out of
“total aggregate price not-to-exceed $390,000.00.” (This action represents a $150,000.00 incremental
increase to the not-to-exceed price limit of this Contract.)

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF CONTRACT NUMBER 4600001864 REMAIN UNCHANGED.

As evidenced by the signatures that follow, the Parties hereto mutually agree and covenant as to the above-

stated amendment item(s) and in doing so designate this Amendment to become an integral part of the
Contract Documents.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY, VAUGAHN’S INDUSTRIAL REPAIR Co. :
A Municipal Water District:

P. Joseph Grindstaff (Dawen Vaughan - é (Date)

General Manager Vice President

ARENDMENT No. 4600001864-001 Page 1
rh




Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee

ACTION
ITEM

1C



( \% Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 15,2017

To: The Honorable Board of Directors

Through: Engineering, Operations and Water Resources Committee (3/8/2017)
From: P. Joseph Grindst

General Manager

Submitted by: I@(Chris Berch K

Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager

i

Y
Sylvie Lee Ug/
Manager of Planning & Environmental Resources
Subject: Energy Storage Agreement Amendment
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1.  Approve the amendment to the Energy Management Services Agreement between Inland
Empire Utilities Agency and Advanced Microgrid Solutions, Inc. (AMS); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to finalize and execute the agreement amendment subject to
non-substantive changes.

BACKGROUND

On October 14, 2015, IEUA entered into a 10-year agreement with AMS for the installation,
operation, and maintenance of 3.65 Mega Watts (MW) of energy storage at several treatments plants.
The battery will efficiently integrate IEUA’s renewable generation facilities, improve energy load
management, and provide cost savings by shifting electricity use away from expensive peak hours.
The project, currently under construction, will be implemented at no cost to IEUA,; in exchange, IEUA
will provide AMS monthly payments for the energy management services. Since the estimated
savings is expected to be greater than the monthly payments for the existing contract, AMS provided
a minimum net savings assurance to IEUA of $55,000 per year for 10 years.

The existing agreement anticipates additional third party agreements, and the use of the energy storage
for other opportunities (referred to as market products), such as demand response, wholesale energy



Energy Storage Services Agreement
March 15, 2017
Page 2 of 3

sales, generation of capacity credits, and installation of solar photovoltaic systems to increase the
overall project revenues. All third-party agreements must be approved by both parties prior to
execution; benefits will be assessed, negotiated, and distributed between AMS and IEUA on a case-
by-case basis.

In October 2016, AMS proposed that IEUA share with Shell IEUA’s energy service provider of
electricity for RP-1, RP-2, and CCWRF) 1 MW of the 3.65 MW of energy storage capacity.
Subsequent to IEUA’s approval, Shell would have operational rights of the battery system through

AMS, up to 400 hours per year for 10 years, and would pay AMS up to $90,000 per year based on the
battery’s performance.

Shell’s project rights will not interfere with the IEUA’s existing minimum savings of $55,000 per
year; furthermore, IEUA would receive from AMS 30% of the maximum payment from Shell, which
is equivalent to an additional $27,000 per year. Hence, staff recommends amending the existing
agreement between AMS and IEUA to allow AMS to trade energy storage capacity with Shell. In
exchange to sharing the savings with IEUA, the existing agreement with Shell for the purchase of
electricity will be extended for three years; this term is consistent with the current Shell contract, main
difference being that the current contract is extended year to year for another three years.

IEUA’s General Counsel and Financial Consultant, Public Financial Management, Inc., reviewed the

proposed agreement and provided comments that were incorporated into the final agreement
amendment language.

The project meets IEUA’s adopted Business goals for Wastewater Management by optimizing
renewable resources, containing future energy costs, and progressing toward peak power
independence with the proposed Energy Management strategy.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On May 18, 2016, the Board of Directors approved the electricity amendment with Shell Energy North
America (SENA) US, L.P. through December 31, 2016, to purchase 1.5 megawatts (MW) of
electricity per hour at a variable rate, and authorized the General Manager to finalize and execute the
amended agreements, and negotiate further amendments for up to three additional years.

On October 14, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Energy Storage Services Agreement
between [EUA and AMS.

On August 19, 2015, the Board of Directors approved a revised MOU between IEUA and AMS fora
Master Lease and Energy Services Agreement that was substantially different than the February 2015
MOU.

On February 18, 2015, the Board of Directors approved a Memorandum of Understanding MOU)
between IEUA and AMS for a Master Lease and Energy Services Agreement.

G:\Board-Rec\2017\17063 Energy Storage Agreement Amendment 20170315



Energy Storage Services Agreement
March 15,2017
Page 3 of 3

IMPACT ON BUDGET

If approved, IEUA will realize additional savings of up to $27,000 per year for 10 years from AMS
for energy load management through the batteries.

Attachment:
1. First Amendment to Energy Management Services Agreement

G:\Board-Rec\2017\17063 Energy Storage Agreement Amendment 20170315



FIRST AMENDMENT TO ENERGY MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO ENERGY MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT (“First
Amendment™) is made as of this day of , 2017 (“Effective Date™), by and between
ADVANCED MICROGRID SOLUTIONS, INC., a Delaware corporation (“Provider”), and INLAND
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY, a municipal water district (“Host Customer™), with reference to the
following facts:

RECITALS

A. Host Customer and Provider are parties to those certain Special Terms and Conditions of
Energy Management Services Agreement, dated October 14, 2015 (“Original Special Conditions™),
which incorporate by reference those certain General Terms and Conditions of Energy Management
Services Agreement, dated October 14, 2015 (the “Original General Conditions” and together with the
other schedules and exhibits attached thereto and to the Original Special Conditions, the “Original
Agreement,” and as amended by this First Amendment, the “Agreement”™). Capitalized terms used in
this First Amendment, and not otherwise defined herein, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the
Original Agreement,

B. Pursuant to Section 18.3 of the Original General Conditions, Host Customer and Provider
desire to amend the Original Agreement as set forth herein.

AGREEMENT

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Host
Customer and Provider hereby amend the Original Agreement as follows:

1. Shell Utility Services Agreement. Prior to the date hereof, Provider has entered into a
Utility Services Agreement (as applicable to the Project Sites, the “Shell Utility Services Agreement™)
with Shell Energy North America (US), L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (“Shell™), to sell and provide
certain Market Products to Shell. In accordance with the last sentence of Recital C of the Original Special
Conditions and Section 5.4 of the Original General Conditions, Provider and Host Customer agree to the
following:

1.I.  Subject to Section 1.2 below, within thirty (30) days following actual receipt of
payment in full from Shell under the Shell Utility Services Agreement for any calendar month, Provider
shall pay Host Customer a monthly amount (the “Monthly Shell Market Products Payment™) equal to
thirty percent (30%) of the revenue actually received by Provider from the sale of Market Products under
the Sheli Utility Services Agreement. Provider shall include the Monthly Shell Market Products Payment
on the monthly invoices it provides to Host Customer under the Agreement, and shall have the right to
deduct the Monthly Shell Market Products Payment from amounts otherwise owed by Host Customer to
Provider. The Monthly Shell Market Products Payment shall be subject to proration, reduction, and
adjustment as a result of the items, events, and circumstances identified in clauses (a) through (i) of
Section 2 of Schedule 4 attached to the Original Special Conditions.

1.2, With respect to the Monthly Shell Market Products Payment, the Parties
acknowledge and agree to the following: (a) no Monthly Shell Market Products Payment shall be made
until Provider commences delivery of the Market Products to Shell under the Shell Utility Services
Agreement, which will not occur until the occurrence of the Completion Date for a sufficient number (as
reasonably determined by Provider) of Energy Storage Systems under the Agreement, (b) Provider’s



obligation to pay the Monthly Shell Market Products Payment shall be subject to actual receipt by
Provider of all amounts owed by Shell under the Shell Utility Services Agreement for such calendar
month, with the amount of each such payment itemized and detailed in monthly statements by Provider to
Host Customer , and (c) if, from time to time, for any reason the Shell Utility Services Agreement and/or
the Agreement is suspended, terminated and/or expires, in whole or in part (including a termination of the
Agreement with respect to individual Project Sites identified on Schedule 6 of the Original Specific
Conditions) such that Provider is no longer able to satisfy its obligations under the Shell Utility Services
Agreement and/or is no longer receiving payment from Shell under the Shell Utility Services Agreement,
then, in each case, Provider’s obligation to pay the Monthly Shell Market Products Payment shall
likewise be suspended, terminated, or expired.

2. Miscellaneous. The terms of this First Amendment shall supersede and control to the
extent of any conflicts or inconsistencies with the Original Agreement. The recitals set forth in the
beginning of this First Amendment are incorporated herein as part of this First Amendment for all
purposes. This First Amendment may be signed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
considered an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. This
First Amendment may be duly executed by a Party, and delivered to the other Party, by electronic
delivery of a “pdf™ counterpart to this First Amendment.

[Signatures On Following Page)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Host Customer and Provider have caused this First Amendment to be
executed as of the date first above written.

Provider:

ADVANCED MICROGRID SOLUTIONS, INC.,

a Delaware corporation
By: @ ﬁ —i

Name: _ SUSo P, E.ﬁ{lll@;l. D
Chigt ExCruhvt OFfcer

Title:

Host Customer:

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY,
a municipal water district

By:
Name:
Title:




Energy Storage Agreement
Amendment

(‘ Inland Empire Utilities Agency Pietro Cambiaso
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT MarCh 20 1 7



Energy Management Service Agreement

- R

« 2015: Contract with Advanced Microgrid Solutions (AMS)
* 10-year term

« 3.65 Mega Watts (MW) of energy storage

* No capital cost to IEUA

« Net guaranteed savings $55,000/year

« RP-5 installation complete

L\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency
‘ IcY

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIC



Public-Private Partnership

- R

IEUA




AMS - Shell Master Agreement

1 MW energy storage project rights to Shell

* Performance: <400 hrs/yr of load management
Shell pays max $90,000/yr to AMS

10-year term

(\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUN 1

UNICIPAL WATER DISTRICY




Energy Management Service Agreement

mencnent

IEUA and AMS agree 1 MW project rights to Shell
AMS pays max $27,000/yr to IEUA

10-year term

Does not affect current contract

L\ Infand Empire Utilities Agency
A ‘ ]

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICTY




IEUA — Shell Amendment

- ——R

e Current contract:

— Provides energy to RP-1, RP-2, CCWRF

— Annually renewed contract (max three years)
Proposal: 3-year term

Consistent with current contract
Term for savings: 10 years IEUA

(\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT



Recommendation

—

1. Approve the amendment to the Energy Management
Services Agreement between Inland Empire Utilities
Aggncy and Advanced Microgrid Solutions, Inc. (AMS);
an

2. Authorize the General Manager to finalize and execute the
agreement amendment subject to non-substantive
changes.

The amendment of the Energy Management Services Agreement between IEUA and AMS is

consistent with IEUA’s business goal for Wastewater Management by optimizing renewable

resources, containing future energy costs, and progressing toward peak power independence
with the proposed Energy Management strategy.

(\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT



Engineering, Operations, and Water Resources Committee

ACTION
ITEM

1D



(\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 15, 2017
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Engineering, Operations and Water Resources Committee (3/8/2017)

/
. Joseph Grindstaff

“General Manager

From: HX

Submitted by: Chris Berch gé
' Executive ager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager

Sylvie Lee !E}G
Manager of ing and Environmental Resources

Subject: Program Environmental Impact Report (PEIR) Certification and Adoption of
Planning Documents

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2017-3-1, certifying the Final Program Environmental Impact Report
as complete; and

2. Approve IEUA’s Asset Management Plan (FY 2015/16), Recycled Water Program Strategy
(2015), Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (2013), Wastewater Facilities
Master Plan Update Report (2015), Integrated Water Resources Plan (2015), and Energy
Management Plan (2015).

BACKGROUND

Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA), as the Lead Agency pursuant to CEQA, is proposing to
implement a program that includes updates and new Facilities Master Plans (FMP), which encompass
IEUA’s Asset Management Plan (FY 2015/16), Recycled Water Program Strategy (2015),
Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (2013), Wastewater Facilities Master Plan
Update Report (2015), Integrated Water Resources Plan (2015), and Energy Management Plan
(2015). The activities that would be implemented within these individual FMP and Capital
Improvement Plan (FY 2016/17) would provide for future wastewater treatment, biosolids handling,
recycled water, and reliable and sustainable energy infrastructure to support these activities within
the IEUA service area.



PEIR Certification and Adoption of Planning Documents
March 15, 2017
Page 2 of 4

This Program Environmental Impact Report (PEIR) serves as a first-tier environmental document
that focuses on the overall effects of implementing the activities that make up the FMP. Many of the
projects that make up the FMP are in the concept development or planning phase and all would take
place within the IEUA service area, largely in the vicinity of IEUA’s existing assets. The
implementation of the facilities proposed within the FMP consists of construction, operation, and
maintenance. These potential facilities are separated into three project categories: treatment facility
upgrades, conveyance systems and ancillary facilities, and groundwater recharge and extraction.

The environmental evaluation includes a project analysis and a cumulative analysis for potential
impacts related to construction and operation of the proposed facilities before and after the
implementation of mitigation measures in accordance with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines.

The potentially significant and unavoidable impacts associated with the FMP are to air quality as a
result of construction equipment emissions, changes to historical resources as a result of ground
disturbance during construction of FMP projects, noise impacts associated with construction of
proposed FMP projects, and secondary effects of growth. Impact to aesthetics, agriculture and forest
resources, biological resources, geology soils and mineral resources, hazards and hazardous
materials, hydrology and water quality, land use and planning, population and housing, public
services, recreation, traffic and transportation, and utilities are less than significant when mitigation
measures are implemented.

Three alternatives (no project, reduced groundwater recharge, expanded advanced water treatment
facility) were selected for a detailed analysis using a combination of projects that would avoid or
lessen the significant environmental effects, while effectively meeting IEUA’s goals. The proposed
program would implement necessary improvements to minimize the need for imported water, while
maximizing the efficiency of wastewater treatment, local water supply augmentation, energy
efficiency, and asset maintenance. Upgrading aging infrastructure provides for greater operating
efficiency that reduces the risk of spills, malfunctions, and air emissions associated with treatment
facilities and energy production. As a result, the proposed program is the environmentally superior
alternative since it provides for the careful planning and timed implementation of necessary public
services while minimizing environmental impacts.

The environmental analysis of the six planning documents started in August 2015. An Initial Study
and Notice of Preparation (NOP) of a PEIR were distributed on June 24, 2016, for public comments.
A scoping meeting was held at IEUA’s headquarter on July 21, 2016, to receive additional input on
potential environmental issues. Comments from these solicitations were compiled into a draft PEIR
that was circulated on December 20, 2016, for public review. The draft PEIR was distributed to over
76 interested parties for comment, a public meeting on the draft PEIR was held on January 25, 2016,
and the closing date for final written comments was February 2, 2016.

IEUA received comment letters on the draft PEIR from the Department of Toxic Substances Control,
the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, the City of Rancho Cucamonga, the City of
Ontario, Chino Basin Watermaster, the City of Chino, the San Bernardino County Department of
Public Works, the Cucamonga Valley Water District, and the Native American Heritage Commission.
Tom Dodson and Associates, Environmental Science Associates (ESA), and IEUA staff prepared

G:\Board-Rec\2017\17064 Adoption of PEIR for IEUA Planning Documents 20170315



PEIR Certification and Adoption of Planning Documents
March 15, 2017
Page 3 of 4

responses to all comments received. These responses were provided to the interested parties and were
included into the final Program Environmental Impact Report.

The Facts, Findings, and Statement of Overriding Considerations for the PEIR discuss all significant
adverse impact and the benefits related to implementing the proposed projects and programs included
in the new Facilities Master Plans. As the Lead Agency under the CEQA guidelines, the Board’s

adoption of these Facts, Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations for the final PEIR is
required.

The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program embodies the results of the PEIR, and the
comments from the review by concerned parties, representing the framework under which the many
projects of the FMP may go forward with more limited environmental review in the future. As the
Lead Agency under the CEQA guidelines, the Board of Directors is required to adopt the Mitigation,
Monitoring, and Reporting Program.

The certification of the PEIR is the final action by the Board of Directors prior to approval of the
FMP for IEUA implementation. Certification of the PEIR reflects the Board’s approval of the effort
to fairly present the environmental effects of the projects of the FMP, the reason for such projects,
the benefits to future wastewater treatment, biosolids handling, local and regional water supplies,
recycled water, and reliable and sustainable energy infrastructure.

Certification also indicates that the Board, after due consideration of the mitigation measures, agrees
that all negative impacts are likely to be reduced to a level of less than significant impact, except air
quality, changes to historical resources, noise impacts, and secondary effects of growth. In the specific
case of the PEIR, wherein a Statement of Overriding Consideration was developed, certification
indicates that the Board concurs with the fact and findings regarding a negative impact that could not
be mitigated to a level of less than significant. Resolution No. 2017-3-1 incorporates the Fact,
Findings, and Statement of Overriding Consideration by reference. Adoption of Resolution No. 2017-
3-1 by the Board will serve as the certification of the final FMP PEIR.

The proposed certification of the final PEIR, and approval of IEUA’s Facilities Master Plans is
consistent with the Agency’s business goal of Environmental Stewardship and Regulatory
Compliance, as approved by the Board of Directors in December 2016.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On February 17, 2016, the Board of Directors concurred with the proposed initiatives and findings as
outlined in the Energy Management Plan.

On November 4, 2015, the Board of Directors and the Regional Policy Committee developed a
consensus in support of the water supply strategies for the Integrated Water Resources Plan.

On August 19, 2015, the Board of Directors awarded a professional service contract for the
preparation of a PEIR to Tom Dodson and Associates for a not-to-exceed amount of $330,000.

G:\Board-Rec\2017\17064 Adoption of PEIR for IEUA Planning Documents 20170315



PEIR Certification and Adoption of Planning Documents
March 15, 2017
Page 4 of 4

On July 15, 2015, the Board of Directors concurred with the findings of the Wastewater Facilities

Master Plan.

On June 17, 2015, the Board of Directors concurred with the findings of the recycled water program

as outlined in the Recycled Water Program Strategy.

On October 16, 2013, the Board of Directors approved the 2013 Amendment to the 2010 Chino Basin
Recharge Master Plan Update and adopted Resolution No. 2013-10-1, adopting the 2013 Amendment

to the 2010 Chino Basin Recharge Master Plan Update.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

None.

Attachments:

Resolution No. 2017-3-1
Program Environmental Impact Report document can be found at:
https://www.ieua.org/category/reports/

“Energy Management Plan (EMP)” Board letter (2/17/2016)

“Integrated Water Resources Plan” Board letter (11/4/2015)

“Wastewater Facilities Master Plan” Board letter (7/15/2015)

“Recycled Water Program Strategy” Board letter (6/17/2015)

“Approval of 2013 Chino Basin Recharge Master Plan Update” Board letter (10/16/2013)

G:\Board-Rec\2017\17064 Adoption of PEIR for IEUA Planning Documents 20170315



RESOLUTION NO.2017-3-1

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY CERTIFYING THE FINAL PROGRAM
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE  ASSET
MANAGEMENT PLAN (FY 2015/16), RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM
STRATEGY (2015), AMENDMENT TO THE 2010 RECHARGE MASTER
PLAN UPDATE (2013), WASTEWATER FACILITIES MASTER PLAN
UPDATE REPORT (2015), INTEGRATED WATER RESOURCES PLAN
(2015) AND ENERGY MANAGEMENT PLAN (2015) (COLLECTIVELY
FACILITIES MASTER PLANS) AND ADOPTION OF FINDINGS AND
STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS

Whereas, the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) of 1970, as amended,
requires that prior to approval of any project, the Lead Agency shall consider the potential
impacts and effects of said project, consider alternatives to the project, and identify
mitigation measures necessary to reduce or eliminate the impact of the project on the
environment;

Whereas, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) is the Lead Agency for the
Facilities Master Plans (FMP) and has caused to be prepared a Program Environmental
Impact Report (PEIR) for the Facilities Master Plans in accordance with CEQA and its
implementing guidelines;

Whereas, IEUA prepared and circulated a Notice of Preparation (NOP) to the
public, responsible agencies and other interested parties for their review and comment,
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15082;

Whereas, pursuant to comments received on the scope and content of the PEIR in
response to the NOP document, IEUA prepared and circulated a draft PEIR assessing the
project's environmental impact for public review;

Whereas, IEUA issued the Notice of Completion for the draft PEIR on December
20, 2016 and the draft PEIR was available for public review and comment from December
20,2016 through February 2, 2017;

Whereas, IEUA received 10 letters with comments and concerns regarding the content
of the draft PEIR for the Facilities Master Plans;

Whereas, the PEIR determined that the majority of potential adverse
environmental impacts are less than significant with or without mitigation, including the
following: aesthetics, agriculture and forest resources, biological resources, geology soils
and mineral resources, hazards and hazardous materials, hydrology and water quality, land
use planning, population and housing, public services, recreation, traffic and
transportation, utilities;



Resolution No. 2017-3-1
Page 2 of 4

Whereas, the PEIR identified significant and unavoidable environmental impact

relating to air quality and greenhouse gas emissions, cultural resources, noise, and secondary
effects of growth;

Whereas, IEUA provided a copy of the Responses to Comments to all Responsible
Agencies on March 1, 2017, in accordance with CEQA;

Whereas, the Final Master Plan PEIR will be available for use as the base
environmental document by any Responsible Agency proceeding to implement future site-

specific projects under the Master Plan in accordance with programmatic procedures outlined in
the State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162 and 15168;

Whereas, the IEUA Board has received and has reviewed the Final Master Plan PEIR,
consisting of the draft PEIR, all Responses to Comments, the Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program, Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations, and all other
material in the administrative record; and

Whereas, pursuant to duly given public notice, the IEUA Board has held a full and fair
public hearing on March 15, 2017 concerning the Facilities Master Plans and the PEIR and has
considered all written and oral comments and testimony relating thereto and is fully advised
thereon.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED BY
THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. A full and fair public hearing having been held on the PEIR prepared in
connection with the Facilities Master Plans, as stated in the recitals herein, the IEUA hereby
approves and certifies the PEIR for the Asset Management Plan (FY 2015/16), Recycled Water
Program Strategy (2015), Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (2013),
Wastewater Facilities Master Plan (2015), Integrated Water Resources Plan (2015) and Energy
Management Plan (2015) (collectively Facilities Master Plans) before the IEUA Board at this
time which incorporates the written comments incorporated herein by reference, and all as more
fully described in the Final Master Plan PEIR, and adopts the Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program and Facts, Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations.

[EUA further finds that all changes or alterations have been required in connection with
the adoption of the Facilities Master Plans and have been incorporated in conjunction with the
Master Plans which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effects identified
in the PEIR.

Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081, IEUA further finds that where the
responsibility for implementation of mitigation measures has been assigned to participating
agencies, such mitigation measures are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of such
other agencies and such changes can and should be adopted by such agencies when they
carry out future site-specific projects under the Facilities Master Plan.



Resolution No. 2017-3-1
Page 3 of 4

Section 2. IEUA hereby authorizes and directs the filing and posting of a Notice of
Determination as required by Section 21152 of the Public Resources Code, the filing
required pursuant to Section 21089 (b) of the Public Resources Code, and CEQA Guidelines
section 15094 by the General Manager with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of San
Bernardino County and the State Clearinghouse, Governor's Office of Planning and
Research, as soon as possible after the adoption of this Resolution.

Section 3. IEUA hereby adopts the mitigation measures recommended as conditions
of project approval in Table ES-1, Chapter 3 and Responses to Comments of the Final
Facilities Master Plan PEIR, and the Mitigation Monitoringand Reporting Program prepared
for the purpose of monitoring the changes which have been adopted or made a condition of
project approval as described in Section 1 of this Resolution and all as more fully described
in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program.

Section 4. IEUA hereby adopts the Asset Management Plan (FY 2015/16),
Recycled Water Program Strategy (2015), Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan
Update (2013), Wastewater Facilities Master Plan (2015), Integrated Water Resources Plan
(2015) and Energy Management Plan (2015) (collectively Facilities Master Plans) as the
guidance document for preparation of the Ten-Year Capital Improvement Program.

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption

ADOPTED, this 15 day of March, 2017.

President of the Inland Empire Utilities
Agency and of the Board of Directors
thereof

ATTEST:

Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency and of the Board of
Directors thereof.



Resolution No. 2017-3-1

Page 4 of 4
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)SS
COUNTY OF )

SAN BERNARDINO

I, Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities
Agency , DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2017-3-1, was
adopted at an adjourned regular Board Meeting on March 15, 2017, of said Agency by the

following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland
Empire Utilities Agency* and of
the Board of Directors thereof

(SEAL)



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

CEQA Requirements

Section 15091(d) and Section 15097 of the CEQA Guidelines require a public agency to adopt a
program for monitoring or reporting on the changes it has required in the project or conditions of
approval to substantially lessen significant environmental effects. This Mitigation, Monitoring
and Reporting Program (MMRP) summarizes the mitigation commitments identified in the IEUA
Facilities Master Plans (proposed Program; FMP) Program EIR (State Clearinghouse No.
2016061064). Mitigation measures are presented in the same order as they occur in the Final
PEIR.

The columns in the MMRP table provide the following information:

e Mitigation Measure(s): The action(s) that will be taken to reduce the impact to a less-
than-significant level.

e Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action: The appropriate steps to
implement and document compliance with the mitigation measures.

e Responsibility: The agency or private entity responsible for ensuring implementation of
the mitigation measure. However, until the mitigation measures are completed, IEUA, as
the CEQA Lead Agency, remains responsible for ensuring that implementation of the
mitigation measures occur in accordance with the MMRP (CEQA Guidelines, Section
15097(a)).

e Monitoring Schedule: The general schedule for conducting each task, either prior to
construction, during construction and/or after construction.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans 11-1 ESA / 150283.07
Final PEIR February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 11-1

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

Aesthetics -

AES-1: Proposed facilities shall be designed in accordance with local design standards
and integrated with local surroundings. Landscaping shall be installed in conformance
with local landscaping design guidelines as appropriate to screen views of new facilities
and to integrate facilities with surrounding areas.

e Include mitigation measure in project design
specifications.

e  Ensure design specifications are included in
construction contractor specifications.

» Retain copies of design and contractor specifications in
project files.

e  Perform site inspections to verify contractor
compliance. Retain inspection records in the project
file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before Construction

AES-2: All new permanent exterior lighting associated with proposed project
components shall be shielded and directed downward to avoid any light intrusion to
surrounding uses. The maximum light allowed beyond the property boundary adjacent to
sensitive light receptors shall be limited to 1.5 candles.

e Include mitigation measure in project design
specifications.

o  Ensure design specifications are included in
construction contractor specifications.

e Retain copies of design and contractor specifications in
project files.

e  Perform site inspections to verify contractor
compliance. Retain inspection records in the project
file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before, During and
After Construction

AES-3: Development of the proposed project and associated facilities shall comply with
existing and future lighting ordinances.

e include mitigation measure in project design
specifications.

e Ensure design specifications are included in
construction contractor specifications.

e Retain copies of design and contractor specifications in
project files.

»  Perform site inspections to verify contractor
compliance. Retain inspection records in the project
file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before, During and
After Construction

IEUA Facilities Master Plans
Final PEIR

ESA / 150283.07
February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 11-1

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

AES-4: Structures with large facades shall not include highly reflective building ¢ Include mitigation measure in project design IEUA; Before Construction
materials. specifications. Construction
e  Ensure design specifications are included in Contractor
construction contractor specifications.
e Retain copies of design and contractor specifications in
project files.
 Perform site inspections to verify contractor
compliance. Retain inspection records in the project
file.
Agriculture and Forestry Resources
AG-1: Where an ancillary facility is proposed on land designated as Prime Farmland, e Retain copies of specifications in project files. IEUA Before Construction
Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance, the improvement shall be e Conduct a California Land Evaluation and Assessment and After Construction
relocated to urban land or non-important Farmland. Alternatively, if important farmland (LESA) Model
must be utilized for an ancillary facility, then IEUA shall conduct a California Land
Evaluation and Assessment (LESA) Model. If the evaluation determines the loss of
designated Farmland is significant, then it shall be offset by acquisition of agricultural
land conservation credits at a minimum ratio of 1:1.
Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions
AQ-1: The following measures shall be incorporated to minimize emissions of NOxand |, |ncjude mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA; Before and During
VOC associated with construction activities for the proposed facilities: specifications = Construction
. Construction activities shall require the use of 2010 and newer diesel haul trucks ) o o Construction
(e.g., material delivery trucks and soil import/export) to the extent feasible. Under e Retain copies of contractor specifications in project Contractor
conditions where it is determined that 2010 model year or newer diesel trucks are files.
not readily available or obtainable for a project, the implementing party shall be e Perform site inspections to verify contractor
required to provide this evidence to IEUA and shall instead use trucks that meet compliance. Retain inspection records in the project
USEPA 2007 model year NOx emissions requirements. file.
- Off-road diesel-powered construction equipment greater than 50 horsepower shall
meet Tier 3 emissions standards at a minimum and Tier 4 where available. Under
conditions where it is determined that equipment meeting Tier 4 emission standards
are not readily available or obtainable for a project, the implementing party shall be
required to provide this evidence to IEUA and shall instead use USEPA Tier 3
equipment.
910{2: For each individual FMP project, IEUA shall require by contract specifications o Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA: Before and During
at: ifications. i Construction
. Construction-related equipment, including heavy-duty equipment, motor vehicles, Spec_' |cat|o.ns o ] Construction
and portable equipment, shall be turned off when not in use to avoid excessive . F\’Ietaln copies of contractor specifications in project Contractor
idling. les.
. Construction operations shall minimize use of diesel-powered generators and rely e  Perform site inspections to verify contractor
on the electricity infrastructure where feasible. compliance. Retain inspection records in the project
IEUA Facilities Master Plans 11-3 ESA/ 150283.07
February 2017

Final PEIR



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 111

Mitigation Measures Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action Responsibility Monitoring Schedule
«  Construction trucks shall be routed away from congested streets or sensitive file.
receptor areas where feasible.

AQ-3: Unpaved roads on the project site used for any vehicular travel are required tobe | «  Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA; Before and During
watered by water trucks at least four times per eight hour workday or otherwise sufficient specifications. Construction Construction
to reduce fugitive dust (PM10 and PM2.5) emissions consistent with Rule 403. o Retain copies of contractor specifications in project Contractor

files.

e  Perform site inspections to verify contractor

compliance. Retain inspection records in the project

file.
AQ-4: Prior to the construction upgrades at each treatment facility, IEUA would be e Retain copies of the Odor Impact Minimization Plan in IEUA After Construction
required to prepare an Odor Impact Minimization Plan (OIMP), pursuant to Title 14, the project file.
California Codg of Reg}xlatlons Sec_tlon 17863.4. The OIMP provuqes op_eratlon_al ) o Perform site inspections to verify regular maintenance
protocols covering the implementation of the odor control system including during varied compliance
meteorological conditions. The OIMP would include complaint response protocol, j o .
operating procedures, and an odor monitoring program. A complaint response protocol *  Retain records in the project file.
would be implemented to receive complaints, investigate the source, and implement
changes to minimize the odors.
Biological Resources
BIO-1: Construction of the proposed improvements should avoid, where possible, e Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA; Before and During
special status natural communities and other vegetation communities that provide specifications. Construction Construction
suitable habitat for a special-status species known to occur within the IEUA Service o Retain copies of the survey(s) in the project file. Contractor
Area. If construction within potentially suitable habitat must occur, a presence/absence . )
survey of any special-status plant or wildiife species must be determined prior to = Prepare reports to document any species relocation
construction, to determine if the habitat supports any special-status species. If special- activities, and retain such reports in the project file.
status species, including listed species, are determined to occupy any portion of a
project site, avoidance and minimization measures such as temporary fencing,
inspection of trenches and holes for entrapped wildlife each morning prior to the onset of
project construction, inspection of pipes, culverts, and similar construction material for
entrapped wildlife, and the prohibition of chemical uses shall be incorporated into the
construction phase of the proposed improvement to avoid direct or incidental take of a
listed species to the greatest extent feasible.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans 11-4  EsA/15028307
Final PEIR February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 111

Mitigation Measures Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action Responsibility Monitoring Schedule
BIO-2: If direct or incidental take of a listed species is unavoidable, consultation with the | ¢  Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA Before, During and
resources agencies and/or additional permitting may be required. Agency consultation specifications. After Construction
through the QDFW 2081 a_nd USFWS Sectior_'n 7 or S_ection 1A0 permitting processes must | | Retain copies of correspondence with CDFW and
take place prior to any action that may result in the direct or incidental take of a listed USFWS in proi
5 . L " L - ; . project file.
species. Specific mitigation measures for direct or incidental impacts to a listed species
will be determined on a case-by-case basis through agency consultation but shall Prepare reports to document any avoidance or
include the following or comparable mitigation: restoration of habitat to comparable value compensation measures, and retain such reports in the
as existed prior to disturbance; compensation for take or habitat loss through conserving project file.
suitable habitat in perpetuity off site; or participating in a habitat mitigation bank
approved by the resource agency(ies). At a minimum |EUA will provide compensation at
a 1:1 ratio for direct or indirect loss of habitat that supports listed species, except when
regulatory agencies assign a higher compensation ratio on a case-by-case basis.
BlO-3a: Prior to the start of construction of facilities, focused burrowing owl surveys shall | ¢  Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA; Before Construction
be conducted to determine the presence/absence of burrowing owl adjacent to the specifications. Construction
g.rojec.t area. The chused burrowing owl survey must be conducted by a qualified o Retain copies of the Burrowing Owl survey reports in Contractor
iologist and following the survey guidelines included in the CDFW Staff Report on the project file
Burrowing Owl Mitigation (2012). If burrowing owl is observed within undeveloped habitat ’
within or immediately adjacent to the project impact area, avoidance/minimization e Prepare reports to document any passive relocation
measures would be required such as establishing a suitable buffer around the nest program, and retain such reports in the project file.
(typically 500-feet) and monitoring during construction, or delaying construction until after
the nest is no longer active and the burrowing owls have left. However, if burrowing owl
avoidance is infeasible, a qualified biologist shall implement a passive relocation
program in accordance with the Example Components for Burrowing Owl Artificial
Burrow and Exclusion Plans of the CDFW 2012 Staff Report on Burrowing Owl
Mitigation (CDFW, 2012).
BIO-3b: Construction of proposed improvements within the IEUA Service Area shall * Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA; Before and During
avoid special-status natural communities, unless deemed essential by the Agency. If a specifications. Construction Construction
proposed improvement must be installed and result in a loss of a special-status natural e Perform construction site inspections to ensure any Contractor
cqrpmgnlty Ihat. is not occupled by a qu0|al-statu§ species, cqmpengatgry hab!tat-based measures decided upon are implemented properly.
mitigation consisting of onsite preservation of habitat, restoration of similar habitat, or ] ) R ) .
purchase of off-site credits from an approved mitigation bank shall be implemented. Ata | *  Retain copies of construction site inspection logs in the
minimum IEUA will provide compensation at a 0.5:1 ratio for loss of habitat, except when project file.
regulatory agencies assign a higher compensation ratio on a case-by-case basis.
BIO-4: The proposed improvement projects within the IEUA Service Area shall avoid, if ¢ Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA; Before and During
possible, construction within the general nesting season of February 1 through August specifications. Construction Construction
31 for avian species protected under Fish and Game Code 3500 and the Migratory Bird . . . : "
Treaty Act (META), if1tis determined that suitable nesting habitat occurs on a project * 3:;2',']1?5[3229@%'2%‘;?”ct Rig=couatiocton Contractor
site. If construction cannot avoid the nesting season, a pre-construction clearance Y . ’
survey must be conducted to determine if any-nesting birds or nesting activity is ¢ Prepare documentation to record resuits of the pre-
observed on or within 500-feet of a project site. If an active nest is observed during the construction survey.
survey, a biological monitor must be on site to ensure that no proposed project activities | «  Retain copies of pre-construction survey
IEUA Facilities Master Plans 11-5 ESA /150283 07
February 2017

Final PEIR



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 111

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

would impact the active nest. A suitable buffer will be established around the active nest
until the nestlings have fledged and the nest is no longer active. Project activities may
continue in the vicinity of the nest only at the discretion of the biological monitor.

documentation in the project file.

BIO-5: Any future project that must discharge fill into a channel or otherwise alter a e Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA,; Before and During
strehamb:g shall be mitiga':eg. Mitligation can befprovided by purchasing into any s specifications. Construction Construction
authorized mitigation bank; by selecting a site of comparable acreage near the site an : . :
enhancing it with native riparian habitat or invasive species removal in accordance with a ° :e;i'; :so pies of comespondence'withiany (regulatory Coqtractor
habitat mitigation plan approved by regulatory agencies; or by acquiring sufficient 9 ’
compensating habitat to meet regulatory agency requirements. For jurisdictional waters | ®  Retain records in the project file.
without any riparian or wetland habitat IEUA will mitigate at a 1:1 ratio. For loss of any
riparian or other wetland areas, the mitigation ratio will begin at 2:1 and the ratio will rise
based on the type of habitat, habitat quality, and presence of sensitive or listed plants or
animals in the affected area. A revegetation plan using native riparian vegetation
common to the project area shall be prepared and reviewed and approved by the
appropriate regulatory agencies. The Agency shall also obtain permits from the
regulatory agencies (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Santa Ana Regional Water Quality
Control Board and CDFW) if any impacts to jurisdictional areas will occur. These
agencies can impose greater mitigation requirements in their permits, but the IEUA will
utilize the ratios outlined above as the minimum required to offset or compensate for
impacts to jurisdictional waters, riparian areas or other wetlands. Mitigation can be
provided by purchasing into any authorized mitigation bank; by selecting a site of
comparable acreage near the site and enhancing it with a native riparian habitat or
invasive species removal in accordance with a habitat mitigation plan approved by
regulatory agencies; or by acquiring sufficient compensating habitat to meet regulatory
agency requirements. The regulatory agencies can impose greater mitigation
requirements in their permits, but the IEUA will utilize the ratios outlined above as the
minimum required to offset or compensate for impacts to jurisdictional waters, riparian
areas or other wetlands.
BIO-6: Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be incorporated into the design and ¢ Include mitigation measure in project design IEUA,; Before and During
construction phase of the project to ensure that no pollutants or silt drain into a federal or specifications. Construction Construction
state protected jurisdiction area, including wetlands and riparian areas. Project design : : -
features (BMPs) to fulfill this mitigation requirement shall be clearly identified as part of * E::;;;g?gﬁ: are included in construction contractor Contracior
project engineering plans prior to initiating construction. '
e Retain copies of design and contractor specifications in
project files.
o Perform site inspections to verify contractor

compliance. Retain inspection records in the project

file.
BIO-7: Construction of a proposed project shall avoid, where possible, a wildlife corridor; | e  Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA; Before and During
however, if the wildlife corridor cannot be avoided, such as a discharge location within a specifications. Construction Construction
drainage channel or creek, construction activities shall use best management practices e Ensure BMPs are included in construction contractor

IEUA Facilities Master Plans 11-6 ESA / 150283.07
February 2017

Final PEIR



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 11-1

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

such as placing temporary fencing to protect wildlife and plant species from construction
activities, inspecting trenches and holes for entrapped wildlife each morning prior to the
onset of project construction, inspecting pipes, culverts, or similar construction material
for entrapped wildlife, and prohibiting the use of rodenticides, herbicides, insecticides or
other chemicals that could potentially harm migratory species.

specifications.

Retain copies of contractor specifications in project
files.

Perform construction site inspections to ensure any
measures decided upon are implemented properly.

Retain copies of construction site inspection logs in the
project file.

Contractor

BI0O-8: Once construction is completed, restore the impacted wildlife corridor area to its
original vegetation and in accordance with any regulatory permitting, if applicable.

Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

Retain copies of contractor specifications in project
files.

Perform construction site inspections to ensure
restoration is complete.

Retain copies of restoration inspection logs in the
project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

After Construction

B10-9: Prior to construction activities to provide treatment facilities upgrades, the IEUA
shall comply with the local policies and ordinances to protect biological resources.

Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

Retain copies of contractor specifications in project
files.

Perform construction site inspections to ensure policy
compliance.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before Construction

BIO-10: IEUA shall avoid constructing facilities within existing habitat conservation plan
areas such as the Oakmont Industrial Group HCP in Ontario and the North Fontana
Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan in Fontana, unless avoidance is not feasible
and the habitat conservation plans allow the construction of the proposed facility. IEUA
shall follow the mitigation procedures outlined in such HCPs to bring the project in
compliance with the HCP.

Retain copies of HCP specifications in project files.

Perform site inspections to verify compliance with HCP
mitigation procedures.

Retain inspection records in the project file.

IEUA

Before and During
Construction

Cultural Resources

CUL-1: Prior to development involving ground disturbance, IEUA shall retain a qualified
archaeologist, defined as an archaeologist meeting the Secretary of the Interior's
Standards for professional archaeology to conduct a study of the project area(s) for all
project components that involve ground disturbance. The archaeologist shall conduct a
cultural resources inventory designed to identify potentially significant resources. The
cultural resources inventory would consist of: a cultural resources records search to be
conducted at the South Central Coastal Information Center located at California State
University Fullerton; consultation with the NAHC and with interested Native Americans
identified by the NAHC; a field survey where deemed appropriate by the archaeologist;

Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

Retain copies of all cultural research and survey
reports in the project file.

Perform site inspections to ensure compliance with
cultural sensitivity requirements.

Retain inspection forms in the project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

|EUA Facilities Master Plans
Final PEIR

ESA /150283.07
February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 11-1

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

and recordation of all identified archaeological resources located on a project site on
California Department of Parks and Recreation 523 Site Record forms. The
archaeologist shall provide recommendations regarding resource significance and
additional work for those resources that may be affected by a project.

CUL-2: Development involving ground disturbance and containing structures 50 years
old or older shall be subject to a historic built environment survey, and potentially historic
structures shall be evaluated for their potential historic significance, prior to IEUA's
approval of project plans. The survey shall be carried out by a qualified historian or
architectural historian meeting the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Architectural
History. If potentially significant resources are encountered during the survey, a
treatment plan shall be prepared prior to demolition or substantial alteration of such
resources identified.

* Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

» Retain copies of all historical research and survey
reports in the project file.

e Perform site inspections to ensure compliance with
historical sensitivity requirements.

e Retain inspection forms in the project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

CUL-3: For project-level development involving ground disturbance, a qualified
paleontologist shall be retained to determine the necessity of conducting a study of the
project area(s) based on the potential sensitivity of the project site for paleontological
resources. If deemed necessary, the paleontologist shall conduct a paleontological
resources inventory designed to identify potentially significant resources. The
paleontological resources inventory would consist of: a paleontological resource records
search to be conducted at the San Bernardino County Museum and/or other appropriate
facilities; a field survey or monitoring where deemed appropriate by the paleontologist;
and recordation of all identified paleontological resources.

* Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

* Inthe event that paleontological resources are
discovered, documentation of the assessment of the
significance of the find will be prepared and retained in
the project file

« Paleontological monitoring reports and logs will be
retained in project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

Geology, Soils, and Mineral Resources

GEO-1: Prior to construction of each improvement, a design-level geotechnical
investigation, including collection of site specific subsurface data if appropriate, shall be
completed. The geotechnical evaluation shall identify all potential seismic hazards
including fault rupture, and characterize the soil profiles, including liquefaction potential,
expansive soil potential, subsidence, and landslide potential. The geotechnical
investigation shall recommend site-specific design criteria to mitigate for seismic and
non-seismic hazards, such as special foundations and structural setbacks, and these
recommendations shall be incorporated into the design of individual proposed projects.

e Retain copies of the geotechnical investigation in the
project file.

e  |EUA shall verify that recommendations have been
incorporated into the project design prior to initiation of
the project.

e Include the geotechnical report as part of the
construction documents.

e Perform site inspections to ensure contractor

compliance with geotechnical report recommendations.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before Construction

GEO-2: If an improvement is proposed within a designated Alquist-Priolo Fault Zone, the
improvement shall be relocated, if possible. If relocation is not possible, the improvement
shall be designed in accordance with the CBC or a project specific geotechnical study.

* Retain copies of the geotechnical investigation in the
project file.

e  Verify that recommendations/ CBC regulations have
been incorporated into the project design prior to
initiation of the project.

e Include the geotechnical report as part of the
construction documents.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before Construction

IEUA Facilities Master Plans
Final PEIR

ESA / 150283.07
February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 11-1

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

e  Perform site inspections to ensure contractor
compliance with geotechnical report recommendations.

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

HAZ-1: Prior to the initiation of any construction requiring ground-disturbing activities,
IEUA shall complete a Phase | Environmental Site Assessments (ESA) for soil and
groundwater contamination in the project areas. The recommendations set forth in the
Phase | ESA shall be implemented to the satisfaction of applicable agencies before and
during construction. If the Phase | ESA indicates the potential for hazardous
concentrations of contamination within the construction zone, Phase 1l ESA studies shall
be completed before construction begins. Phase Il studies shall include soil and/or
groundwater sampling and analysis for anticipated contaminants. The Phase Il sampling
is intended to identify how to dispose of any potentially harmful material from
excavations, and to determine if construction workers need specialized personal

protective equipment.

¢ Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

e Retain copies of all Phase | and Il ESA reports in the
project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before Construction

HAZ-2: If the Phase || ESA determines that the site has contaminated soil and/or
groundwater, a Soil and Groundwater Management Plan that specifies the method for
handling and disposing of contaminated soil and groundwater prior to demolition,
excavation, and construction activities shall be prepared and implemented. The plan
shall include all necessary procedures to ensure that excavated materials and fluids
generated during construction are stored, managed, and disposed of in a manner that is
protective of human health and in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The
plan shall include the following information:

. Step-by-step procedures for evaluation, handling, stockpiling, storage, testing, and
disposal of excavated material, including criteria for reuse and offsite disposal. All
excavated materials shall be inspected prior to initial stockpiling, and spoils that are
visibly stained and/or have a noticeable odor shall be stockpiled separately to
minimize the amount of material that may require special handling.

. Procedures to be implemented if unknown subsurface conditions or contamination
are encountered, such as previously unreported tanks, wells, or contaminated soils.

. Detailed control measures for use and storage of hazardous materials to prevent
the release of pollutants to the environment, and emergency procedures for the
containment and cleanup of accidental releases of hazardous materials to minimize
the impacts of any such release. These procedures shall also include reporting
requirements in the event of a reportable spill or other emergency incident. At a
minimum, the IEUA or its contractor shall notify applicable agencies in accordance
with guidance from the California Office of Emergency Services as well as the San
Bernardino County Department of Public Health, Division of Environmental Health
Services.

. Procedures for containment, handling and disposal of groundwater generated from
construction dewatering, the method used to analyze groundwater for hazardous

e Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

e Retain copies of Soil and Groundwater Management
Plan in the project file.

o  Perform site inspections to verify contractor compliance
with hazardous materials. Retain inspection records in
the project file.

e Retain inspection forms in the project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

|EUA Facilities Master Plans
Final PEIR

ESA/150283.07
February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 111

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

materials likely to be encountered at specific locations and the appropriate
treatment and/or disposal methods.

HAZ-3: For projects within airport safety zones, facility design shall follow the guidelines -

of the appropriate airport land use plan. All design plans within an airport land use
planning area shall be submitted to the appropriate airport management agencies for
review and comment prior to implementation.

Include mitigation measure in project design
specifications.

Ensure design specifications are included in
construction contractor specifications.

Retain copies of design and contractor specifications in
project files.

Perform site inspections to verify contractor
compliance. Retain inspection records in the project
file.

Retain copies of correspondence with airport
management agencies in project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

HAZ-4: Prior to initiating construction of proposed facilities, IEUA shall prepare and
implement a Traffic Control Plan that contains comprehensive strategies for maintaining
emergency access. Strategies shall include, but are not limited to, maintaining steel
trench plates at the construction sites to restore access across open trenches and
identification of alternate routing around construction zones. In addition, police, fire, and
other emergency service providers shall be notified of the timing, location, and duration
of the construction activities and the location of detours and lane closures. IEUA shall
ensure that the Traffic Controt Plan and other construction activities are consistent with
the San Bernardino County Operational Area Emergency Response Plan.

Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

The Traffic Control Plan shall be documented and
retained in the project file.

Construction site inspections shall be performed to
ensure contractor compliance with Traffic Control Plan.
Retain copies of construction inspection logs or reports
in the project file.

Retain copies of correspondence with public services in
project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

HAZ-5: During construction of facilities located in areas designated as Very High Fire
Hazard Severity Zones (VHFHSZs) by CAL FIRE, fire hazard reduction measures shall
be implemented and incorporated into a fire management plan. These measures shall
address all staging areas, welding areas, or areas slated for development that are
planned to use spark-producing equipment. These areas shall be cleared of dried
vegetation or other material that could ignite. Any construction equipment that includes a
spark arrestor shall be equipped with a spark arrestor in good working order. During the
construction of the project facilities, all vehicles and crews working at the project site to
have access to functional fire extinguishers at all times. In addition, construction crews
shall have a spotter during welding activities to look out for potentially dangerous
situations, including accidental sparks.

Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

The fire management plan shall be documented and
retained in the project file.

Construction site inspections shall be perforimed to
ensure contractor compliance with fire management
plan.

Retain copies of construction inspection logs or reports
in the project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

HAZ-6: IEUA shall cooperate with the local vector control agencies to implement a
strategy to use recharge basins in a manner that minimizes occurrence of vectors, such
as midges and mosquitos. Based on discussions with vector control professionals, this

Include mitigation measures in construction contractor
specifications.

IEUA

Before, During and
After Construction

IEUA Faciliies Master Plans
Final PEIR

11-10

ESA /150283.07
February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 111

Mitigation Measures Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action Responsibility Monitoring Schedule
strategy shall include monitoring for presence of vectors and shall consider the following | «  Retain copies of correspondence with vector control
range of control measures for implementation: a) revising basin floors or management to agencies.
ensure depth of water can be raised to more than two feet deep, or to ensure the basin e Siteins .
o " h . pections shall be performed to ensure
floors can be dried; b) using mechanical means (for example sprinklers) to keep the . . Froy
surface of the water stored in a basin in motion; ¢) use of short-lived, non-water polluting sompEanceswihtvecion comipimiigaliommeasuies.
pesticides to control outbreaks of midges when necessary or pre-treatment of the basin
floors prior to filling the basin; d) other water or pest management actions to minimize
potential for vector populations to grow into a public nuisance at nearby sensitive
receptors (such as using basins with higher rates of percolation or using lights to attract
and keep the midges at a basin); and use of water recharge management options
developed based on past experience, such as operation in seasonally cooler weather.
The strategy may be general (applying to all basins) or basin-specific and the strategy
shall be compiled and available for implementation prior to initiating the additional
groundwater recharge basins or expanding such basin use.
Hydrology and Water Quality
HYDRO-1: Prior to installing new injection or extraction wells, IEUA and the e |EUA will maintain a repository of groundwater IEUA Before Construction
Watermaster shall ensure that IEUA conduct groundwater modeling near the affected modeling results and reports, and make this
areas sufficient to estimate extraction and injection capacities at specific tocations and to information available to the public.
avoid impacts to neighboring production well operations. «  All modeling will be reported and saved in project files.
HYDRO-2: IEUA shall continue to support monitoring of groundwater levels throughout ¢ |[EUA shall continue ground water quality monitoring. IEUA Before, During and
the Chino Basin to identify areas of elevated groundwater levels. IEUA and the e  Watermaster Panel shall insure that IEUA follows the After Construction
Watermaster shall ensure that, where necessary, future groundwater recharge projects review and approval provisions under Judgement
are designed with groundwater monitoring capabilities sufficient to evaluate and ) ) . i "
minimize impacts of shallow groundwater on subsurface and surface infrastructure. . Ret_alnt %?Ples of monitoring results and processes in
project file.
o Retain copies of Watermaster panel correspondence
and approval in project file.
HYDRO-3: implementation of a Grading and Drainage Plan. Prior to construction of » Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA; Before and During
project facilities, the IEUA shall prepare a grading and drainage plan that identifies specifications. Construction Construction
anticipated changes in flow that would occur on site and minimizes any potential e Prepare grading and drainage plan under applicable Contractor
increases in discharge, erosion, or sedimentation potential in accordance with applicable County/City regulations and requirements
regulations and requirements for the County of San Bernardino and/or the city in which . s .
the facility would be located. In addition, all new drainage facilities shall be designed in *»  Retain copies of the plan and records verifying
accordance with standards and regulations. The plan shall identify and implement implementation of the plan in the project file.
retention basins, best management practices, and other measures to ensure that
potential increases in storm water flows and erosion would be minimized, in accordance
with local requirements.
HYDRO-5: Following the demolition of RP-2 facilities, IEUA shall implement a soil e Include mitigation measure in construction contractor IEUA; Before and During
stability plan that ensures soil and wind erosion does not substantially occur at the RP-2 specifications. Construction Construction
IEUA Facilities Master Plans 1111 - ESA / 150283.07
February 2017

Final PEIR



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 111

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

site. The soil stability plan shall provide best management practice (BMP) measures
such as soil binders, hydroseeding, straw mulch or other measures to ensure the onsite
soils do not erode off of the RP-2 site.

e  Prepare soil stability plan and identify BMPs

e Perform site inspections to verify BMP compliance.
Retain inspection records in the project file.

e Retain copies of the plan and records verifying
implementation of the plan in the project file.

Contractor

HYDRO-6: All creek discharge structures shall be designed with velocity dissipation
features as needed to prevent scour at the point of discharge. The design and location of
these discharge facilities would be approved by the SBCFCD and USACE to ensure that
they do not impede high flow capacity.

e Include mitigation measure in project design
specifications.

«  Ensure design specifications are included in
construction contractor specifications.

» Retain copies of design and contractor specifications in
project files.

e  Perform site inspections to verify contractor
compliance. Retain inspection records in the project
file.

e Retain copies of SBCFCD and USACE
correspondence and approval in project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before Construction

HYDRO-7: Where a facility is proposed within a 100-year flood zone, the improvement
shall be relocated to land that is not within a 100-year flood zone. Alternatively, if a 100-
year flood zone must be utilized for a facility, a hydrology study shall be conducted to
ensure that there is no substantial impediment or redirection of flood flows.

e Include mitigation measure in project design
specifications.

e |EUA will conduct a hydrology study.

e The hydrology studying will be reported and saved in
the project files.

IEUA

Before Construction

Noise

NOISE-1: IEUA shall implement the following measures during construction:

. Include design measures where feasible to reduce the construction noise levels if
necessary to comply with local noise ordinances. These measures may include, but
are not limited to, the erection of noise barriers/curtains, use of advanced or state-
of-the-art mufflers on construction equipment, and/or reduction in the amount of
equipment that would operate concurrently at the construction site.

«  Place noise and groundborne vibration-generating construction activities whose
specific location on a construction site may be flexible (e.g., operation of
compressors and generators, cement mixing, general truck idling) as far as
possible from the nearest noise- and vibration-sensitive land uses such as
residences, schools, and hospitals.

. Minimize the effects of equipment with the greatest peak noise generation potential
via shrouding or shielding to the extent feasible. Examples include the use of drills,
pavement breakers, and jackhammers.

. Locate stationary construction noise sources as far from adjacent noise-sensitive
receptors as possible, and require that these noise sources be muffled and

¢ Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

e  Appoint a construction monitor to verify contractor
compliance with noise measures.

e Retain copies of monitoring records in the project file.

e Appoint a Noise Concern Coordinator to respond to
construction noise complaints.

¢ Maintain log of concerns filed with the Coordinator and
the resolution of each complaint.

e Retain copies of the nofification and concern log in the
project file

e Retain copies of notifications to all landowners and
occupants of properties

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

IEUA Facilities Master Plans
Final PEIR

11-12

ESA /150283.07
February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 11-1

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

enclosed within temporary sheds, insulation barriers if necessary to comply with
local noise ordinances..

. Provide noise shielding and muffling devices on construction equipment per the
manufacturer’s specifications.

. If construction is to occur near a school, the construction contractor shall coordinate
the with school administration in order to limit disturbance to the campus. Efforts to
limit construction activities to non-school days shall be encouraged.

. For major construction projects, identify a liaison for surrounding residents and
property owners to contact with concerns regarding construction noise and
vibration. The liaison’s telephone number(s) shall be prominently displayed at
construction locations.

. For major construction projects, notify in writing all landowners and occupants of
properties adjacent to the construction area of the anticipated construction
schedule at least two weeks prior to groundbreaking.

NOISE-2: IEUA shall require that all FMP-related aboveground facilities that include
stationary noise generating equipment (such as emergency generators, blowers, pumps,
motors, etc.) minimize their audible noise levels by locating equipment away from noise-
sensitive receptor areas, installing proper acoustical shielding for the equipment, and
incorporating the use of parapets into building design to meet the applicable city or
county noise level requirements at neighboring property lines.

¢ Include mitigation measure in project design
specifications.

¢ Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

e Perform construction site inspections to ensure
compliance with noise ordinances.

e Retain copies of site inspection logs or reports in
project files.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

During Construction

NOISE-3: For construction activities during non-standard working hours or hours that are
not exempt from compliance with applicable city or county noise ordinances (e.g., 24-
hour well drilling), IEUA will secure a noise waiver from the appropriate jurisdiction if
available.

¢ Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

e Initiate correspondence with the appropriate jurisdiction

for noise waiver

o Retain copies of the correspondence and waiver in the
project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

NOISE-4: Prior to commencement of construction related to the FMP programs at a
specific site that will endure for more than a few days and that are not emergency
projects, IEUA will notify property owners within 300 feet regarding the scope and
duration of work a minimum of 10 days prior to the start of such activity.

e Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

e Initiate correspondence with property owners
s Retain copies of the correspondence in the project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before Construction

NOISE-5: IEUA shall require the construction contractor(s) to implement the following

measure:

«  Ensure that the operation of construction equipment that generates high levels of
vibration including, but not limited to, large bulldozers, loaded trucks, pile-drivers,
vibratory compactors, and drilling rigs, is minimized within 45 feet of existing
residential structures and 35 feet of institutional structures (e.g., schools) during

¢ Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

e Retain copies of contractor specifications in project
files.

e  Perform site inspections to verify contractor

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

During Construction

IEUA Facilities Master Plans
Final PEIR

11-13

ESA /150283.07
February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

TABLE 111
MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

Mitigation Measures

Implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action

Responsibility

Monitoring Schedule

construction of the various FMP projects. Use of small rubber-tired bulldozers shall
be encouraged within these areas during grading operations to reduce vibration
effects.

compliance. Retain inspection records in the project
file.

NOISE-6: Where a FMP project would be constructed adjacent to an existing or potential
historic building, IEUA shall require by contract specifications that a certified structural
engineer be retained to submit evidence that the operation of vibration-generating
equipment associated with the construction activities would not result in any structural
damage to the adjacent historic building. Contract specifications shall be included in the
construction documents for the applicable FMP project development.

Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

Retain a certified structural engineer to submit
evidence that the operation of construction activities
would not result in any structural damage to historic
building.

Structural engineer shall verify that operation of
construction equipment would not result in damage.

Retain engineer report and any necessary information
in project file.

Retain copies of construction equipment information in
the project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before Construction

Public Services

P$S-1: If a proposed improvement results in the removal of park or recreational facilities,
IEUA will either relocate the proposed improvement or coordinate with the local
jurisdiction to develop replacement park or recreational facility capacity.

Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

Initiate correspondence with local jurisdiction
Retain copies of the correspondence in the project file

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before Construction

Traffic and Transportation

TT-1: For projects that may affect traffic flow along existing roadways, IEUA shall require
that contractors prepare a construction traffic control plan. Elements of the plan should
include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

. Develop circulation and detour plans if necessary to minimize impacts to local
street circulation. Use haul routes minimizing truck traffic on local roadways to the
extent possible.

" To the extent feasible, and as needed to avoid adverse impacts on traffic flow,
schedule truck trips outside of peak morning and evening commute hours.

. Install traffic control devices as specified in Caltrans’ Manual of Traffic Controls for
Construction and Maintenance Work Zones where needed to maintain safe driving
conditions. Use flaggers and/or signage to safely direct traffic through construction
work zones.

. For roadways requiring lane closures that would resuilt in a single open lane,
maintain alternate one-way traffic flow and utilize flagger-controls.

. Coordinate with facility owners or administrators of sensitive land uses such as
police and fire stations, hospitals, and schools. Provide advance notification to the
facility owner or operator of the timing, location, and duration of construction

Include mitigation measure in construction contractor
specifications.

Retain copy of Plan in the project file, including
correspondence documenting approval of the Plan by
the applicable local jurisdiction(s).

Perform site inspections to verify compliance with the
Plan.

Retain copies of monitoring records in the project file.

IEUA;

Construction
Contractor

Before and During
Construction

IEUA Facilities Master Plans
Final PEIR

11-14

ESA/ 150283.07
February 2017



11. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM FOR THE IEUA FMP PROGRAM EIR

TABLE 111

Mitigation Measures implementation, Monitoring, and Reporting Action Responsibility Monitoring Schedule
activities.

Utilities

U-1: Implementation of a Drainage Plan to Reduce Downstream Flows. Prior to ¢ Include mitigation measure in project design IEUA; Before and During

construction of project facilities, the IEUA shall prepare a drainage plan that includes specifications. Construction Construction

design features to reduce stormwater peak concentration flows exiting the above ground Contractor

facility sites so that the capacities of the existing downstream drainage facilities are not
exceeded. These design features could include bio-retention, sand infiltration, return of
stormwater for treatment within the treatment plant, and/or detention facilities.

» Ensure design specifications are included in
construction contractor specifications.

e Retain copy of Drainage Plan in the project file

e  Perform site inspections to verify compliance with the
Plan.

e Retain copies of design and contractor specifications in
project files.

IEUA Faciliies Master Plans
Final PEIR

11-15

ESA/150283.07
February 2017



IEUA FACILITIES MASTER PLANS PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding
Considerations

Prepared for February 2017
Inland Empire Utilities Agency




IEUA FACILITIES MASTER PLANS PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding

Considerations

Prepared for

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

626 Wilshire Boulevard
Suite 1100

Los Angeles, CA 90017
213.599.4300
WWW.esassoc.com

Irvine

Los Angeles
Oakland
Orlando
Pasadena
Petaluma
Portland

150283.07

Sacramento
San Diego

San Francisco
Santa Monica
Seattle

Tampa
Woodland Hills

February 2017

ESA



OUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY | ESA helps a variety of
public and private sector clients plan and prepare for climate change and
emerging regulations that limit GHG emissions. ESA is a registered
assessor with the California Climate Action Registry, a Climate Leader, and
founding reporter for the Climate Registry. ESA is also a corporate member
of the U.S. Green Building Council and the Business Council on Climate
Change (BC3). Internally, ESA has adopted a Sustainability Vision and
Policy Statement and a plan to reduce waste and energy within our
operations. This document was produced using recycled paper.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of
Overriding Considerations

Section 1, Background and INtrodUCLION ...........cuveereccricrmeriiiiis e sessnsseseesesssseesseesssnssssanes 1
1.1 ProjECt OVEIVIEW ....cocuiiiiiiiiice ettt ettt st et e s e e e e eeenens 1
1.2 Public Involvement and PEIR SCOPING .......cooeeeiiieiiiiieieeceee et 1
1.3 PEIR Certification and Project Approval Process..........ccocuveeeeivieeeeoreeieireseneenann, 2
1.3.1 Findings Required Under CEQAL..........ccovuieie ittt 2
1.3.2 Significant Effects and Mitigation Measures............ccoevvvieieececeseeece s 3
1.3.3 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program.............c.ccoovveeeeecvioecrieenneinn. 3
1.3.4 Certification of the PEIR and Adoption of Findings ..........c.ccccoveviiivieeeeee. 3
Section 2, Project SUMMATCY ...t rsssses s ssssssasssessssssssesnessssesssssssnnes 4
2.1 ProjeCt LOCALION.......ccvcertititisrccereeie ettt st s et s sttt b s s b e e e e e e ee e eens 4
2.2 ProjeCt DESCHIPUON ......coveurieeeiecrirt st sie e et ea sttt s et e e e e e 4
2.3 ProjeCt ODJECHIVES .....covceeeiiieieeeee ettt et ettt ea e e eee e e e eeeeanes 6
2.4 Record of Proceedings........cc..cccc e soriaizseesnes snsioeoesmsn e dosesUbiHEiEERET v eresesoes 7
2.5 Custodian and Location of RECOIAS..........cccccueiiiueciiiiieeeeeeececee e e e 8
Section 3, Environmental FINAINGS........coccccivririiiiiimnicscnssscesssssssssseesessssssssessssssesssssnes 8
3.1 Findings Regarding No Impact and Less than Significant Impacts
Identified iN the EIR ...t 8
3.1 ProjeCt IMPACES ...ttt e e e e e e 8
3.1.2 Cumulative IMPACES.......iciiiveieeieee ettt n st e e e e eeeene 38
3.2 Findings Regarding Environmental Impacts which Can Be Mitigated to
Less than Significant ..........ccooiiiieiee e 53
3.2.1 Project IMPactS .......cocceiieiiieie ittt es e ene e 53
3.2.2 Cumulative Impacts..........ccceceeveeeiieiceeniece e, o S 88
3.3 Findings Regarding Environmental Impacts Not Fully Mitigated to Less
Than SIGNIfICANT.......ccoiie e et 109
3.3.1 Project IMPACES .......coeericiiicece ettt 110
3.3.2 CumMUIBLIVE IMPACES.......cciiieiiiiciriieee et et eeseneree e e e e e s e 118
Section 4, Feasibility of Alternatives ..........c..ccccecrrrrsmvninrscinnsmsssssss s sessssessessssess 123
4.1 Alternative 1: NO Programi........ccccoeceeieeecece ettt 123
4.1.1 DESCHIPHON ....eeeecee ettt ettt e e e e e e e er e e e e eaane s 123
4.1.2 IMPact ANAIYSIS .......ceoeiriiiiitiieee ettt enen 124
4.1.3 Findings for AREINative 1 ............ccoieeieieeeieeeeceeecee e 147
4.2 Alternative 2: Reduced Groundwayer Discharge .............ccocoeeeueveeveiveeceennn, 127
4.2.1 DESCIIPHON ...ttt ettt et e e s ee e e s ene e 127
4.2.2 IMpact ANalYSiS......... ... wosavsssssomseioee st vens tias s osvste smenss s 5D 56 {55 ween o558 128
4.2.3 Findings for ARErNative 2 ..............ccceceieeiriece ettt 132
IEVA Facilities Master Plans PEIR i ESA /150283.07

Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

February 2017



Table of Contents

Page

4.3 Alternative 3: Expanded Advanced Water Treatment Facility ............................ 132

L 00 I I T Yo 1 1o ) o O 132

4.3.2 IMPACt ANAIYSIS ...veeiiiiiiicecciee e rreie e e e e e rar e e e e nnnes 134

4.3.3 Findings for ARErnative 3 ..o seee e e e e e 137

4.4 Environmentally Superior Aternative..........ccouecccreiviiiiiciniininiiis e 137
Section 5, Statement of Overrriding Considerations...........c.ccceeircirnerriensscscecec e, 138
5.1 Significant and Unavoidable Impacts........ccccccvvieeieiiiiiieieceee e 138

5.1.1 Air Quality and Greenhouse Gases ..........ccciveiviiieciiieciieeeieie e e 138

5.1.2 CuUltUral RESOUICES.......cuiiiiiiiciiiiesieie e ceeseebie e st se e st e e s inae e s sneeeeseenesaraeas 139

5.1.3 NOISE ....ooirmernnmmnnrinennnin e SUEES v e ue e BESESTRRTRS ¢ e e SEEGESNRENSETERE w e nome s oe o bosHEHAES 139

5.2 Program BenefitS......ccciciiiiiiciriie et s e e ae e 139

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR ii ESA /150283.07

Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA FACILITIES MASTER PLANS PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of
Overriding Considerations

1. Background and Introduction

1.1 Project Overview

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) has completed a Program Environmental Impact
Report (PEIR) (State Clearinghouse Number 2016061064) for the IEUA Facilities Master Plans.
The IEUA is the Lead Agency for the purposes of preparing and certifying the PEIR pursuant to
Sections 15050 and 15367 of the State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations,
Section 15000 et seq.)

The purpose of the PEIR is to evaluate the potential environmental impacts of the proposed
program. In compliance with Section 21002.1 of CEQA and Section 15002 of the State CEQA
Guidelines, the IEUA, as Lead Agency, has prepared the PEIR in order to (1) inform the general
public, the local community, responsible and interested public agencies and the Agency’s
decision-making bodies and other organizations, entities, and interested persons of the potential
environmental effects of the proposed program, feasible measures to reduce potentially
significant environmental effects, and alternatives that could reduce or avoid the significant
effects of the proposed program, (2) enable the Agency to consider environmental consequences
when deciding whether to approve the proposed program and (3) to satisfy the substantive and
procedural requirements of CEQA.

1.2 Public Involvement and PEIR Scoping

The PEIR complies with the provisions of CEQA (California Public Resources Code, Sections
21000 et seq.), the State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations, Section 15000 et
seq.) and the Agency’s Procedures for Implementing the State CEQA Guidelines. In compliance
with CEQA, IEUA has solicited and considered comments from Responsible and Trustee
Agencies, members of the public, and other interested parties during the proposed program’s
various environmental review processes:

e In accordance with CEQA Guidelines Sections 15063 and 15082, IEUA prepared and
distributed a Notice of Preparation (NOP) of a PEIR. The NOP was distributed on June
29, 2016 to governmental agencies, organizations, and persons who may be interested in
the project.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 1 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017




|EUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

e In compliance with Section 21083.9 of CEQA and Section 15082 (c)(1) of the State
CEQA Guidelines, IEUA held a public scoping meeting on July 21, 2016, to receive
public and agency comments.

e Comments received from the public and agencies during the public review period for the
NOP and the public scoping meeting were considered in the preparation of the PEIR
prepared for the proposed program.

e In December 2016, a Draft PEIR was prepared for the proposed program in accordance
with current CEQA regulations and guidelines. The Draft PEIR was circulated for a 45-
day public review period on December 20, 2016. Notification was provided to the State
Clearinghouse (SCH), to local, state, and federal agencies, and to all interested parties
and jurisdictions pursuant to the requirements of Section 15087 of the State CEQA
Guidelines. There were nine letters/correspondence received by IEUA during the 45-day
review period. Comments within each letter/correspondence were evaluated and
responded to in accordance with Section 15088 of the State CEQA Guidelines.

1.3 PEIR Certification and Project Approval Process

1.3.1 Findings Required Under CEQA

The IEUA will determine whether to certify the PEIR for the program. The PEIR, as required by
State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15089 and 15132, consists of the Draft Program Environmental
Impact Report (SCH No. 2016061064), the Final PEIR Document, and any other information
added by IEUA. The Final PEIR Document includes an Introduction to Response to Comments;
comments received on the Draft PEIR, a list of persons, organizations, and public agencies
commenting on the Draft PEIR; the responses of the IEUA as “Lead Agency” to significant
environmental points raised in the review and consultation process; Corrections and Additions
made to the Draft PEIR after response to comments; and the Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program (MMRP). Because the Draft PEIR identified potentially significant
environmental impacts, the IEUA must also make certain “findings™ as part of its action to certify
that the PEIR has been completed in compliance with CEQA and to approve the proposed
program. Pursuant to CEQA Section 21081 and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15091, no public
agency shall approve or carry out a project for which an environmental impact report has been
certified, which identifies one or more significant effects on the environment that would occur if
the program is approved or carried out, unless the public agency makes one or more findings for
each of those significant effects, accompanied by a brief explanation of the rationale of each
finding. The possible findings, which must be supported by substantial evidence in the record,
are:

(1) Changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into, the program which avoid
or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as identified in the Final PEIR.

(2)  Such changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public
agency and not the agency making the finding. Such changes have been adopted by such
other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 2 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

(3) Specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision
of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible the mitigation
measures or program alternatives identified in the Final PEIR.

1.3.2 Significant Effects and Mitigation Measures

The Draft PEIR identified several significant environmental effects (or “impacts™) resulting from
implementation of the proposed program. Some of these significant effects can be fully
avoided/mitigated through the adoption of feasible mitigation measures. For those significant
impacts that cannot be mitigated to less than significant, IEUA is required to balance, as
applicable, the economic, legal, social, technological, or other benefits of the proposed program
against its unavoidable environmental risks when determining whether to approve the proposed
program. The State CEQA Guidelines at Section 15093(a) provide that if specific economic,
legal, social, technological, or other benefits of the proposed program outweigh the unavoidable
adverse environmental effects, the adverse environmental effects may be considered “acceptable”
and IEUA may adopt a Statement of Overriding Considerations to that effect.

Three environmental topics that include a total of 12 program and cumulative environmental
effects cannot be reduced to less than significant by the adoption of feasible mitigation measures.
The potential project and cumulative significant and unavoidable impacts related to Air Quality,
Cultural Resources, and Noise impacts have been identified as significant and unavoidable and
require the preparation of a Statement of Overriding Considerations. Section 3.0, below, describes
the program and cumulative effects and outlines IEUA’s findings with respect to each of these
environmental effects of the proposed project.

1.3.3 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) has been prepared to monitor and
report the implementation of the mitigation measures identified for the proposed program. The
MMRP will be adopted by IEUA concurrently with these findings, and will be implemented by
IEUA during the proposed programs’ planning horizon; and through the project review,
construction, and post-construction periods of individual development projects. To the extent that
these findings conclude that all mitigation measures outlined in the PEIR are feasible and have
not been modified, superseded, or withdrawn, IEUA hereby binds itself to implement these
measures. These findings, in other words, are not merely informational, but rather constitute a
binding set of obligations that will come into effect when IEUA formally approves the proposed
program.

1.3.4 Certification of the PEIR and Adoption of Findings

IEUA will review and consider the information contained in the PEIR, as well as submissions
from public officials, public agencies, and the general public. Prior to program approval, the
IEUA shall certify that the PEIR reflects the Agency’s independent judgment and analysis.
Having considered the foregoing information, as well as any and all other information in the
record, IEUA shall make findings pursuant to CEQA Section 21081. In accordance with the

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 3 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

provisions of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines, [EUA shall adopt the Findings as part of its
certification of the PEIR for the proposed program.

2. Project Summary

2.1 Project Location

IEUA service area is located in southern California within the west end of San Bernardino
Valley; just east of Los Angeles County, northeast of Orange County, and north of Riverside
County boundary lines. Its 242-square-mile service area includes the cities of Upland, Montclair,
Ontario, Fontana, Chino, Chino Hills; City of Rancho Cucamonga; and the unincorporated areas
of San Bernardino County, including the Chino Agricultural Preserve. The service area consists
primarily of the Chino Basin which is an alluvial valley that is relatively flat from east to west,
sloping north to south at a one to two percent grade. Basin elevation ranges from 2,000 feet
adjacent to the San Gabriel Foothills to approximately 500 feet near Prado Dam. The service area
is bordered to the north by the San Gabriel Mountains; to the east by the Rialto-Colton Basin, the
Jurupa Mountains and the Riverside County/San Bernardino County boundary, to the south by
the Prado Flood Control Basin and to the west by the Chino Hills, Puente Hills and the Pomona
and Claremont Basins. All proposed projects would be located inside the IEUA Service Area
boundaries.

2.2 Project Description

The proposed program consists of the construction and operation of facilities identified in the six
interrelated Facility Master Plans. These proposed facilities would implement the comprehensive
strategy for managing IEUA’s regional wastewater and recycled water distribution system in the
future; the future strategy for the treatment and disposal of biosolids and manure; and reliable and
sustainable energy infrastructure to support these activities. These six master plans are outlined
below.

1. Wastewater Facilities Master Plan Update Report

The Wastewater Facilities Master Plan Update Report (WFMP) was prepared by
CH2MHIill in association with Carollo Engineers and dated March 2015. Changes in
economic conditions and water use efficiency practices, discharge permit
requirements, and water recycling needs necessitated the re-evaluation of the
assumptions put forth in the 2002 WFMP and resulted in the update of the WFMP.

2. IEUA Asset Management Plan

The IEUA Asset Management Plan for the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 was developed by
staff members of the Agency. The Asset Management Plan addresses the Agency’s
need to manage their assets in order to coordinate decisions and take actions that
allow the Agency to meet the business goals set in the document at the lowest
lifecycle cost.

3. Recycled Water Program Strategy

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 4 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017




IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

The Recycled Water Program Strategy (RWPS), which is considered a Facility
Master Planning Study, was prepared by Stantec for the Agency in April 2015. This
document serves to update the 2005 Recycled Water Implementation Plan and the
2007 Recycled Water Three Year Business Plan. The objective of the RWPS is to
update supply and demand forecasts and to help map changes for the Recycled Water
Program to maximize the beneficial use of recycled water through the planning year
2035.

4, 2013 Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update

The 2013 Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU), prepared
in September 2013 by Wildermuth Environmental, Inc., documents the investigation
that was conducted pursuant to the direction of the Court and the Chino Basin
Watermaster to amend its 2010 RPMU.

5. IEUA 2015 Energy Management Plan

The IEUA 2015 Energy Management Plan of December 2015 analyzes historical
energy use, defines a current energy and Greenhouse Gas emissions baseline,
forecasts future demands, examines procurement strategies (including an Organics
Diversion program), and proactively explores measures that can ease the Agency’s
load on utilities while cultivating a reliable and sustainable energy infrastructure
across its facilities.

6. 2015 Integrated Water Resources Plan

The 2015 Integrated Resources Plan: Water Supply & Climate Change Impacts 2015-
2040 (IRP) is a regional blueprint for ensuring reliable, cost-effective and
environmentally responsible water supplies for the next 25 years. It takes into
consideration availability of current and future water supplies and accounts for
possible fluctuations in demand forecasts and climate change impacts.

In addition to facilities proposed within the six master plans, there are additional facilities
proposed within the Agency’s Capital Improvement Plan, described below.

Fiscal Year 2016/17 Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan

Fiscal Year 2016/17 Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) provides a cataloging and
scheduling of projects over a multiyear period. Projects within the CIP are necessary to
accomplish the Agency’s goals based on physical conditions of assets and forecasted
regional projections of water and wastewater needs. The projects involve the purchase,
improvement or construction of major fixed assets and equipment, which are typically
large in size, expensive, and permanent.

The six master plans and the CIP are collectively known as the Facilities Master Plans. Many of
the projects that make up the Facilities Master Plans are in the concept development or planning
phase and all would take place within the IEUA service area, largely in the vicinity of IEUA’s
existing assets. The implementation of the facilities proposed within the Facilities Master Plans
consists of construction, operation, and maintenance. These potential facilities are separated into

|IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 3] ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

three project categories: (1) Project Category 1: Treatment Facility Upgrades, (2) Project
Category 2: Conveyance Systems and Ancillary Facilities, and (3) Project Category 3:
Groundwater Recharge and Extraction. Below are general descriptions of the facilities and
operations proposed within the six master plans.

Project Category 1: Treatment Facility Upgrades

Treatment Facility Upgrades include, but are not limited to, liquid and solid treatment capacity,
sludge system, dewatering treatment, pipelines, dosing facilities, odor control, flares, electrical,
pumps, pump stations, lift stations, meters, tanks, filters, HVAC (heating, ventilation, and air
conditioning), emergency generators, rip-rap, lighting, drains, energy storage, odor control, solar
panels, filters, fire sprinklers, conveyor belts, lighting, drains, screens, parking lot improvements,
bathrooms, signage, and blowers and maintenance/rehabilitation of existing facilities.

Project Category 2: Conveyance Systems and Ancillary Facilities

Conveyance and ancillary facilities include, but are not limited to, pipelines, pump stations, lift
stations, emergency generators, meters, electrical, system improvements, storage tanks or
reservoirs, facility repairs, manhole replacements, septic systems, dry weather diversion points,
and discharge relocations.

Project Category 3: Groundwater Recharge and Extraction

Groundwater recharge and extraction projects include, but are not limited to, recharge basins,
ancillary facilities, injection and extraction wells, meters, facility well-housing, basin
maintenance, emergency generators, and groundwater treatment.

2.3 Project Objectives

Section 15124(b) of the CEQA Guidelines states that the project description shall contain; “a
statement of the objectives sought by the proposed project.” As set forth by the CEQA
Guidelines, the list of objectives that IEUA seeks to achieve for the proposed program is provided
below:

e Implement a program strategy that is consistent with the mission, vision, and core values
of IEUA.

e Ensure that IEUA service area is served with adequate wastewater treatment capacity that
meets regulatory requirements and recycled water objectives through service area build
out.

e Ensure that IEUA produces adequate recycled water supply to meet the objectives
established in the Recycled Water Program Strategy through service area build out.

o Deliver sufficient wastewater discharge to meet IEUA’s downstream discharge
obligations to the Santa Ana River and to sustain Prado Basin Riparian/Wetland Habitat
through service area build out.

e Provide sufficient processing capacity at the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility
to meet service area biosolids management demands through service area build out.

|IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 6 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017




IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

To the maximum extent feasible provide sustainable energy generation to minimize
IEUA demand for electricity and natural gas from the Southern California Edison (SCE)
and the Southern California Gas Company (SCG) grids.

Maintain IEUA’s leadership role in developing and providing new water resources and
working with other stakeholders in the Chino Basin to maintain the Chino Groundwater
Basin aquifer as a suitable source of potable water within its service area.

Identify key water resource supply vulnerabilities and evaluate water supply options that
could reduce these vulnerabilities and continue to develop a robust water resource
strategy that can adapt and respond to a wide range of possible futures.

Implement an organics diversion program and food waste co-digestion in support of
IEUA’s Member Agencies and local businesses in complying with the State’s organics
diversion requirements, and the Agency long term goals of peak power independence and
carbon neutrality.

2.4 Record of Proceedings
For purposes of CEQA and these findings, the record before IEUA includes the following:

The Draft PEIR and all appendices of the Draft PEIR;
The Final PEIR and all appendices to the Final PEIR;
The MMRP;

All notices required by CEQA, staff reports, and presentation materials related to the
proposed program;

All studies conducted for the program and contained in, or referenced by, staff reports,
the Draft PEIR, or the Final PEIR;

All public reports and documents related to the program prepared for IEUA and other
agencies;

All documentary and oral evidence received and reviewed at public hearings, study
sessions, and workshops and all transcripts and minutes of those hearings related to the
program and the Final PEIR;

For documentary and informational purposes, all locally adopted land use plans and
ordinances, including, without limitation, general plans, specific plans and ordinances,
master plans together with environmental review documents, findings, mitigation
monitoring programs, and other documentation relevant to planned growth in the area;

Any additional items not included above if otherwise required by law.

IEVUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 7 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR )
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

The Final PEIR is incorporated into these findings in its entirety. Without limitation, this
incorporation is intended to elaborate on the scope and nature of mitigation measures, the basis
for determining the significance of impacts, and the comparative analysis of alternatives.

2.5 Custodian and Location of Records

The documents and other materials that constitute the administrative record for the Agency’s
actions related to the program are located at the Inland Empire Utility Agency Headquarters,
6075 Kimball Avenue, Chino, CA 91708. The Agency is the custodian of the record of
proceedings for the program. Copies of these documents, which constitute the record of
proceedings, are, and at all relevant times, have been and will be available upon request at the
Agency’s headquarters. This information is provided in compliance with Public Resources Code
Section 21081.6(a)(2) and CEQA Guideline Section 15091 (e).

3. Environmental Findings

3.1 Findings Regarding No Impact and Less than Significant
Impacts Identified in the EIR

The PEIR found that the proposed program would have no impacts or less than significant
impacts without the imposition of mitigation on a number of environmental topic areas. The no
impact or less than significant environmental impact determination was made for each of the
following topic areas listed below, based on the more expansive discussions contained in the
PEIR.

3.1.1 Project Impacts

3.1.1.1 Aesthetics
a. Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on a scenic vista.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed construction activities within the treatment
facilities primarily include upgrades, but there is one of the facilities that will be
demolished. The treatment facilities include Regional Water Recycling Plant 1 (RP-1),
RP-2, RP-4, RP-5, Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF), and Inland
Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF).

The construction of the treatment facility upgrades would require temporary ground-
disturbance within existing treatment facilities. The presence of construction equipment
and materials would be visible from public vantage points such as open space areas,
sidewalks, and streets, but it would not permanently affect designated scenic views or
vistas. Thus, impacts would be less than significant.

The construction of the collection system facilities, conveyance systems and ancillary
facilities would require temporary ground-disturbance within existing roadway/public
ROWs. The presence of construction equipment and materials would be visible from

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 8 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

public vantage points such as open space areas, sidewalks, and streets, but it would not
affect any scenic views or vistas. Construction of the conveyance pipelines and ancillary
facilities would not permanently affect views or scenic vistas. Thus, impacts would be
less than significant.

The conveyance pipelines would be placed underground and would not be visible once
construction is complete. Implementation of conveyance system upgrades would not alter
a scenic vista. The impact to a scenic vista would be less than significant.

The construction of the groundwater recharge basins and extraction facilities would
require temporary ground-disturbance within the project sites. The presence of
construction equipment and materials would be visible from public vantage points such
as open space areas, sidewalks, and streets, but it would not permanently affect
designated scenic views or vistas. Thus, impacts would be less than significant.

Operational recharge basins are typically flat, below the ground surface, earthen
excavations with berms. Operation of the recharge basins would not obstruct or alter
existing view of scenic vistas. The project would include aboveground ancillary facilities
associated with the basins. The aboveground ancillary facilities would not be located on a
designated scenic vista. The ancillary facilities would be located in areas that are
generally flat, and proximate to developed areas. Furthermore, the proposed aboveground
ancillary facilities would not have size or massing that significantly reduces views of
scenic vistas. Impacts would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon scenic vistas would be less than significant.

b. Impact: The proposed program could have significant impacts related to damage of
scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic
buildings within a state scenic highway.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed treatment facility upgrades would be located
within the IEUA service area. Construction activities within the treatment facilities
primarily include upgrades. The treatment facilities include Regional Water Recycling
Plant 1 (RP-1), RP-2, RP-4, RP-5, Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF),
and Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF). There are no officially-
designated State scenic highways or eligible State scenic highways that run adjacent to or
near the project areas. Therefore, the project would not impact scenic resources within a
State Scenic Highway corridor.

Pipeline installation would occur within existing right-of-ways; however, they could
potentially be placed within an eligible scenic highway, or a locally-defined scenic
corridor identified in a local General Plan. Pipeline construction activities would progress
along the alignment; however, construction would be temporary. Therefore, construction
impacts would be less than significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 9 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Once constructed and repaved or revegetated, the proposed conveyance systems would
not detract from the visual quality along an eligible scenic highway, or a locally-defined
scenic corridor or route because pipelines would be buried underground. Therefore, there
would be no long-term impacts to these scenic corridors. The impact to locally-defined
scenic corridors or routes would be less than significant.

Groundwater recharge and extraction facilities could potentially be placed adjacent to an
eligible scenic highway, or a locally-defined scenic corridor identified in a local General
Plan. Existing views could be interrupted during construction due to equipment staging
and fencing; however, construction would be temporary. Therefore, construction impacts
would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon scenic resources within a State Scenic Highway would be less than
significant.

c. Impact: The proposed program could degrade the existing visual character or quality of
the sites and their surroundings.

Facts in Support of Finding: Construction activities associated with treatment facility
upgrades would result in short-term impacts to aesthetic resources. Construction activities
would require the use of construction equipment and storage of materials within the
existing treatment facilities for project components. Excavated areas, stockpiled soils and
other materials generated during construction would present negative aesthetic elements
to the existing visual landscape. However, these effects would be nominal because they
would be located within the existing treatment facilities, and the effects would be
temporary and therefore not substantially affect the existing visual character of the
surrounding area.

The treatment facility upgrades would be located within existing treatment facilities and
would not substantially alter the existing visual character of the site or its surroundings.
Further, the projects would not be visually incompatible when viewed with the
surrounding urban and developed areas. RP-2 would be demolished, and no facilities
would be implemented on site. Demolition activities would include placement of soil on
the RP-2 site so that the site is relatively flat. Post-demolition, the site would be bare and
blend in with the surrounding area of open space. This altered site would not substantially
degrade the visual character or quality of the site or surrounding area because the site
with no RP-2 facilities would be more compatible with the surrounding open space
character compared to the existing RP-2 facilities. Visual character impacts would be less
than significant.

The proposed conveyance pipelines would be buried underground; thus, no long-term
impacts to the existing visual character or quality of the project sites or surrounding area
would occur.

IEUA Faciliies Master Plans PEIR 10 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon visual character would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program could create new sources of substantial light or glare
which could result in significant adverse effects on day or nighttime views in the IEUA
service area. A significant impact would occur if the proposed project caused a
substantial increase in ambient light levels near light-sensitive land uses such as
residential and natural/open space areas.

Facts in Support of Finding: Some proposed facility upgrades, primarily proposed for
the IERCF, include the addition or expansion of solar panel use. Solar panels could create
sources of glare during various times of the day. Proposed upgrades and additions of
solar panels to treatment facilities could result in glare impacts on airplanes navigating
from airports in the IEUA service area. The proposed facilities would not fall within a
Runway Protection Zone (RPZ). Therefore proposed solar panel usage at treatment
facilities would result in a less than significant related to the interference with flight paths
of local airports.

The conveyance systems would not require nighttime lighting, and they would be placed
underground. As a result, there would be no new sources of lighting to the project area.
No impacts related to light and glare would occur.

Recharge basins are relatively flat, earthen excavations that are surrounded by earthen
berms. Nighttime security lighting could be included with the groundwater recharge
facilities; however, due to these facilities being located on relatively flat terrain, potential
lighting impacts would be less than significant. The potential for glare from proposed
recharge basins containing surface water to affect specific residences and/or viewsheds
for short periods of time is low and would not introduce substantial new sources of glare,
and therefore, would represent a less than significant impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon light and glare would be less than significant.

3.1.1.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources

a.

Impact: The proposed program could result in significant impacts from the conversion of
Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland) as

shown on maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of
the California Resources Agency to non-agricultural use.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed treatment facility upgrades would be located
within the existing IEUA assets boundaries: Regional Water Recycling Plant 1 (RP-1),
RP-2, RP-4, RP-5, Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF), and Inland
Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF). IEUA assets are located in the Cities of

IEVA Facilies Master Plans PEIR 1 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Ontario, Rancho Cucamonga, and Chino; within developed land supporting industrial,
commercial, and residential uses. No impact to Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or
Farmland of Statewide Importance would occur.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance
would not be significant.

b. Impact: The proposed program could have significant impacts from conflicts with
existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act Contract.

Facts in Support of Finding: According to the City of Chino, City of Ontario, and City
of Rancho Cucamonga General Plan Zoning Maps, none of the IEUA assets are located
within areas zoned for agriculture (see Figure 3.2-1). Additionally, none of the proposed
treatment facility upgrades would conflict with active Williamson Act Contracts. No
impacts to agricultural zoning or Williamson Act Contracts would occur.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon agricultural zoning and Williamson Act Contracts would not be significant.

c. Impact: The program would not conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of,
forest land, timberland, or timber land zoned for Timberland Production.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The IEUA service area does not include zoning
designations for forest land, timberland, or timberland zoned Timberland Production. The
IEUA service area borders the San Bernardino National Forest, but it does not overlap
with the IEUA service area. All program projects would occur within the IEUA service
area.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon zoning or rezoning of Forest or Timberland would not be significant.

d. Impact: The proposed program would not result in the loss of forest land or conversion
of forest land to non-forest use.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The IEUA service area does not include zoning
designations for forest land. The IEUA service area borders the San Bernardino National
Forest, but it does not overlap with the IEUA service area. Because none of the FMP
projects would be located within forest land, implementation projects would not result in
the conversion of forest land to non-forest use. No impact would occur.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 12 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon loss or conversion of forest land would not be significant.

Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects from conversion of
Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed projects would upgrade existing facilities
and construct new facilities within the IEUA service area on land that generally consists
of industrial, commercial and residential uses. The proposed treatment facilities do not
contain agricultural uses and would not result in the conversion of farmland to a non-
agricultural use. Therefore, the proposed improvements within the treatment facilities
would result in no impacts.

IEUA service area does not have any land use designations or zoning designations for
forest land or timberland. The IEUA service area borders the San Bernardino National
Forest, but it does not overlap with the IEUA service area. The proposed projects would
not result in the loss of forest land or convert forest land to non-forest use. There would
be no impact.

Proposed upgrades to existing groundwater recharge such as deepening of recharge
basins would not alter existing footprints and would not convert any existing farmlands to
non-agricultural use.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use would not be significant.

3.1.1.3 Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant effects on
implementation of the South Coast Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) because the
program would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the AQMP.

Facts in Support of Finding: In preparation of the AQMP, SCAQMD and SCAG used
land use designations contained in General Plan documents to forecast, inventory, and
allocate regional emissions from land use and development-related sources. For purposes
of analyzing consistency with the AQMP, projects that are consistent with the regional
population, housing, and employment forecasts identified by SCAG are considered to be
consistent with the AQMP growth projections, since the forecast assumptions by SCAG
forms the basis of the land use and transportation control portions of the AQMP.
Additionally, since SCAG’s regional growth forecasts are based upon, among other
things, land uses designated in General Plans, a project that is consistent with the land use

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 13 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



|IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

designated in a city’s General Plan would also be consistent with the SCAG’s regional
forecast projections, and thus also with the AQMP growth projections.

The proposed program is not a residential or commercial development project and its
implementation is not forecast to induce any additional growth within the service area.
The proposed IEUA facilities would accommodate demands of planned growth and
would not alter the growth projections identified in the General Plans that have
jurisdiction within the IEUA service area. The FMP would not conflict with, or obstruct,
implementation of the AQMP, and this impact would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon an Air Quality Management Plan would be less than significant.

b. Impact: The proposed program could result in significant effects associated with the
exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations.

Facts in Support of Finding:

Localized Construction Air Quality Impacts — Criteria Air Pollutants

During construction of the proposed projects within the project area, nearby sensitive
receptors located offsite from each of the various regional plant construction sites could
be exposed to significant adverse localized air quality impacts. The daily onsite
construction emissions generated by construction of facilities would not exceed any of
SCAQMD’s applicable LSTs, and impacts to sensitive receptors would be less than
significant.

Localized Operational Air Quality Impacts — Criteria Air Pollutants

Operational LSTs, like construction LSTs are only associated with the onsite emission of
NOx, CO, PMyo and PM»s. As shown in Table 3.3-7 of the draft PEIR, the minimal
emissions associated with these criteria pollutants are generated from the mobile (offsite)
emissions resulting from chemical deliveries, maintenance visits, or employees traveling
to and from the facilities. Since the operational emissions from the project are negligible,
impacts to sensitive receptors would be less than significant.

Localized Construction Air Quality Impacts — Toxic Air Contaminants

Intermittent construction activities occurring throughout the project area associated with
the proposed project would result in short-term emissions of diesel PM, which is a TAC.
During construction of each individual project within the project area, the exhaust of off-
road heavy-duty diesel equipment would emit diesel PM during general construction
activities, such as site preparation (e.g., excavation, grading, and clearing); paving;
installation of utilities, materials transport and handling; building/structure construction;
and other miscellaneous activities. The construction period for any of the IEUA projects

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 14 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

that would occur in the project area would be finite and less than the 70-year period used
for risk determination. Because off-road heavy-duty diesel equipment would be used only
temporarily at each construction site, the construction activities associated with the
individual projects would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial emissions of
TACs. This impact would be less than significant.

Localized Operational Air Quality Impacts — Toxic Air Contaminants

The proposed project would not introduce any new stationary sources of TACs, such as
diesel-fueled pumps or generators. The operation of the pump stations and treatment
facilities would be powered by electricity, and thus would not emit any TAC emissions.
Therefore, the project would not expose surrounding sensitive receptors to TAC
emissions. Impacts would be less than significant.

CO Hotspots

Since construction-related traffic would not substantially increase CO concentrations in
the project area, CO hotspot impacts to sensitive receptors would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon sensitive receptors would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program could result in significant effects from the creation of
objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people.

Facts in Support of Finding: According to the SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook,
land uses associated with odor complaints typically include agricultural uses, wastewater
treatment plants, food processing plants, chemical plants, composting, refineries,
landfills, dairies, and fiberglass molding.

Construction activities would be required for the installation of proposed improvement
upgrades at the existing treatment plant facilities. During the construction phases for each
of the improvements, exhaust from construction equipment may produce discernible
odors typical of most construction sites. Such odors would be a temporary source of
nuisance to adjacent uses, but since they are temporary and intermittent in nature, exhaust
odors from construction equipment would not be considered a significant environmental
impact.

Operation of the proposed project components in Project Category 2 would include the
installation of new pipelines, pump stations, reservoir tanks, and lift stations. Operation
of these conveyance systems and ancillary facilities would not result in the development
of a typical land use that results in nuisance odors. Therefore, impacts associated with
objectionable odors during operation would be less than significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Pians PEIR 15 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon odors from construction would be less than significant.

d. Impact: The proposed program would result in less than significant effects associated
with greenhouse gas emissions.

Facts in Support of Finding: The primary source of GHG emissions attributed to the
proposed projects would be from construction over the next 20 years of buildout. It is
anticipated that the annual GHG emissions for an individual project would not exceed
10,000 MT/year of COse. As such, the FMP projects would not generate, either directly
or indirectly, substantial GHG emissions. The proposed program would result in less than
significant effects associated with greenhouse gas emissions because the program would
not generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a
significant impact on the environment.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon greenhouse gas emissions would be less than significant.

e. Impact: The proposed program would not conflict with an applicable plan, policy or
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases.

Facts in Support of Finding:

Consistency with AB 32

The GHG emissions generated by the construction and operation of the proposed
program would not exceed the SCAQMD’s recommended threshold of 10,000 MTCOe
fyear for non-industrial projects. The primary source of GHG emissions generated by
program implementation would occur during construction, which would be temporary in
nature. Additionally, as the program is not a land use project, GHG emissions associated
with mobile sources would only occur from periodic vehicle trips by workers for
inspection and maintenance purposes, which would not generate substantial emissions.
The annual GHG emissions associated with the operation of the facility improvements
and pump stations would also generate GHG emissions during the operation of the plan.
Consequently, the implementation of the program would not generate substantial
amounts of GHG emissions that would hinder the State’s ability to achieve AB 32°s goal
of achieving 1990 levels of GHG emissions by 2020, and this impact would be less than
significant.

Consistency with County of San Bernardino GHG Reduction Plan

The County adopted its GHG Reduction Plan in 2014. The Plan identifies existing
wastewater treatment GHG emissions in the County and estimates that unmitigated
emissions would increase by 11 percent by the year 2020. Total wastewater GHG

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 16 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017




IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement o?Overriding Considerations

emissions represent 0.5 percent of the total GHG emissions in the County. The Reduction
Plan includes the following three wastewater measures: methane capture produced during
wastewater treatment processes (Wastewater-1), upgrade and replace wastewater
treatment and pumping equipment with more energy efficient equipment (Wastewater-2),
and increased use of recycled and treated wastewater for non-potable water demand
(Wastewater-3).

IEUA, which serves the cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Fontana, Rancho Cucamonga,
Montclair, Upland, and Ontario, already captures 100% of generated methane and
combusts 25% of this methane to generate electricity, so the proposed program is
consistent with reduction measure Wastewater-1. In addition, the proposed treatment
facility upgrades included in the FMP are consistent with reduction measures
Wastewater-2 and Wastewater-3. The proposed program would result in less than
significant effects on a greenhouse gas plan because the program would not conflict with
an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions
of greenhouse gases.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon a plan, policy, or regulation that reduces greenhouse gas emissions would
be less than significant.

3.1.1.4 Biological Resources

a.

Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on habitat because the
program could have a substantial adverse effect on riparian habitat or other sensitive
natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the
CDFG or USFWS.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed facility upgrades would occur within the
boundaries of the existing facilities. Within the existing boundaries of these facilities, the
area is devoid of riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community habitat and contain
above ground and below ground structural improvements. The implementation of the
upgrades would not have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other
sensitive natural community habitat. Therefore, the implementation of the upgrades and
improvements within Project Category 1 would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon riparian habitat would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on wetlands because the
program could have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as
defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh,
vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or
other means.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 17 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR -
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed facility upgrades would occur within the
boundaries of the existing facilities. Within the existing boundaries of these facilities, the
area is devoid of federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean
Water Act. The implementation of the upgrades would not have a substantial adverse
effect on any wetlands. Therefore, the implementation of the upgrades and improvements
within Project Category 1 would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon federally protected wetlands would be less than significant.

c. Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on the movement of
species because the program could interfere substantially with the movement of any
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or
migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites.

Facts in Support of Finding: Implementation of the proposed treatment facility
upgrades would occur within the boundaries of the existing treatment facilities that would
not support migratory corridors. The proposed pipelines are anticipated to be located
underground and within existing roadway rights-of-way. Therefore, the proposed
pipelines would result in a less than significant impact on the movement of native
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or impede the use of migratory wildlife
corridors or native wildlife nursery sites.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon wildlife corridors and nursery sites would be less than significant.

d. Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on a conservation plan
because the program could have conflicts with the provisions of an adopted habitat
conservation plan, natural community conservation plan, or other approved local,
regional, or state habitat conservation plan.

Facts in Support of Finding: The implementation of the proposed upgrades at the

treatment facilities would not conflict with an adopted habitat or natural community
conservation plan because the existing treatment facilities are not included within a
habitat or natural community conservation plan.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon conservation plans would not be significant.

3.1.1.5 Cultural Resources

a. Impact: The proposed program could have significant and effects on human remains.
IEUA Facilites Master Plans PEIR 18 ESA/ 150283.07

Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of the Finding: All projects would subject to state law regarding
discovery of human remains, including PRC Section 5097.98 and Health and Safety Code
Section 7050.5. If human remains are encountered, IEUA or its contractor shall halt work
in the vicinity (within 100 feet) of the find and contact the San Bernardino County
Coroner in accordance with PRC Section 5097.98 and Health and Safety Code Section
7050.5. If the County Coroner determines that the remains are Native American, the
NAHC will be notified in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5,
subdivision (c), and PRC Section 5097.98. The NAHC will designate an MLD for the
remains per PRC Section 5097.98. Until the landowner has conferred with the MLD,
IEUA shall ensure that the immediate vicinity where the discovery occurred is not
disturbed by further activity, is adequately protected according to generally accepted
cultural or archaeological standards or practices, and that further activities take into
account the possibility of multiple burials. Compliance with state law provisions is
required and potential impacts to human remains would be less than significant.
Adherence to applicable regulations and implementing guidelines related to the
inadvertent discovery of human remains would result in less than significant impacts.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon human remains would be less than significant.

3.1.1.6 Geology, Soils, and Mineral Resources

a.

Impact: The proposed program could potentially expose people or structures to adverse
geologic effects, including the risk of loss, injury or death involving rupture of a known
earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning
Map or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault; strong seismic ground
shaking; or seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction or landslides.

Facts in Support of Finding:

Fault Rupture

None of the proposed treatment facilities would be within the boundaries of designated
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zones, so no fault rupture is expected, and no impact
would occur. Therefore, the risk of the project exposing people or structures to loss, injury,
or death involving rupture of an active earthquake fault would be unlikely, and therefore,
no impact would occur.

Seismic Ground Shaking

The structural elements of projects would undergo appropriate design-level geotechnical
evaluations prior to final design and construction as required to comply with the CBC.
The geotechnical engineer, as a registered professional with the State of California, is
required to comply with the CBC and local codes while applying standard engineering
practice and the appropriate standard of care required for projects in the San Bernardino

IEUA Faciiiies Master Plans PEIR 19 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

County area. The California Professional Engineers Act (Building and Professions Code
Sections 6700-6799), and the Codes of Professional Conduct, as administered by the
California Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors, provides the basis for
regulating and enforcing engineering practice in California. In addition, the pipelines
would be constructed according to industry standards using American Water Works
Association (AWWA) guidelines. Compliance with these construction and building
safety design standards would reduce potential impacts associated with ground shaking to
less than significant.

Landslide

Landslides and mudflow hazards exist throughout the IEUA service area on steep
hillsides and in creek and streambed areas. Though some areas are susceptible to
landslides, all treatment facilities are located on flat terrain that would have very low
susceptibility to landslides. Therefore, no impacts related to landslides are expected to
occur.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon seismic groundshaking, fault rupture, and landslides would be less than
significant.

b. Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant effects from soil erosion
or the loss of topsoil.

Facts in Support of the Finding: To prevent erosion associated with runoff from
construction sites for each proposed project, IEUA would be required to prepare and
implement a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) in accordance with the
requirements of the statewide Construction General Permit (CGP) (SWRCB Water
Quality Order 2009-0009-DWQ). The SWPPP would identify best management practices
(BMPs) to control erosion, sedimentation, and hazardous materials potentially released
from construction sites into surface waters. Compliance with the CGP, required SWPPP,
and identified BMPs would ensure soil erosion and loss of topsoil impacts would be
reduced to less than significant. Adherence to the SCAQMD Rule 403, CGP, SWPPP,
and associated BMPs would ensure that potential soil erosion and loss of topsoil impacts
would be minimized to less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon soil erosion or topsoil loss would be less than significant.

c. Impact: The proposed program would have no impact on soils incapable of adequately
supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems where
sewers are not available for the disposal of waste.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 20 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017




- IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of the Finding: Implementation of proposed upgrades would not
include facilities that would require the use of septic systems. The majority of facilities
would be upgrades to existing infrastructure, wells, pipelines, and other water
conveyance facilities that do not require septic systems. There is no planned use of on-
site septic systems for the proposed project facilities. The proposed program would have
no impact on soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or
alternative waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal
of waste water because the program does not include the use of septic tanks or alternative
waste water disposal systems.,

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon wastewater disposal systems would be less than significant.

d. Impact: The proposed program would have a less than significant impacts on mineral
resources because the program would not result in the loss of availability of a known
mineral resource that would be of value to the region and residents of the state.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The proposed treatment facility upgrades would be
constructed within existing IEUA treatment facilities. Regionally significant mineral
resources are not known to occur within the existing treatment facilities. Therefore, the
proposed upgrades would not prevent the future availability of a known regionally-
significant mineral resource to be obtained in other portions of the County. No impact
would occur for Project Category 1 activities.

Implementation of the proposed conveyance facilities would be located within existing
rights-of-way that would not include areas actively being excavated or prevent areas from
being accessed for future extraction of mineral resources. The proposed ancillary
facilities such as pump stations would not be large enough to interfere with the
exploitation of mineral resources. Therefore, implementation of improvements within
Project Category 2 would not result in the loss of availability mineral resource that would
be of value to the region and residents of the state. Impacts would be less than significant.

Proposed recharge basins, which could have the largest footprint of any of the proposed
IEUA facilities, would not include any ancillary facility that would be large enough to
interfere with the exploration of future mineral resources. Additionally if a recharge basin
were to be implemented within a mineral resource zone, it would not prohibit the future
extraction of mineral resources after the life span of the recharge basin. Therefore,
implementation of the proposed facilities would not result in the loss of availability of
mineral resource that would be of value to the region and residents of the state. The
proposed program would have a less than significant impacts on mineral resources
because the program would not result in the loss of availability of a known mineral
resource that would be of value to the region and residents of the state.

IEUA Facilities Master Pians PEIR 21 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017




IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon mineral resources would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have a less than significant impacts to locally
important mineral resources and would not include facilities large enough to interfere
with locally important mineral resources recovery sites as delineated on a local general
plan, specific plan or other land use plan.

Facts in Support of the Finding: Based on the review of the City of Chino, Ontario, and
Rancho Cucamonga General Plans, none of the proposed treatment facility sites are
located within mineral resources recovery sites that contain locally important minerals.
The facilities implemented under Category 2 would not be large enough to interfere with
locally important mineral resources recovery sites. Impacts would be less than
significant. Proposed recharge basins, which could have the largest footprint of any of the
proposed IEUA facilities, would not include any ancillary facility that would be large
enough to interfere with the exploration of future mineral resources. Therefore,
implementation of the proposed facilities would not result in the loss of availability of
locally important mineral resources. Impacts would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon the loss of mineral resources recovery sites would be less than significant.

3.1.1.7 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

a.

Impact: The proposed program would result in less than significant hazards to the public
or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials.

Facts in Support of the Finding: Compliance with all applicable federal, State and local
regulations regarding the handling, storage, transportation, and disposal of hazardous
materials would reduce potential impacts to the public or the environment related to the
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials to less than significant.

The use of hazardous materials and substances during operation would be subject to the
federal, state, and local health and safety requirements for the handling, storage,
transportation, and disposal of hazardous materials, summarized in the Regulatory
Framework. Compliance with these laws would minimize the potential impacts to the
public or environment due to routine transport, storage, and use of hazardous materials.
Impacts would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon routine use of hazardous materials would be less than significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 22 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Impact: The proposed program would result in less than significant hazards to the public
or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions
involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment.

Facts in Support of the Finding: IEUA is required to comply with all relevant and
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations that pertain to the accidental
release of hazardous materials during construction of proposed facilities such as Health
and Safety Code, Section 2550 et seq. Compliance with all applicable federal, state and
local regulations would reduce potential impacts to the public or the environment
regarding accidental release of hazardous materials to less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon accident conditions involving hazardous materials would be less than
significant.

Impact: The proposed program would result in less than significant impacts from
emitting hazardous emissions or handling hazardous or acutely hazardous materials,
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school.

Facts in Support of the Finding: There are no schools within one-quarter mile of the
CCWRF, RP-5, RP-2, RP-1, IERCF, and RP-4. Therefore, construction and operation of
treatment facilities would not emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous materials,
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school. There
would be no impacts.

Due to the potentially extensive nature of facilities associated with implementing the
proposed pipelines and ancillary facilities under Project Category 2, it is possible that
construction of proposed facilities would occur within one-quarter mile of a school.
Compliance with all applicable federal, state and local regulations would reduce potential
impacts to the public or the environment regarding hazardous waste emissions within
one-quarter mile of a school. Impacts would be less than significant.

Compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local regulations would reduce
potential impacts to the public or the environment regarding hazardous waste emissions
within one-quarter mile of a school to less than significant levels.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon schools due to release and handling of hazardous materials would be less
than significant.

Impact: The proposed program could be located on a site which is included on a list of
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and,
as a result, could create significant hazard impacts to the public or the environment.

IEUA Facilities Master Pians PEIR 23 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



|EUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of Finding: The hazardous sites analysis undertaken for this program,
including records search on the SWRCB GeoTracker and the DTSC EnviroStor
databases, revealed multiple listed and active sites within the IEUA service area, however
there are no hazardous waste sites identified within or adjacent to the IEUA treatment
facilities’ sites. Therefore, construction and operation of treatment facilities’ upgrades
would not create a hazard to the public or environment. No impacts would occur.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon hazardous materials sites would not be significant.

Impact: The proposed program could be located within an airport land use plan or within
two miles of a public airport, public use airport, or private airstrip, which could result in
significant safety hazards for people residing or working in the project area.

Facts in Support of Finding: The following three airports are located within IEUA’s
service area boundaries: the Chino Airport, the LA/Ontario International Airport, and the
Cable Airport in Upland. There are no private airstrips located within the IEUA service
area. Project facilities would be located in zones that do not substantially expose short-
term construction workers or long-term employees to risks. Impacts would be less than
significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon treatment facility upgrades being located within an airport land use plan would be
less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program could impair implementation of or physically interfere
with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan, and as a result
could result in significant emergency impacts.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed projects would not impair implementation of
or physically interfere with adopted emergency response plans or emergency evacuation
plans.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon interference with emergency plans would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program could have significant wildfire impact on people or
structures due to the intermixing of urbanize areas with wildlands.

Facts in Support of Finding: Construction within existing IEUA footprints would not
increase wildfire risks. Conveyance facilities would distribute recycled and treated water
throughout the service area, and these facilities would not be constructed of flammable
materials or involve any spark-producing activities. Additionally, all ancillary facilities

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 24 ESA / 150283.07

Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

such as pump stations would be unmanned and would only require routine maintenance,
therefore, no people would be exposed to a significant risk involving wildland fires.
Operational impacts of the proposed plan facilities would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon wildland fires would be less than significant.

3.1.1.8 Hydrology and Water Quality

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant impacts to water quality
standards or waste discharge requirements.

Facts in Support of the Finding: TEUA would be required to acquire coverage under the
statewide Construction General Permit (CGP) (SWRCB Water Quality Order 2009-0009-
DWQ) by complying with the CGP and preparing and implementing a SWPPP. The
SWPPP would include BMPs to control erosion, sedimentation, and hazardous materials
release from construction sites into surface waters. Compliance with the SWPPP BMPs
and other conditions of the CGP and SWPPP would ensure impacts to water quality are
less than significant.

Compliance with the NPDES permit would ensure that discharge to all creeks would
meet surface water quality objectives. Impacts would be less than significant. The FMP
also includes a program to reduce septic system use in the service area. IEUA would
expand the collection system to areas not currently served with wastewater collection
facilities. Septic leach fields introduce nutrients to the ground that can migrate to the
groundwater basin. The reduction of septic system use would improve groundwater
quality through the reduction of infiltration from septic systems. There would be no
adverse impact to water quality resulting from septic system diversions.

Discharge of the treated effluent into proposed Project Category 3 recharge basins and
injection wells would comply with the DDW recycled water regulations contained in
Title 22 of the CCR, subject to conditions imposed by the RWQCB pursuant to WRRs
and WDRs. Compliance with NPDES discharge regulations with approval from the
RWQCB would ensure that the proposed project would not result in significant impacts
to surface or groundwater quality.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon water quality standards and waste discharge requirements would be less than
significant.

Impact: The proposed program could have significant groundwater impacts due to
potentially depleting groundwater supplies or interfering with groundwater recharge such
that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local groundwater
table level.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 25 ESA / 150283.07

Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR . - o
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed treatment facilities upgrades include
expansion and construction of new facilities to increase capacity of wastewater treatment
at the IEUA assets. Construction and operation of the proposed projects would have no
direct effect on groundwater supplies or interfere with groundwater recharge such that
there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local groundwater
table. No impact would occur.

The proposed upgrades and expansion of conveyance systems and ancillary facilities
such as pump stations would aid in transporting recycled water treated to Title 22
standards to discharge locations, other IEUA assets, recharge basins, or injection wells.
Construction and operation of the proposed projects would have no adverse effect on
groundwater supplies or interfere with groundwater recharge such that there would be a
net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table.

Dry weather diversions would not deplete groundwater supplies or substantially reduce
annual surface water flows reaching Prado Basin. Impacts would be less than significant.
The diversion of leach field infiltration to a centralized recycled water system would be
used to meet regional water demands and would not adversely affect groundwater
supplies in the region.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon groundwater supplies and recharge would be less than significant.

c. Impact: The proposed program could have significant groundwater impacts due to
potentially altering the existing drainage pattern of a site or area, including the alteration
of the course of a stream or river, in a manner that would result in substantial erosion,
siltation, or flooding on-or off-site.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed treatment plant facilities would not alter the
course of a stream or river. The surface waters located adjacent to CCWRF and RP-1 are
concrete-lined channels and thus have a set drainage pattern. Because the channels
adjacent to the CCWRF and RP-1 are concrete-lined, no erosion or siltation would occur.
The remaining IEUA assets are not adjacent to any streams or river channels, and
therefore would not alter the drainage course of a stream or river. No impacts would
occur.

The construction of proposed facilities would require activities such as pavement
breaking, ditching, excavation and demolition, which would temporarily alter each site’s
existing ground surface and drainage patterns. Compliance with the CGP, SWPPP, or San
Bernardino County MS4 Permit, would require the implementation of BMPs that manage
overland runoff from construction sites and establish permanent drainage pathways to
stabilized outlets. With implementation of such BMPs and compliance with conditions of
required permits governing storm water runoff from construction sites, potential onsite
and offsite flooding impacts would be reduced to less than significant levels and
discharges from construction sites would not exceed the capacity of existing storm water

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 26 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017




IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

drainage systems. Erosion or siltation from construction sites also would be minimized to
less than significant levels.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon drainage patterns due to construction of program facilities would be less than
significant.

d. Impact: The proposed program would not place housing within a 100-year flood hazard
area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or
other authoritative flood hazard delineation map.

Facts in Support of the Finding: RP-2 is located within a 100-year flood hazard area;
however, this treatment plant would be demolished over time and would not expose
people to substantial risk regarding flooding. Furthermore, no housing is proposed for the
FMP projects, therefore, the proposed projects would not place any housing within a 100-
year flood hazard area. No impacts would occur.

Portions of the IEUA service area are within a 100-year flood zone. However, the
proposed program involves the construction of treatment facilities, conveyance systems,
and groundwater recharge facilities; no housing is proposed as part of the program, and
the program facilities would not displace any existing housing such that replacement
housing would be developed in a flood zone. There would be no impact related to the
placement of housing within a 100-year flood zone.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon placing housing within flood hazard areas would not be significant.

e. Impact: The proposed program could have significant flooding impacts on structures
because the program could place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures that could
impede or redirect flood flows.

Facts in Support of Finding: RP-2 is the only IEUA asset located within a 100-year
flood zone. However, RP-2 would be demolished over the next 20 years and therefore,
the proposed projects located at that treatment plant would not place any structure within
a 100-year flood hazard zone that could impede or redirect flows. All other treatment
facilities upgrades would be implemented outside of a 100-year flood zone. There would
be no impact.

The proposed recharge basins could be located within a 100-year flood zone. The
recharge basins could impede and potentially redirect flood flows. However, the recharge
basins would increase the capacity of stormwater percolation and reduce the velocity of
downstream flows, thereby resulting in a less than significant environmental effect.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 27 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon placing structures within flood hazard areas would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant impacts regarding the
exposure of people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving
flooding, including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam.

Facts in Support of the Finding: All of IEUA assets are located outside of dam
inundation zones, therefore flood impacts to those facilities and employees would not be
significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon levee or dam failure would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have not expose people or structures to a
significant risk of loss, injury or death involving inundation by seiche, tsunami, or
mudflow.

Facts in Support of the Finding: In general, the proposed FMP projects would be
located in relatively flat areas that would not be susceptible to mudflows. Furthermore,
none of the proposed projects would be located near the coast. The IEUA service area is
located 25 miles east of the Pacific Ocean; therefore impacts related to tsunamis would
not result. None of the proposed facilities would be located adjacent to any large standing
water bodies that could experience a seiche.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon a seiche, tsunami or mudflows would not be significant.

3.1.1.9 Land Use and Planning

a.

Impact: The proposed program would not physically divide an established community.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The program does not propose any action that could
physically divide an established community. The physical division of an established
community generally refers to the construction of features such as an interstate highway,
railroad tracks, or permanent removal of a means of access, such as a local road or bridge
that would impact mobility within an existing community or between a community and
outlying area.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon dividing an established community would not be significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 28 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Fﬂaings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Impact: The proposed program would have a less than significant impacts associated
with an applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over
the project.

Facts in Support of the Finding: Treatment facility upgrades would be located within
existing treatment plants designated for this use. All facility upgrades would be consistent
with the character of the existing facility and would not substantially alter the existing
character of the facilities. Pipelines and ancillary facilities would be installed primarily
within or adjacent to public rights-of-way to the extent feasible and would not conflict
with land use designations or be incompatible with neighboring land uses. Per
Government Code Section 53091, building ordinances of local cities or counties do not
apply to the location or construction of facilities for the projection, generation, storage,
treatment, or transmission of water or wastewater. IEUA would determine the most
suitable locations to place facilities, taking into consideration surrounding land uses.
IEUA would coordinate directly with local agencies with jurisdiction to ensure
compatibility with existing adjacent land uses. Therefore, impacts would be less than
significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon conflicts with applicable plans, policies, or regulations would be less than
significant.

3.1.1.10 Noise

a.

Impact: The proposed program could have significant impacts on the exposure of
persons to or generation of, noise levels in excess of standards established in the local
general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies.

Facts in Support of Finding: All treatment plant facility upgrades would be installed
and implemented within the existing treatment plant footprints. Construction noise
standards and/or regulations that would apply to each of the FMP projects would depend
on the cities of Chino, Ontario, and Rancho Cucamonga. Noise during construction of
treatment facilities may exceed local construction noise standards or violate local
construction noise regulations.

Based on the information presented in Table 3.10-9 of the Draft PEIR , the closest
sensitive receptor to the treatment plants are residents located 420 feet west of the Carbon
Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF). This distance is far enough away that the
residents would not be impacted by excessive noise, particularly since construction
activities would occur during daylight hours. Furthermore, the remaining five treatment
plants are located far enough away from sensitive receptors that no significant noise level
impacts would occur during construction. As such, impacts would be less than
significant.

IEVA Faciliies Master Plans PEIR 29 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overri&ivhgiCOnsiderations

Once construction of a proposed treatment facility upgrades has been completed, the
surrounding off-site land uses would be exposed to operational noise levels generated by
the new aboveground facilities. Treatment facilities have the potential to generate the
most operational noise due to operation of heating, ventilating, and air conditioning
(HVAC) equipment and other mechanical equipment such as fans, pumps, air
compressors, chillers, turbines, etc. However, the new facilities would be designed to
meet acoustic performance criteria that would comply with the local ambient noise
standards at the facility fence-line for a stationary noise source. Furthermore, sensitive
receptors are located far enough away from the treatment facilities such that noise levels
increases would not be experienced. Impacts would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon exceedance of established noise standards from treatment plant facility
upgrades would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program could have significant impacts on persons and structures
from ground-borne vibration or ground-borne noise levels.

Facts in Support of Finding: The closest sensitive receptor to the treatment plants are
far enough way that the residents would not be impacted by vibration levels or ground-
borne noise levels that would result in building damage or human annoyance. No impacts
would occur.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon exposure to vibration levels would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program could have a significant permanent increase in ambient
noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without the project.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed improvements to treatment facilities would
comply with local noise standards during operations. As seen in Table 3.10-9, sensitive
receptors are located far enough away from treatment plant facilities that no increases of
operational noise would be experienced by the receptors. Thus, the project’s operational
noise would not increase ambient noise levels at nearby noise-sensitive receptors. No
impact would occur.

The traffic volumes associated with the projects would generally be minimal. Worker
trips to the pump stations and injection and extraction wells would be required for
inspection and maintenance purposes and these visits would only occur periodically
throughout the month. These periodic trips are not expected to result in a doubling of
traffic volumes on the local roadways; therefore the noise impacts associated with the
project’s operational traffic noise levels would be less than significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 30 ESA/ 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon permanent increase in ambient noise levels would be less than significant.

d. Impact: The proposed program could have a significant temporary or periodic increase
in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above existing levels existing without the
project.

Facts in Support of Finding: Sensitive receptors are located far enough away from
treatment plant facilities that no construction noise would be heard from the receptors.
Thus, the project’s construction noise would not temporary increase ambient noise levels
at nearby noise-sensitive receptors. No impact would occur.

In addition to noise levels generated at construction sites, construction-related traffic
volumes on local roadways would also raise the ambient noise levels along haul routes,
depending on the number of haul trips made and types of vehicles used. Consequently,
noise-sensitive land uses that front or are located in proximity to these roadways would
be exposed to increased ambient noise levels. However, due to the urban environment of
the project area, the local roadway networks would be expected to consist of existing
high traffic volumes that result in existing high traffic noise levels. As the project’s
construction traffic for each project is not expected to result in a doubling of traffic
volumes on a local roadway, the noise impacts associated with the project’s construction
traffic noise levels would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon temporary increases in ambient noise levels for treatment facility upgrades and
operation of pipelines would be less than significant.

e. Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant noise level impacts on
people residing or working within two miles of a public airport, public use airport, or
private airstrip.

Facts in Support of Finding: The City of Chino Airport is located approximately 1.7
miles southwest of RP-2; 1.7 miles west of RP-5; and 2.6 miles northwest of CCWREF.
The City of Ontario International Airport is located approximately 1.7 miles north of RP-
1. Furthermore, there are no treatment facilities that require full time employees within 2
miles of the Cable Airport.

All full-time employees would be at least a 1.5 miles away from the three airports.
Employees may occasionally hear airplanes pass by overhead; however the employees
would not be exposed to substantial, long-term airport-related noise. Therefore the
proposed projects would not expose persons to excessive airport-related noise levels.
Exposure to airport noise would be a less than significant impact.

IEVA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 31 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017




IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Proposed pipelines, pump stations, recharge basins, or wells could be constructed and
operated within 2 miles of an airport. There would be no habitable structures proposed for
these facilities. Furthermore, maintenance and inspection of the proposed pipelines and
ancillary facilities would be minimal during project operations. Therefore the proposed
projects would not expose persons to excessive airport-related noise levels. Exposure to
airport noise would be a less than significant impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon public airport noise would be less than significant.

3.1.1.11 Population and Housing

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant population growth
inducement impacts.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The proposed FMP does not include construction of
new homes or businesses that would result in a direct increase in population or create a
substantial numbers of jobs. Upgrading of public services to meet modern standards of
efficiency, water supply reliability, and public health would occur irrespective of growth
rates in the service area. Therefore, the implementation of the proposed facilities would
result in less than significant impacts related to indirect inducement of population growth.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon population growth would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant impacts to housing and
would not displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the
construction of replacement housing elsewhere.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The proposed improvements to the treatment facilities
do not include the demolition of any dwelling units. The improvements would be
constructed within the existing treatment plant boundaries, and there are no existing
dwelling units within the existing facilities. Therefore, the project would have no impact
with regard to the displacement of existing housing units, nor would it necessitate the
construction of replacement housing elsewhere.

The project includes the construction of pipelines within existing rights-of-way (ROWs)
and ancillary facilities adjacent to the proposed pipelines. The implementation of
pipelines and ancillary facilities could result in the removal of a limited amount existing
housing units. Therefore, the proposed pipelines and ancillary facilities would have a less
than significant impact with regard to the displacement of existing housing units.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 32 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Impacts would be the same for Project Category 3 projects. Given the amount of future
housing forecast to be developed over the next 25 years, the proposed project would not
necessitate the construction of replacement housing elsewhere.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon displacement of housing would not be significant.

Impact: The proposed program would not displace substantial numbers of people,
necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed FMP would not displace any housing; it also
would not displace people or any other structures that are occupied by people.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon displacement of people would not be significant.

3.1.1.12 Public Services

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have no impact associated with the provision of,
or the need for, new or physically altered police or fire protection facilities, the
construction of which could cause environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable
service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives for fire and police
services.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The proposed treatment facility upgrades do not
include new fire departments, police stations or expansion of existing fire and police
protection facilities. The facility upgrades would not directly induce substantial
population growth in the IEUA service area. The implementation of the proposed
pipelines and ancillary facilities would not result in a permanent increase in employees;
however, construction activities would increase temporary employees. Employment
opportunities associated with the construction activities would be temporary, are assumed
to be filled by the local economy based on the available unemployed population, and is
not forecast to result in the demand for housing. Because the proposed improvements
would not result in the permanent increase in residences or population, no increase in the
need for new fire or police protection facilities would occur. As a result, no
environmental effects would occur because construction of a new police or fire facility
would not be required.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon fire and police protection would not be significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have no impact associated with the provision of,
or the need for, new school facilities, the construction of which could cause

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 33 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



|IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable performance objectives for the
school district.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed treatment facility upgrades would not
directly induce substantial population growth in the IEUA service area. Approximately
35 new fulltime employees would be required to operate facility components. As a worst-
case assumption, the 35 new employees could result in the demand for 35 new housing
units that could generate school-age children. This potential increase in students would be
considered nominal and would not require new schools in order to maintain acceptable
performance objectives. Because the project would not require the construction of new
schools, no environmental effects from school construction would occur.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon schools would not be significant.

c. Impact: The proposed program could have significant physical impacts associated with
the provision of, or the need for, new or physically altered parks and recreation facilities,
the construction of which could cause environmental impacts, in order to maintain
acceptable performance objectives for parks and recreation.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed treatment facility upgrades would not
interfere with or have direct adverse impacts on parks because the proposed upgrades
would occur within the existing treatment plants and the existing treatment plants do not
include any park or recreation facilities. The proposed upgrades could indirectly increase
the use of park facilities within the IEUA service area because the proposed upgrades
could result in the need for approximately 35 new employees. As a worst-case
assumption, the 35 new employees could result in the demand for 35 new housing units.
An increased demand of 35 new housing units are within the housing projections
anticipated to accommodate the population growth expected to occur within the IEUA
service area. This increase would be nominal in the context of the 25 year forecast for
background population growth within the IEUA service area and would not trigger the
need for new or altered parks and recreational facilities to maintain acceptable
performance objectives. Because the project would not require the construction of new
park and recreational facilities, no environmental effects from park and recreational
facility construction would occur.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon parks and other facilities from treatment facility upgrades would not be
significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 34 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

3.1.1.13 Recreation
a. Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant park impacts from the

increased use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities
such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated

Facts in Support of the Finding: The proposed facility upgrades would be placed
within existing facilities and would not result in substantial adverse physical impacts to
any neighborhood parks, regional parks, or other recreational facilities. The project would
not substantially induce population growth, such as a residential housing project that
would result in impacts to recreational facilities due to increased use. The proposed
facilities would not increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other
recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would
occur or be accelerated. Impacts would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon increased use of recreational facilities would not be significant.

Impact: The proposed program could have significant impacts on recreational facilities
thus require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an
adverse physical effect on the environment.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed treatment facility upgrades would be located
within existing treatment facilities. These existing facilities do not include any park or
recreational facilities. Therefore, the improvements proposed within the existing
treatment facilities would not impact existing parks or recreational facilities. Because the
proposed improvements would not physically impact existing parks or recreational
facilities, no new or expanded park or recreational facility would be required with the
implementation of the proposed facilities. Therefore, no physical effect on the
environment would occur related to new or expanded park or recreational facilities
because the proposed improvements would not require new or expanded park or
recreational facilities.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon recreational facilities physical effect on the environment from treatment
facility upgrades would not be significant.

3.1.1.14 Utilities

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have a less than significant effects regarding
wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control
Board.

Facts in Support of Finding: The project would include future upgrades at existing
treatment facilities. The discharge of tertiary-treated effluent treated to Title 22 levels

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 35 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

from the existing treatment plants are currently subject to waste discharge requirements
regulated by the SARWQCB under Order No. R8-2015-0036, Waste Discharge
Requirements and Master Reclamation Permit for Inland Empire Utility Agency Regional
Water Recycling Facilities Surface Water Discharges and Recycled Water Use. Effluent
quality standards require tertiary treatment with filters and disinfection equivalent to Title
22 requirements for recycled water, due to the use of the receiving water for recreation.
The proposed upgrades would comply with the provisions of the Order. The treatment
facility upgrades would be designed to comply with the applicable treatment and
discharge requirements of Order No. R8-2015-0036. Compliance with permit limitations
would ensure that impacts would be less than significant.

Compliance with the requirements and conditions of the Title 22 Engineering Report,
WDRs, and WRRs would ensure that the proposed project does not exceed wastewater
treatment requirements of the SARWQCB. Impacts would be considered less than
significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, IEUA hereby finds that the program’s impacts
upon wastewater treatment requires would be less than significant.

b. Impact: The proposed program would have no impacts associated with the need for
construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing
facilities, the construction of which could cause environmental effects, in order to
maintain acceptable service.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed facilities within Project Category 1 would
include the construction or expansion of existing IEUA treatment plant facilities.
Construction workers would temporarily require use of portable sanitary units during
construction of the proposed projects. Wastewater generated and the demand for water
during construction of the proposed projects would be minimal and would not require the
construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities. Because construction of new
or expanded facilities is not required to accommodate the FMP projects, there would be
no construction impacts associated with the provision of these facilities to serve the FMP
projects.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon water or wastewater treatment facilities would not be significant

c. Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant effects from new or
expanded water supply resources or entitlements.

Facts in Support of Finding: Water demand and water supply are expected to increase
incrementally from 2016 through 2035. The FMP projects are specifically designed to
provide a more efficient and effective program for managing water resources within the
IEUA service area. Implementation of the project would serve to meet the existing and

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 36 ESA/ 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilites Master Plans PEIR

(N

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

future demand of development for the service area. The project is not forecast to create
substantial growth or demand for new connections that would place additional demand on
the existing water supply system that beyond that anticipated in the individual
Jurisdictions’ General Plans. Impacts to water supply resulting from project
implementation would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon water supplies would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant effects on wastewater
treatment capacity.

Facts in Suppori of the Finding: The project would upgrade existing treatment
facilities. Wastewater generated during construction and operation of the proposed
facilities would be minimal; therefore, impacts related to available wastewater treatment
capacity would be less than significant

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon wastewater treatment capacity would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant impacts on solid waste
disposal facilities.

Facts in Support of Finding: Each of the improvements and demolition activities would
include the preparation of a construction and demolition solid waste management plan as
required by San Bernardino County for all new construction projects (County of San
Bernardino, 2016). The plan would demonstrate a minimum of 50 percent diversion of
construction building materials and demolition debris from landfills through reuse or
recycling. Operation the proposed treatment facilities would generate additional biosolids
as a byproduct of the wastewater treatment process. These biosolids would be sent to
IEUA Biosolids Handling Facilities at RP-5, once relocated from RP-2, and the IERCF to
be reused as soil amendments, or would be disposed of at appropriate landfills similar to
existing operations conducted at IEUA treatment facilities. The proposed facility
upgrades would not substantially increase the amount of biosolids generated in the
region.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon landfill capacity would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than significant effects associated with
solid waste federal, state, and local statutes and regulations.

|IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 37 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed projects would comply with all city and
County construction and demolition requirements during construction of the proposed
facilities as described above in the regulatory setting. All excavated soil would be hauled
offsite by truck to an appropriately permitted solid waste facility. The daily amount of
soil to be disposed per day would not exceed the maximum permitted throughput for each
waste type (i.e., non-hazardous and hazardous). It is possible that soil disposal for one
day could consist of one type (non-hazardous and hazardous). Based on this, there would
be adequate maximum permitted daily throughput for each category. The proposed
project would be in compliance with all federal, State, and local statues related to solid
waste disposal. Therefore, the proposed project would result in less than significant
construction impacts.

The cities and County in which the project would be located are required to comply with
the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, requiring diversion of solid
waste from landfills through reuse and recycling. The project would be required to
recycle during its operation.

Impacts for Project category 2 and 3 projects would be the same. Project impacts related
to potential noncompliance with solid waste statutes and regulations would be less than
significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
impacts upon compliance with solid waste regulations and statutes would be less than
significant.

3.1.2 Cumulative Impacts
3.1.2.1 Agriculture and Forestry Resources

a. Impact: The proposed program would have no cumulative impact on existing zoning, or
cause rezoning of, forest land, timberland, or timberland zoned Timberland Production.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The proposed projects would not conflict with existing
zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land, timberland, or timberland zoned Timberland
Production; and therefore would not contribute to any cumulative effect on forest or
timberland.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon existing zoning for forest land and timberland
would not be significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 38 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Fiﬁdings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Impact: The proposed program would have no contribution to cumulative impacts
regarding the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use.

Facts in Support of the Finding: There is no forest land within the IEUA service area.
The proposed FMP projects would not result in a loss of forest land or conversion of
forest land to non-forest use, therefore, the FMP would not cumulatively contribute to the
loss of forest land or conversion of forest land. Therefore, the FMP would result in no
cumulative impacts.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon loss or conversions of forest land would not be
significant.

3.1.2.2 Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable effects
on implementation of the South Coast Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) because
the program would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the AQMP.

Facts in Support of the Finding: Future cumulative development in the IEUA service
area could introduce land uses that could induce growth, such as residential or
commercial developments, and could be inconsistent with a city’s or county general plan.
Therefore, cumulative development has a potential to impact growth projections and thus
the AQMP. Cumulative impacts on the AQMP could be cumulatively significant.
Because the proposed FMP projects would not induce growth or conflict with the
implementation of the AQMP, the project’s contribution to cumulative impacts
associated with the AQMP would be less than cumulatively considerable.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon the SCAQMD Plan would be less than
significant.

Impact: The proposed program would result in less than cumulatively considerable
effects associated with greenhouse gas emissions because the program would not
generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a
significant impact on the environment.

Facts in Support of Finding: The increased concentration of GHGs in the atmosphere
has been linked to global warming, which can lead to climate change. Construction and
operation of the proposed projects would incrementally contribute to GHG emissions
along with past, present and future activities. As such, impacts of GHG emissions are
analyzed on a cumulative basis.

IEUA Fagilities Master Plans PEIR 39 ESA/ 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Given that the primary source of GHG emissions attributed to the proposed projects
would be from construction over the next 20 years of buildout, it is anticipated that the
annual GHG emissions for an individual project would not exceed 10,000 MT/year of
COze. As such, the FMP projects would not generate, either directly or indirectly,
substantial GHG emissions. Because the FMP projects would not generate substantial
GHG emissions, the program would have no considerable contribution to cumulative
effects to GHG emissions.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon greenhouse gas emissions would be less than
significant.

c. Impact: The proposed program would result in less than cumulatively considerable
effects on a greenhouse gas plan because the program would not conflict with an
applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of
greenhouse gases.

Facts in Support of Finding: Implementation of cumulative development could result in
the generation of GHG emissions. Cumulative development could exceed the GHG
thresholds and could conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the
purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases. Because the proposed facilities
associated with the project categories would be consistent with all relevant GHG
reduction plans and policies, the project’s contribution to cumulative GHG reduction
plans and policies impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable. Therefore, the
project’s cumulative impacts would be less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon greenhouse gas emissions plans, policies, or
regulations would be less than significant.

3.1.2.3 Cultural Resources

a. Impact: The proposed program could have cumulatively considerable effects on human
remains because the program could disturb human remains.

Facts in Support of Finding: The IEUA service area is largely urbanized with
residential, commercial, and industrial development. As the service area continues to
develop, it is possible, but unlikely, that construction activities could impact unknown
human remains. However, since the treatment of human resources is governed by Public
Resources Code Section 5097.98 and Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, the
cumulative potential to impact human remains would be less than significant. Therefore,
the implementation of the project would result in less than cumulatively considerable
impacts to human remains.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 40 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental F]ri&hgs and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon human remains would be less than significant.

3.1.2.4 Geology, Soils, and Mineral Resources

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable effects
from soil erosion or the loss of topsoil.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development has the potential to
experience substantial soil runoff and wind erosion impacts within the IEUA service area;
however, each project would be required to comply with the CGP and/or the MS4 Permit.
Therefore, cumulative development would not result in a significant loss of topsoil or soil
erosion.

Because the proposed FMP projects would not result in substantial soil erosion or the loss
of topsoil, the project’s contribution to cumulative impacts associated with soil erosion or
topsoil loss would be less than cumulatively considerable. Therefore, the project would
result in a less than cumulatively considerable impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon soil erosion or topsoil loss would be less than
significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have no contribution to cumulative impacts on
soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water
disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water because
the program does not include the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal
systems.

Facts in Support of Finding: Although most future cumulative development is
anticipated to use traditional wastewater disposal systems (i.e., sewer pipelines), there
may be some future cumulative development that includes septic tanks or alternative
waste water disposal systems. The future development that may use septic systems may
experience significant impacts associated with soils that are not capable of supporting the
use of septic tanks. The proposed FMP projects would not result in impacts associated
with soils incapable of supporting the use of septic tanks.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon wastewater disposal systems would not be
significant.

IEUA Faciliies Master Plans PEIR 41 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable impacts
on mineral resources because the program would not result in the loss of availability of a
known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and residents of the state.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could be located in areas
known to contain regionally significant mineral resources that would be of value to the
region and the residents of the state. Therefore, cumulative development could result in
significant mineral impacts. The proposed FMP projects would not result in impacts to
regionally significant minerals.

Because the proposed FMP projects would result in less than significant impacts to
regionally-significant mineral resources, the project’s contribution to cumulative impacts
would be less than cumulatively considerable. Therefore, the proposed projects’
cumulative impact on mineral resources is less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon mineral resources would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable impacts
to locally important mineral resources and would not interfere with locally important
mineral resources recovery sites delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other
land use plan.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could be located in areas
known to contain locally important mineral resources. Therefore, cumulative development
could result in significant mineral impacts. Because the proposed FMP projects would
result in less than significant impacts to locally important mineral resources, the project’s
contribution to cumulative impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable.
Therefore, the proposed projects’ cumulative impact on locally important mineral
resources is less than significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon mineral resources recovery site would be less
than significant.

3.1.2.5 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable hazards
to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of
hazardous materials.

Facts in Support of Finding: The IEUA service area is largely urbanized with
residential, commercial, and industrial uses. As the service area continues to develop, the
addition of more development could create a significant hazard to the public or the

IEVA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 42 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials. All
cumulative development would be subject to federal, State, and local regulations related
to the routine transportation, use, storage, and disposal of hazardous materials.

Since the proposed FMP projects would result in less than significant impacts related to
the routine handling, use or disposal of hazardous materials, the projects’ contributions to
such impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable and therefore, would result in
a less than significant cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon routine use of hazardous materials would be less
than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable hazards
to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident
conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment.

Facts in Support of Finding: The IEUA service area is largely urbanized with
residential, commercial, and industrial development. As the service area continues to
develop, the addition of more development could create hazards to the public or the
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the
release of hazardous materials into the environment. All cumulative development would
be subject to federal, State, and local regulations related to the routine transportation, use,
storage, and disposal of hazardous materials.

Since the proposed FMP projects would result in less than significant impacts related to
accident conditions, the projects’ contributions to such impacts would be less than
cumulatively considerable and therefore, would result in a less than significant
cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon accidental release of hazardous materials would
be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable impacts
from emitting hazardous emissions or handling hazardous or acutely hazardous materials,
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school.

Facts in Support of Finding: The IEUA service area is largely urbanized with
residential, commercial, and industrial development. As the service area continues to
develop, emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous materials, substances, or waste
within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school. All cumulative development

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 43 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

would be subject to federal, State, and local regulations related to the routine
transportation, use, storage, and disposal of hazardous materials.

Since the proposed FMP projects would not result in potentially significant impacts
related to releasing hazardous emissions or materials within one quarter-mile of a school
the projects” contributions to such impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable
and therefore, would result in a less than significant cumulative impact.

3

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon schools from release of hazardous materials
would be less than significant.

3.1.2.6 Hydrology and Water Quality

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less the cumulatively considerable water
quality impacts when compared to water quality standards or waste discharge
requirements.

Facts in Support of Finding: Concurrent construction of development within the IEUA
service area could result in temporary impacts to surface hydrology and water quality. All
other related projects would be subject to the same federal, State, and local regulations
regarding implementation of BMPs under the CGP, SWPPP, and San Bernardino County
MS4 Permits. Therefore, cumulative development would not result in a violation of water
quality standards, waste discharge requirements, or otherwise substantially degrade water
quality.

Because the proposed FMP projects would not result in significant impacts, the project’s
contribution to cumulative impacts associated with violation of water quality standards,
waste discharge requirements, or degradation of water quality would be less than
cumulatively considerable. Therefore, the project would result in a less than cumulatively
significant impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon water quality standards and waste discharge
requirements would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would not contribute to cumulative flooding impacts on
housing because the program would not place housing within a 100-year flood hazard
area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or
other authoritative flood hazard delineation map.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could place housing
within a 100-year flood hazard area. Because the proposed FMP projects do not propose
housing, the project’s contribution to cumulative impacts associated with placing housing

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 44 ESA / 150283.07

Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

within a 100-year flood hazard zone would not be cumulatively considerable. Therefore,
the project would result in no cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon placing housing within flood hazard areas would
not be significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable exposure
of people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding,
including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could expose people or
structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, including
flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam. Because the proposed FMP projects
would not involve physical interference with or disturbance to Prado Dam and would not
put employees or structures at significant risk, the project’s contribution to cumulative
impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable. Therefore, the project would result
in a less than cumulative significant impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon levee or dam failure would be less than
significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have no contribution to cumulative impacts from
the exposure of people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving
inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could expose people or
structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving inundation by seiche,
tsunami, or mudflow. Because the proposed FMP projects would not expose people or
structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving inundation by seiche,
tsunami, or mudflow do not propose housing, the project’s contribution to cumulative
impacts would not be cumulatively considerable. Therefore, the project would result in
no cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the [EUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon seiches, tsunamis, or mudflows would not be
significant.

3.1.2.7 Land Use and Planning

Impact: The proposed program would not contribute to cumulative community impacts
from physically dividing an established community.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 45 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could result in the
division of established communities within the IEUA service area. The future cumulative
division of communities could represent a significant cumulative impact. Because the
proposed FMP improvements would not include features with the potential to divide a
community, the FMP projects would not contribute to potential cumulative impacts on
physical community division, and therefore, there would be no cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon features that may divide an established
community would not be significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable
environmental impacts associated with an applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation
of an agency with jurisdiction over the project.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development within the IEUA service
area could conflict with applicable land use plans, policies, or regulations of an agency
with jurisdiction over the project (including, but not limited to the general plan, specific
plan, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an
environmental effect. Therefore, cumulative development within the IEUA service area
could result in significant cumulative environmental effects due to land use
incompatibilities and conflicts with land use plans, policies or regulations.

Finding: Because the potential land use impacts associated with the implementation of
the FMP projects would be less than significant, the project’s contribution to cumulative
land use impacts would be less than cumulatively considerable and thus a less than
significant cumulative land use impact would occur.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon a land use plan, policy or regulation would be
less than significant.

3.1.2.8 Noise

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less the cumulatively considerable noise
level impacts on people residing or working within two miles of a public airport, public
use airport, or private airstrip.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could expose people
residing or working within two miles of a public airport, public use airport, or private
airstrip to excessive noise levels within the IEUA service area. Because the proposed
FMP improvements would not expose people to excessive noise levels regarding airport
noise, the project’s contribution to cumulative impacts on exposure of people to airport

IEUA Fagilities Master Plans PEIR 46 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

related noise would not be cumulatively considerable, and thus would result in no
significant cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon people residing or working within proximity of
public airports would not be significant.

3.1.2.9 Population and Housing

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable
population growth inducement impacts.

Facts in Support of Finding: The IEUA FMP would contribute to the cumulative
construction of public services and utilities by local jurisdictions within the IEUA service
arca and by other agencies within the greater Inland Empire region. The region is
anticipating significant population growth. However, since IEUA has no control over
land use designations or growth within its service area, the implementation of the FMP
would not directly or indirectly induce population growth. The proposed FMP’s
contribution to population growth inducement would be less than cumulatively
considerable, and thus a less than significant cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon population would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable impacts
to housing and would not displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating
the construction of replacement housing elsewhere.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could result in
displacement of housing necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere.
The future cumulative displacement of housing could represent a significant impact.
Because the proposed FMP improvements would not displace a substantial amount of
existing housing nor would the FMP replace housing elsewhere, project’s contribution to
cumulative impacts on housing displacement would be less than cumulatively
considerable, and thus less than significant cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon housing would be less than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have no contribution to cumulative impacts from
the displacement of substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of
replacement housing elsewhere.

IEUA Faciliies Master Plans PEIR 47 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could result in
displacement of housing and people necessitating the construction of replacement housing
elsewhere. Because the proposed FMP projects would not displace existing housing or
people, nor would the FMP replace housing elsewhere, the project would not contribute
to cumulative impacts on displacement of people, and thus the project would have no
cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon the displacement of people or housing would not
be significant.

3.1.2.10 Public Services

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have no contribution to cumulative physical
impacts associated with the provision of, or the need for, new or physically altered police
or fire protection facilities, the construction of which could cause environmental impacts
in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance
objectives for fire and police services.

2

Facts in Support of Finding: The cumulative analysis for impacts to public services
involves the projected growth of the IEUA service area. It is projected that the Inland
Empire will experience substantial growth within the next 25 years, resulting on
development of commercial, industrial, and residential land uses. As cumulative
development occurs, the IEUA service area may experience substantial increases in the
demand for fire and police protection services, including personnel, equipment, and/or
facilities. Substantial increases in the demand for these services could result in the need
for new police and fire facilities. Depending on the location of the new police and fire
facilities, there could be significant impacts from the construction and operation of new
facilities. Because the locations of new facilities are unknown, the impacts are
speculative. However, for this analysis, it is assumed that cumulative development could
result in significant environmental impacts from the construction and operation of new
police or fire facilities. Because the proposed project would result in a nominal increase
in demand for police and fire services, the project would contribute a less than
cumulatively considerable need for new police and fire services.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon police and fire services would not be significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have no contribution to cumulative physical
impacts associated with the provision of, or the need for, new school facilities, the
construction of which could cause environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable
performance objectives for the school district.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 48 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of Finding: The cumulative analysis for impacts to school services
involves the projected growth within the school districts of the IEUA service area. The
[EUA service area is expected to experience substantial growth within the next 25 years,
resulting in development of commercial, industrial, and residential land uses. As
cumulative development occurs, the school districts may experience substantial increases
in the demand for additional school capacity. Substantial increases in the demand for
schools could result in the need for new school facilities. Depending on the location of
the new school facilities, there could be significant impacts from the construction and
operation of new facilities. The proposed FMP projects would only result in nominal
increases in school services (based on a future 35 new employees and homes); therefore,
the programs contribution to cumulative impacts would be less than significant.

Because the proposed project would result in a nominal increase in school services, the
project’s contribution to cumulative environmental effects associated with the
construction of new schools would be less than cumulatively considerable and thus less
than cumulatively significant.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon school services would be less than significant.

3.1.2.11 Recreation

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable park
impacts from the increased use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other
recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would
occur or be accelerated.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could substantially
increase the development of residential units and therefore substantially increase
population within the IEUA. This increase in population could result in significant
impacts on parks and recreational facilities due to increased use of neighborhood parks,
regional parks, and other recreational facilities. Because the proposed FMP projects
would not result in a direct increase in population, an increased use of parks or other
recreational facilities would not occur. As described above, the project could result in an
indirect increase in population due to the generation of approximately 35 employment
opportunities; however, this increase in employees who could demand housing within the
IEUA service area would result in nominal impacts on existing parks and recreational
facilities. Therefore, the proposed project’s contribution to cumulative impacts on parks
and recreational facilities would be less than cumulatively considerable, and thus less
than significant cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon recreational facilities would be less than
significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 49 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

3.1.2.12 Utilities

a.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable effects
regarding wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality
Control Board.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development could exceed wastewater
treatment requirements of the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board and
result in potential significant cumulative impacts. The proposed FMP projects would
result in less than significant impacts associated with exceedance of wastewater treatment
requirements. Since the project would result in less than significant impacts related to
exceedance of wastewater treatment requirements, the project’s contribution to
cumulative impacts is not considered cumulatively considerable, and therefore, would
result in a less than significant cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon wastewater treatment requirements would be
less than significant

Impact: The proposed program would have no contribution to cumulative physical
impacts associated with the need for construction of new water or wastewater treatment
facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause
environmental effects, in order to maintain acceptable service.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development is forecast to require or
result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of
existing facilities. The cumulative need for additional and expanded wastewater or water
treatment facilities could result in significant environmental effects during the
construction of these facilities. However, the proposed FMP projects would not require
new or expanded wastewater or water treatment facility capacity. Because the proposed
FMP projects would not require new or expanded wastewater or water treatment facility
capacity to serve the FMP projects, the project would not result in the need for
construction of wastewater or water treatment facilities. Therefore, the FMP projects
would not contribute to cumulative environmental effects and thus would result in no
cumulative impacts.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon water or wastewater treatment facilities would
not be significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable effects
from new or expanded water supply resources or entitlements.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 50 ‘ ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development within the IEUA service
area is expected to require new or expanded water supply resources or entitlements to
serve the increase in urban development. IEUA’s IRP identifies management actions
required to achieve adequate water supply through 2040. The plan developed
implementation strategies that would improve near-term and long-term groundwater
management for the region. In addition, the IRP evaluates new growth, development, and
water demand patterns within the IEUA service area. Management actions to ensure
adequate water supplies were evaluated based on various demand factors such as land
development and community density.

The IRP includes management actions such as Low Impact Development (LID) and best
management practices (BMPs). IEUA will be supporting LID systems as cumulative
development within the IEUA service area occurs. The County of San Bernardino
Stormwater Program defines LID BMPs as any stormwater control that uses on-site
natural treatment processes to reduce or remove pollutants in runoff (SWRCB, 2011).
LID would result in development that utilizes water conservations measures by reducing
urban runoff and ultimately increasing the amount of stormwater that is captured and
stored in the Chino Basin groundwater table. Practices and management actions such as
these would assist in reducing demands of the IEUA’s service area water supplies.

The proposed FMP projects would accommodate increasing water demand and would not
contribute to the need for new or expanded water supply resources or entitlements.
Because the project would result in a less than significant impact related to expanded
water supply resources, the project’s contribution to cumulative impacts is not considered
cumulatively considerable, and therefore, would result in a less than significant
cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon water supply would be less than significant.

d. Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable effects
on wastewater treatment capacity.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development within the IEUA service
area would increase the generation of wastewater. This cumulative increase could result
in inadequate capacity of the wastewater treatment plant(s) to serve the additional
demand. However, the [IEUA WFMP Update addresses long term projection of growth
and capacity needs within the IEUA service area and models capacity utilization of the
four Regional Water Recycling Plants (RWRPs). The projects proposed within the
WFMP would ensure that IEUA would have adequate capacity to treat wastewater for the
region. The program’s contribution to cumulative impacts regarding wastewater
treatment capacity is less than cumulatively considerable, and therefore, would be a less
than significant cumulative impact.

|EVA Faciliies Master Plans PEIR 51 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon wastewater treatment capacity would be less
than significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable effects
on solid waste disposal facilities.

Facts in Support of Finding: Future cumulative development within the IEUA would
cumulatively contribute to the generation of solid waste and disposal of solid waste at the
El Sobrante and Mid-Valley Landfill landfills. Based on growth projections, these two
landfills have approximately 15 to 30 more years of capacity. Future cumulative
development could eventually exceed the capacities of these landfills. Therefore,
cumulative development could result in significant impacts on landfills. The proposed
FMP project would not substantially increase the generation of solid waste.

Because the proposed FMP project would not substantially increase the generation of
solid waste, the project’s contribution to cumulative effects on landfills would be less
than cumulatively considerable, and therefore, would result in a less than significant
cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon solid waste disposal facilities would be less than
significant.

Impact: The proposed program would have less than cumulatively considerable effects
associated with solid waste federal, state, and local statutes and regulations.

Facts in Support of Finding: Potential cumulative impacts related to solid waste
facilities and solid waste disposal would occur if projects within the IEUA service area
would be served by a facility without sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate solid
waste disposal needs, or if cumulative projects do not comply with federal, state, and
local statutes and regulations related to solid waste. Specifically, projects producing solid
waste during project implementation, including cleanup, residential and commercial
projects, could produce a waste stream that could together not be accommodated by
current solid waste facilities within regional solid waste disposal areas, resulting in a
cumulatively considerable impact to solid waste facilities.

The proposed FMP projects would comply with all federal, State, and local statues and
regulations related to solid waste and would not result in potential significant impacts.
When added to cumulative projects, the effects of the proposed FMP projects would
contribute incrementally to the cumulative impacts on solid waste facilities.

Cumulative projects would generally be served by the local municipal solid waste
disposal facilities and hazardous waste disposal facilities, resulting in potential

{EUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 52 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

cumulative impacts to solid waste facilities. However, new cumulative development
projects would participate in local programs designed to divert 50 percent of waste from
landfills. In addition, all cumulative projects implemented in the area would also be
required to comply with federal, State, and local solid waste regulations and statutes.
When considered in addition to the anticipated impacts of other cumulative projects, the
proposed project’s incremental contribution to solid waste facility capacity impacts
would not be cumulatively considerable, and therefore, would result in a less than
significant cumulative impact.

Finding: Based upon the analysis presented in the PEIR and considering the information
contained in the Record of Proceedings, the IEUA hereby finds that the program’s
contribution to cumulative impacts upon solid waste regulations would be less than
significant.

3.2 Findings Regarding Environmental Impacts which Can Be
Mitigated to Less than Significant
Environmental impacts identified in the PEIR as potentially significant but which the IEUA finds

can be mitigated to less than significant through the imposition of feasible mitigation measures
identified in the PEIR and set forth herein, are described in this section.

3.2.1. Project Impacts

3.2.1.1 Aesthetics

a.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on
a scenic vista.

Facts in Support of the Finding: Although several of the proposed ancillary facilities
would individually have small footprints and be low profile, some recycled water storage
reservoirs would be high profile. Depending on the location of the recycled water storage
reservoirs, they could affect views or designated scenic vistas. The conveyance systems
and ancillary facilities project components would result in potentially significant impacts
to scenic vistas. The implementation of Mitigation Measure AES-1 (below) would ensure
that the proposed facilities meet local design and landscape standards to be visually
compatible with surrounding uses and reduce the potential for obstructing views of scenic
vistas to less than significant.

AES-1: Proposed facilities shall be designed in accordance with local design
standards and integrated with local surroundings. Landscaping shall be
installed in conformance with local landscaping design guidelines as
appropriate to screen views of new facilities and to integrate facilities
with surrounding areas.

IEVA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 53 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

C.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could result in significant
impacts related to damage of scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway.

Facts in Support of Finding: There are roadways classified as eligible for state scenic
highway status within the IEUA service area; however, there are no officially designated
scenic highways. Eligible state scenic highways include: State Route (SR) 142 south of
SR 71 and SR 71 south of SR 83. In addition, there are 19 locally designated scenic
roadways within the IEAU service area.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure AES-1 (above) would ensure that the
proposed facilities meet local design and landscape standards to be visually compatible
with surrounding uses and reduce the potential for impact to scenic highways, routes, and
corridors to less than significant.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could result in significant
degradation of the existing visual character or quality of the sites and their surroundings.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed conveyance pipelines would be buried
underground; thus, no long-term impacts to the existing visual character or quality of the
project sites or surrounding area would occur. The locations of associated ancillary
facilities are unknown. Some of the aboveground ancillary facilities may be constructed
in urban areas. Any aboveground structures within these urban areas would be
constructed on or adjacent to existing developed and built-up landscapes. Therefore, there
would be no impact to the visual character within these urban areas. Some aboveground
facilities may be constructed in locally-designated corridors with specific visual
characteristics. The proposed aboveground ancillary facilities may contrast with the
visual character of these areas.

It is possible that construction of aboveground ancillary facilities, groundwater recharge
basins, and extraction facilities could result in physical impacts to the visual character of
the project site and its surroundings. These potential visual character impacts could be
significant.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure AES-1(above) would ensure that the
proposed facilities meet local design and landscape standards to be visually compatible
with surrounding uses and reduce the potential for physical impacts to the visual
character of the site and surrounding area to less than significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 54 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

d. Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could create new sources of
substantial light or glare which could result in significant adverse effects on day or
nighttime views in the IEUA service area. A significant impact would occur if the
proposed project caused a substantial increase in ambient light levels near light-sensitive
land uses such as residential and natural/open space areas.

Facts in Support of Finding: If nighttime construction is required, nighttime lighting at
construction sites would contribute to ambient light. This source of nighttime lighting
would result in a potentially significant impact. However, nighttime security lighting
used during the construction phase of the proposed projects may introduce new sources
of light and glare to the existing views of the area. This impact is potentially significant.

The treatment facility upgrades would be located within existing treatment facilities that
contain lighting. The facilities are also located within an urban area developed with
residential and commercial uses. Implementation of the proposed improvements could
result in new exterior nighttime lighting for operational and security purposes within the
existing treatment facilities. The increase in lighting within existing treatment facilities
could result in spill over lighting onto residential and commercial uses. Therefore,
increase lighting within the treatment facilities could represent a potential significant
lighting impact.

The ancillary facilities may include nighttime security lighting mounted to the buildings
and/or structures. These new sources of lighting could result in significant light intrusion
impacts onto adjacent land uses. Further, water storage reservoirs could be a source of
glare due to highly reflective materials. Therefore, potentially significant impacts related
to glare would occur.

The implementation of Mitigation Measures AES-2 and AES-3 (below) will limit the
maximum light beyond the property boundary and comply with existing and future
lighting ordinances so that lighting impacts on adjacent uses would be less than
significant. The implementation of Mitigation Measure AES-4 (below) will ensure that
proposed structures with large facades will not include highly reflective building
materials so that glare impacts could be reduced to less than significant.

AES-2: All new permanent exterior lighting associated with proposed project
components shall be shielded and directed downward to avoid any light
intrusion to surrounding uses. The maximum light allowed beyond the
property boundary adjacent to sensitive light receptors shall be limited to
1.5 candles.

AES-3: Development of the proposed project and associated facilities shall
comply with existing and future lighting ordinances.

IEUA Faciliies Master Plans PEIR 55 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental andings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

AES-4: Structures with large facades shall not include highly reflective building
materials.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

3.2.1.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources

a.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant impacts
from the conversion of Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide
Importance (Farmland) as shown on maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping
and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency to non-agricultural use.

Facts in Support of Finding: The IEUA service area historically contains significant
agricultural resources; primarily dairy ranches located in the southwestern portion of the
County of San Bernardino. There are several parcels of land designated by the California
Department of Conservation as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of
Statewide Importance within the IEUA service area. Most of this farmland is located
within the City of Chino, the City of Ontario, and Prado Regional Park area, which is
located in the southwestern portion of the program area.

Pipelines would be constructed and operated within public rights-of-way, which are not
located on land designated as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of
Statewide Importance. Farmland with these designations could be located adjacent to
conveyance systems. Construction and operation of pipelines would not convert any
designated farmland to non-agricultural uses; however ancillary facilities such as pump
stations could be constructed on land designated as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or
Farmland of Statewide Importance. Construction and operation of ancillary facilities
could convert Prime, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance to non-
agricultural use. Therefore, impacts would be potentially significant.

Proposed upgrades to existing groundwater recharge such as deepening of recharge
basins would not alter existing footprints and would not convert any farmland to non-
agricultural use. Some proposed projects include the construction of new recharge basins
or storage tanks, which could operate on important agricultural land. The majority of the
proposed recharge basins would be located north of SR-60 which includes a nominal
amount of farmland and the implementation of the proposed recharge facilities is not
expected to be located on farmland. However, IEUA is assuming that the implementation
of recharge basins could significantly impact farmland. Additionally, groundwater
production, extraction, and monitoring wells include well-housings that may be
constructed and operated on land designated as Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or
Farmland of Statewide Importance. Similar to conveyance system ancillary facilities,
above-ground facilities (including reservoirs) associated with groundwater recharge could
convert farmland to non-agricultural use. Therefore, impacts would be potentially
significant.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 56 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

The implementation of Mitigation Measure AG-1 (below) includes the need to conduct a
LESA Model if a facility is proposed on designated farmland. If there is a determination
that the loss of farmland is significant based on the LESA Model, IEUA would offset the
loss by acquiring agricultural land conservation credits at a minimum ratio of 1:1 so that
potential impacts to farmland would be reduced to less than significant.

AG-1: Where an ancillary facility is proposed on land designated as Prime
Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance, the
improvement shall be relocated to urban land or non-important
Farmland. Alternatively, if important farmland must be utilized for an
ancillary facility, then IEUA shall conduct a California Land Evaluation
and Assessment (LESA) Model. If the evaluation determines the loss of
designated Farmland is significant, then it shall be offset by acquisition
of agricultural land conservation credits at a minimum ratio of 1:1.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

b. Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could conflict with existing
zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act Contract.

Facts in Support of Finding: Pipelines would be constructed and operated within public
rights-of-way, which are not located on land zoned for agriculture or on land under a
Williamson Act Contract; however ancillary facilities such as storage tanks and pump
stations, and recharge basins and wells could be constructed on land zoned as agriculture,
and therefore, impacts could be potentially significant.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure AG-1 (above) includes the need to conduct a
LESA Model if a facility is proposed on designated farmland. If there is a determination
that the loss of farmland is significant based on the LESA Model, IEUA would offset the
loss by acquiring agricultural land conservation credits at a minimum ratio of 1:1 so that
potential impacts to land zoned for agriculture would be reduced to less than significant.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

c. Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could result in significant
effects from conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land
to non-forest use.

Facts in Support of Finding: Construction and operation of pipelines would not convert
any existing farmland to a non-agricultural use; however ancillary facilities such as pump
stations could be constructed on existing agricultural land. Construction and operation of

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 57 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

ancillary facilities could convert existing agricultural land to non-agricultural uses.
Therefore, impacts would be potentially significant.

Proposed upgrades to existing groundwater recharge such as deepening of recharge
basins would not alter existing footprints and would not convert any existing farmlands to
non-agricultural use. Some proposed projects include the construction of new recharge
basins or storage tanks, which could operate on existing agricultural land. Additionally,
groundwater production, extraction, and monitoring wells include well-housings that may
be constructed and operated on existing agricultural land. Similar to conveyance system
ancillary facilities, above-ground facilities associated with groundwater recharge could
convert existing farmland to non-agricultural uses. Therefore, impacts would be
potentially significant.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure AG-1 (above) includes the need to conduct a
LESA Model if a facility is proposed on farmland. If there is a determination that the loss
of farmland is significant based on the LESA Model, IEUA would offset the loss by
acquiring agricultural land conservation credits at a minimum ratio of 1:1 so that
potential impacts from converting existing farmland to a non-agricultural use would be
reduced to less than significant.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

3.2.1.3 Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

a.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could result in significant
effects from the creation of objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people.

Facts in Support of the Finding: Operation of the proposed project components in
Project Category 1 would include improvements to liquid and solid treatment systems,
sludge systems, headworks, dewatering treatment, and dosing facilities. Wastewater
treatment facilities typically produce gases from decomposing organic matter in
wastewater which generate foul gas odors. The proposed treatment facility upgrades,
particularly at RP-1, would be located within residential communities that could be
significantly impacted by fugitive odors from the proposed facilities. Therefore,
objectionable odor impacts affecting a substantial number of people would be potentially
significant.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure AIR-4 (below) would reduce odor impacts
associated with the proposed treatment facilities by preparing and implementing an Odor
Minimization Plan that includes a complaint response protocol and implementation of
changes to minimize odors, if needed.

AIR-4: Prior to the construction upgrades at each treatment facility, [EUA would
be required to prepare an Odor Impact Minimization Plan (OIMP),

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 58 ESA/ 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 17863 .4.
The OIMP provides operational protocols covering the implementation
of the odor control system including during varied meteorological
conditions. The OIMP would include complaint response protocol,
operating procedures, and an odor monitoring program. A complaint
response protocol would be implemented to receive complaints,
investigate the source, and implement changes to minimize the odors.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

3.2.1.4 Biological Resources

a.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on
species because the program could have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or
through habitat modifications, on species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special-
status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the CDFW or
USFWS.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The proposed facility upgrades would occur within the
boundaries of the existing facilities that are mostly devoid of natural habitat. However,
the treatment plant upgrades could be located in or adjacent to areas where habitat has
emerged that could support special status plant or wildlife species. Therefore, the
proposed upgrades within this category could have a significant impact on plant or
wildlife species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special-status species.

Direct project impacts to species listed as a candidate, sensitive, or special-status species
by local, state, and federal agencies should be avoided to the greatest extent feasible;
however, it is acknowledged that future projects may not be able to avoid these species.
Project-related impacts that result in the direct take of a special-status species may be
considered a significant impact. The presence/absence of a special-status species on a
project site and the potential to impact a special-status species must be determined prior
to project construction. If projects within the IEUA Service Area result in the direct take
or loss of suitable habitat for any of the 58 special-status plant species and 63 special-
status wildlife species that have the potential to occur in the IEUA Service Area, project-
level mitigation will be required. Project impacts to special-status species listed as
threatened or endangered by CDFW and/or USFWS may also require agency
consultation and/or take permits. The implementation of improvements within Project
Category 2 could result in significant impacts to plant and wildlife species identified as a
candidate, sensitive, or special-status species.

The proposed recharge basins and ancillary facilities adjacent to pipelines could be
located in areas that are currently undeveloped and contain habitat that support candidate,
sensitive, or special-status plant and animal species. Potential sensitive species impacts
associated with improvements in this project category could be significant.

IEVUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 59 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Implementation

of Mitigation Measures BIO-1 through BIO-4 would reduce potential

impacts to sensitive plant and wildlife species to less than significant through avoidance,
minimization, and compensation.

The following mitigation measures are required to reduce potential impacts to sensitive
plant and/or wildlife species:

BIO-1:

BIO-2:

BIO-3a:

Construction of the proposed improvements should avoid, where
possible, special status natural communities and other vegetation
communities that provide suitable habitat for a special-status species
known to occur within the IEUA Service Area. If construction within
potentially suitable habitat must occur, a presence/absence survey of any
special-status plant or wildlife species must be determined prior to
construction, to determine if the habitat supports any special-status
species. If special-status species, including listed species, are
determined to occupy any portion of a project site, avoidance and
minimization measures such as temporary fencing, inspection of trenches
and holes for entrapped wildlife each morning prior to the onset of
project construction, inspection of pipes, culverts, and similar
construction material for entrapped wildlife, and the prohibition of
chemical uses shall be incorporated into the construction phase of the
proposed improvement to avoid direct or incidental take of a listed
species to the greatest extent feasible.

If direct or incidental take of a listed species is unavoidable, consultation
with the resources agencies and/or additional permitting may be required.
Agency consultation through the CDFW 2081 and USFWS Section 7 or
Section 10 permitting processes must take place prior to any action that
may result in the direct or incidental take of a listed species. Specific
mitigation measures for direct or incidental impacts to a listed species
will be determined on a case-by-case basis through agency consultation
but shall include the following or comparable mitigation: restoration of
habitat to comparable value as existed prior to disturbance; compensation
for take or habitat loss through conserving suitable habitat in perpetuity
off site; or participating in a habitat mitigation bank approved by the
resource agency(ies). At a minimum IEUA will provide compensation at
a 1:1 ratio for direct or indirect loss of habitat that supports listed species,
except when regulatory agencies assign a higher compensation ratio on a
case-by-case basis.

Prior to the start of construction of facilities, focused burrowing owl
surveys shall be conducted to determine the presence/absence of
burrowing owl adjacent to the project area. The focused burrowing owl
survey must be conducted by a qualified biologist and following the
survey guidelines included in the CDFW Staff Report on Burrowing Owl

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

60 ESA / 150283.07

Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



) IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Mitigation (2012). If burrowing owl is observed within undeveloped
habitat within or immediately adjacent to the project impact area,
avoidance/minimization measures would be required such as establishing
a suitable buffer around the nest (typically 500-feet) and monitoring
during construction, or delaying construction until after the nest is no
longer active and the burrowing owls have left. However, if burrowing
owl avoidance is infeasible, a qualified biologist shall implement a
passive relocation program in accordance with the Example Components
for Burrowing Owl Artificial Burrow and Exclusion Plans of the CDFW
2012 Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation.

BIO-3b: . Construction of proposed improvements within the IEUA Service Area
shall avoid special-status natural communities, unless deemed essential
by the Agency. If a proposed improvement must be instalied and result in
a loss of a special-status natural community that is not occupied by a
special-status species, compensatory habitat-based mitigation consisting
of onsite preservation of habitat, restoration of similar habitat, or
purchase of off-site credits from an approved mitigation bank shall be
implemented. At a minimum IEUA will provide compensation at a 0.5:1
ratio for loss of habitat, except when regulatory agencies assign a higher
compensation ratio on a case-by-case basis.

BIO-4: The proposed improvement projects within the IEUA Service Area shall
avoid, if possible, construction within the general nesting season of
February 1 through August 31 for avian species protected under Fish and
Game Code 3500 and the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA), if it is
determined that suitable nesting habitat occurs on a project site. If
construction cannot avoid the nesting season, a pre-construction
clearance survey must be conducted to determine if any nesting birds or
nesting activity is observed on or within 500-feet of a project site. If an
active nest is observed during the survey, a biological monitor must be
on site to ensure that no proposed project activities would impact the
active nest. A suitable buffer will be established around the active nest
until the nestlings have fledged and the nest is no longer active. Project
activities may continue in the vicinity of the nest only at the discretion of
the biological monitor.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

b. Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on
habitat because the program could have a substantial adverse effect on riparian habitat or
other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies,
regulations, or by the CDFG or USFWS.

IEVA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 61 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
" Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of Finding: The IEUA service area contains riparian habitat areas and
special-status natural communities. The riparian habitat within the IEUA service area
provides suitable habitat for a number of special-status plant and wildlife species known
to occur in the region. There are six special-status natural communities within the IEUA
service area including California Walnut Woodland, Riversidean Alluvial Fan Sage
Scrub, Southern California Arroyo Chub/Santa Ana Sucker Stream, Southern
Cottonwood Willow Riparian Forest, Southern Sycamore Alder Riparian Woodland, and
Southern Willow Scrub.

The proposed pipelines are anticipated to be located within existing roadway rights-of-
way and are not expected to substantially impact any existing natural communities.
However, ancillary facilities adjacent to pipelines such as reservoir tanks, pump stations,
lift stations and discharge locations at drainages could be located in areas that could
contain special-status natural communities. The presence of riparian habitat and/or a
special-status natural community on a site proposed for ancillary facilities must be
evaluated prior to project approval. Any project-related impacts to riparian habitat and/or
a special-status natural community are considered a significant impact.

The proposed recharge basins and ancillary facilities adjacent to pipelines could be
located in areas that are currently undeveloped and contain riparian habitat areas and
special-status natural communities. Potential impacts to riparian habitat areas and special-
status natural communities associated with improvements in this project category could
be significant.

Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1 and BIO-3 (above) and BIO-5 (below)
would reduce potential impacts to riparian habitat areas and special-status natural
communities to less than significant through avoidance, minimization, and compensation.

BIO-5: Any future project that must discharge fill into a channel or otherwise
alter a streambed shall be mitigated. Mitigation can be provided by
purchasing into any authorized mitigation bank; by selecting a site of
comparable acreage near the site and enhancing it with native riparian
habitat or invasive species removal in accordance with a habitat
mitigation plan approved by regulatory agencies; or by acquiring
sufficient compensating habitat to meet regulatory agency requirements.
For jurisdictional waters without any riparian or wetland habitat IEUA
will mitigate at a 1:1 ratio. For loss of any riparian or other wetland
areas, the mitigation ratio will begin at 2:1 and the ratio will rise based
on the type of habitat, habitat quality, and presence of sensitive or listed
plants or animals in the affected area. A revegetation plan using native
riparian vegetation common to the project area shall be prepared and
reviewed and approved by the appropriate regulatory agencies. The
Agency shall also obtain permits from the regulatory agencies (U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers, Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control
Board and CDFW) if any impacts to jurisdictional areas will

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 62 ESA/ 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017




- IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

occur. These agencies can impose greater mitigation requirements in
their permits, but the IEUA will utilize the ratios outlined above as the
minimum required to offset or compensate for impacts to jurisdictional
waters, riparian areas or other wetlands. Mitigation can be provided by
purchasing into any authorized mitigation bank; by selecting a site of
comparable acreage near the site and enhancing it with a native riparian
habitat or invasive species removal in accordance with a habitat
mitigation plan approved by regulatory agencies; or by acquiring
sufficient compensating habitat to meet regulatory agency requirements.
The regulatory agencies can impose greater mitigation requirements in
their permits, but the IEUA will utilize the ratios outlined above as the
minimum required to offset or compensate for impacts to jurisdictional
waters, riparian areas or other wetlands.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

c. Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on
wetlands because the program could have a substantial adverse effect on federally
protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not
limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological
interruption, or other means.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed pipelines are anticipated to be located within
existing roadway rights-of-way and are not expected to impact any wetlands. However,
ancillary facilities adjacent to pipelines such as reservoir tanks, pump stations, lift
stations and discharge locations at drainages could be located in areas that could contain
wetlands. The presence of wetlands on a site proposed for ancillary facilities must be
evaluated prior to project approval. Any project-related impacts to wetlands are
considered a significant impact.

Development of improvements within the IEUA service area, particularly in undeveloped
areas, could result in the loss of jurisdictional wetland habitat, which includes seasonal or
permanent wetlands that are considered waters of the U.S. or intermittent/permanent
water bodies. Proposed improvements that encroach into riparian areas may result in the
significant disturbance and/or fill of potentially jurisdictional wetlands. Any project-
related improvements that result in the significant alteration or fill of a federally protected
wetland are considered a significant impact. Additionally, special-status species
associated with wetlands may be impacted as a result of project impacts to protected
wetlands. Project-specific agency (i.e., CDFW, RWQCB, and/or USACE) coordination
and/or regulatory permitting would be required to reduce project impacts to wetland
habitat.

|EUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 63 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overricir;g; ‘Considerations

The proposed recharge basins and ancillary facilities adjacent to pipelines could be
located in areas that are currently undeveloped and contain wetland habitat areas.
Potential impacts to wetland habitat areas associated with improvements in this project
category could be significant.

Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-5 (above) and BIO-6 (below) would reduce
wetland impacts through compensation and implementation of construction and
operational best management practices to control stormwater pollutants from exiting a
proposed facility site.

BIO-6: Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be incorporated into the design
and construction phase of the project to ensure that no pollutants or silt
drain into a federal or state protected jurisdiction area, including
wetlands and riparian areas. Project design features (BMPs) to fulfill this
mitigation requirement shall be clearly identified as part of project
engineering plans prior to initiating construction.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

d. Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on
the movement of species because the program could interfere substantially with the
movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established
native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife
nursery sites.

Facts in Support of Finding: The proposed pipelines are anticipated to be located
underground and within existing roadway rights-of-way. Therefore, the proposed
pipelines would result in a less than significant impact on the movement of native
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or impede the use of migratory wildlife
corridors or native wildlife nursery sites.

Ancillary facilities adjacent to pipelines such as reservoir tanks, pump stations, lift
stations and discharge locations at drainages could be located in areas that provide for the
movement of resident or migratory fish, in areas of established wildlife corridors, or
wildlife nursery sites. These potential sites could include trees and vegetation that
provide suitable nesting habitat for birds covered under the MBTA. Therefore, the
implementation of these ancillary facilities could result in potential significant impacts to
nesting birds.

The proposed recharge basins and ancillary facilities adjacent to pipelines could be
located in areas that are currently undeveloped and could contain a wildlife corridor or
trees and vegetation that could provide suitable habitat for birds covered under the
MBTA. Improvements under this category could result in potential significant impacts to
wildlife corridors and nesting birds.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 64 ESA/ 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

The implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-4 (above) would reduce impacts on
wildlife nests and movement of fish and wildlife species to less than significant through
the avoidance of the nesting season for construction activities or provision of a
construction buffer from active nests. The implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-7
and BIO-8 (below) would avoid or minimize impacts to wildlife corridors to less than
significant.

BIO-7: Construction of a proposed project shall avoid, where possible, a wildlife
corridor; however, if the wildlife corridor cannot be avoided, such as a
discharge location within a drainage channel or creek, construction
activities shall use best management practices such as placing temporary
fencing to protect wildlife and plant species from construction activities,
inspecting trenches and holes for entrapped wildlife each morning prior
to the onset of project construction, inspecting pipes, culverts, or similar
construction material for entrapped wildlife, and prohibiting the use of
rodenticides, herbicides, insecticides or other chemicals that could
potentially harm migratory species.

BIO-8: Once construction is completed, restore the impacted wildlife corridor
area to its original vegetation and in accordance with any regulatory
permitting, if applicable.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

e. Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on
biological resources because the program could have conflict with local policies or
ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or
ordinance.

Facts in Support of Finding: The facilities upgrades are proposed for the existing
treatment facilities that are located in the cities of Chino, Ontario, and Rancho
Cucamonga. The City of Chino does not have an ordinance protecting biological
resources such as a tree preservation ordinance; however the cities of Ontario and Rancho
Cucamonga have tree preservation policies. Therefore, future implementation of
improvements within the existing treatment facilities located in the cities of Ontario and
Rancho Cucamonga could conflict with the local policies or ordinances protecting
biological resources. As a result, a potential significant impact on biological resources
could occur.

Implementation of pipelines and ancillary facilities within the cities of Upland, Ontario,
Fontana, Chino Hills, and Rancho Cucamonga and the County of San Bernardino could
conflict with the local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources. As a result,
a potential significant impact on biological resources could occur. The cities of Montclair
and Chino do not have local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 65 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Implementation of recharge and extraction facilities within the cities of Upland, Ontario,
Fontana, Chino Hills, and Rancho Cucamonga and the County of San Bernardino could
conflict with the local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources. As a result,
a potential significant impact on biological resources could occur. The cities of Montclair
and Chino do not have local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources.

Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-9 (below) would reduce impacts to
biological resources protected by local policies or ordinances through compliance with
the local regulations

BIO-9: Prior to construction activities to provide treatment facilities upgrades,
the IEUA shall comply with the local policies and ordinances to protect
biological resources.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on
a conservation plan because the program could have conflicts with the provisions of an
adopted habitat conservation plan, natural community conservation plan, or other
approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan.

Facts in Support of Finding: Pipelines and ancillary facilities may be located in areas
with existing habitat conservation plans (HCPs) such as the Oakmont Industrial Group
HCP in Ontario and the North Fontana Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan in
Fontana. Therefore, improvements within these HCP areas would conflict with the
provisions of the HCPs and would represent a potential significant impact.

Groundwater recharge and extraction facilities may be located in areas with existing
habitat conservation plans (HCPs) such as the Oakmont Industrial Group HCP in Ontario
and the North Fontana Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan in Fontana. Therefore,
improvements within these HCP areas would conflict with the provisions of the HCPs
and would represent a potential significant impact.

Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-10 (below) would reduce potential impacts
to existing habitat conservation plan (HCP) areas to less than significance through either
avoidance or-compliance with HCP permitted activities.

BIO-10: IEUA shall avoid constructing facilities within existing habitat
conservation plan areas such as the Oakmont Industrial Group HCP in
Ontario and the North Fontana Multiple Species Habitat Conservation
Plan in Fontana, unless avoidance is not feasible and the habitat
conservation plans allow the construction of the proposed facility. [IEUA
shall follow the mitigation procedures outlined in such HCPs to bring the
project in compliance with the HCP.

|EUA Faciliies Master Plans PEIR 66 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

3.2.1.5 Cultural Resources

a.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on
archaeological resources because the program could have result in substantial change in
the significance of an archeological resource.

Facts in Support of Finding: Given the number and type of archaeological resources in
the project area, as well as the presence of Cucamonga Creek, Chino Creek and other
natural water sources, and the area’s long period of historic use, the project area is
considered highly sensitive for the presence of archaeological resources. Previously
unknown and unrecorded archaeological resources may be unearthed during excavation
and grading activities for individual projects. This can occur in already developed areas,
as older buildings are known to have been built on top of or within archaeological
deposits. Although much of the project area is already heavily developed, potentially
significant buried archaeological resources could still exist within the project area,
beneath and between structures and roads. If previously undiscovered artifacts or remains
are uncovered during excavation or construction, significant impacts could occur.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-1(below) would ensure a study is
conducted to identify any potentially significant archaeological resources. The study
would outline measures to reduce or avoid impacts to potentially significant
archaeological resources. Therefore, with implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-1,
project implementation would result in a less-than-significant impact involving an
adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource.

CUL-1: Prior to development involving ground disturbance, IEUA shall retain a
qualified archaeologist, defined as an archaeologist meeting the
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for professional archaeology to
conduct a study of the project area(s) for all project components that
involve ground disturbance. The archaeologist shall conduct a cultural
resources inventory designed to identify potentially significant resources.
The cultural resources inventory would consist of: a cultural resources
records search to be conducted at the South Central Coastal Information
Center located at California State University Fullerton; consultation with
the NAHC and with interested Native Americans identified by the
NAHC,; a field survey where deemed appropriate by the archaeologist;
and recordation of all identified archaeological resources located on a
project site on California Department of Parks and Recreation 523 Site
Record forms. The archaeologist shall provide recommendations
regarding resource significance and additional work for those resources
that may be affected by a project.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 67 ESA /150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant effects on
paleontological resources because the program could directly or indirectly destroy a
unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature.

Facts in Support of Finding: The General Plans for the cities and unincorporated
portions within the IEUA service area indicate that some portions of the IEUA service
area are highly sensitive for paleontological resources. Since the proposed project is at
the programmatic level, specific project design elements have yet to be finalized. Impacts
to specific paleontological resources are speculative. Previously unknown and unrecorded
paleontological resources may be unearthed during excavation and grading activities for
individual projects. If previously unknown potentially unique paleontological resources
are uncovered during excavation or construction, significant impacts could occur.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-3 (below) would require a site-specific
study to identify potentially significant paleontological resources. Additional studies
would minimize potential impacts to paleontological resources.

CUL-3: For project-level development involving ground disturbance, a qualified
paleontologist shall be retained to determine the necessity of conducting
a study of the project area(s) based on the potential sensitivity of the
project site for paleontological resources. If deemed necessary, the
paleontologist shall conduct a paleontological resources inventory
designed to identify potentially significant resources. The paleontological
resources inventory would consist of: a paleontological resource records
search to be conducted at the San Bernardino County Museum and/or
other appropriate facilities; a field survey or monitoring where deemed
appropriate by the paleontologist; and recordation of all identified
paleontological resources.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

3.2.1.6 Geology, Soils, and Mineral Resources

a.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could potentially expose people
or structures to adverse geologic effects, including the risk of loss, injury or death
involving rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-
Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map or based on other substantial evidence of a known
fault; strong seismic ground shaking; or seismic-related ground failure, including
liquefaction or landslides.

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 68 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Facts in Support of the Finding:

Liquefaction

Based on a review of the General Plan EIRs for Ontario and Rancho Cucamonga, the
existing RP-1, RP-4, and IECREF is not located within a liquefaction zone. Therefore,
facility upgrades at RP-1 would not result in the exposure of structures to substantial
adverse effects involving liquefaction. No impact would occur. RP-2 would be
demolished and would not expose new structures to the risks associated with liquefaction.
No impact would occur. The remaining treatment facilities would be located within
potentially liquefiable soils. Therefore, adverse effects involving liquefaction could be
potentially significant.

The location of all conveyance systems and ancillary facilities is unknown. As described in
the Setting above, there are areas within the IEUA service area with high potential for
liquefaction. The pipelines and/or ancillary facilities located on or in soils with a moderate
to high potential for liquefaction could experience damage or failure as a result of
liquefaction. Therefore, adverse effects involving liquefaction would be potentially
significant.

Fault Rupture

Because not all proposed projects’ locations are determined at this time, there is the
potential for projects to be constructed and operated within an Alquist-Priolo Fault Zone.
Facilities operated within these zones could expose structures to potential substantial
adverse effects; therefore, impacts would be potentially significant.

Landslide

The location of proposed conveyance systems and ancillary facilities is unknown.
Landslides and mudflow hazards exist throughout the IEUA service area on steep
hillsides and in creek and streambed areas. Therefore, there is a potential for those
facilities to be constructed in areas susceptible to landslides. Impacts would be potentially
significant.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-1 (below) would require a design-level
geotechnical investigation to identify potential seismic hazards. The geotechnical
investigation would recommend site-specific design criteria based on the initial findings.
These recommendations would reduce risk from seismic hazards to less than significant.
The implementation of Mitigation measure GEO-2 (below) would relocate improvements
within a designated Alquist-Priolo Fault Zone. If relocation is not possible, then the
improvement would be designed in accordance with the CBC or project-specific
geotechnical investigation to reduce potential seismic impacts to less than significant.

To reduce the potential impacts from liquefaction and landslide hazards the following
mitigation measures are required:

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 69 ESA / 150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR
Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

GEO-1: Prior to construction of each improvement, a design-level geotechnical
investigation, including collection of site specific subsurface data if
appropriate, shall be completed. The geotechnical evaluation shall
identify all potential seismic hazards including fault rupture, and
characterize the soil profiles, including liquefaction potential, expansive
soil potential, subsidence, and landslide potential. The geotechnical
investigation shall recommend site-specific design criteria to mitigate for
seismic and non-seismic hazards, such as special foundations and
structural setbacks, and these recommendations shall be incorporated
into the design of individual proposed projects.

GEO-2: If an improvement is proposed within a designated Alquist-Priolo Fault
Zone, the improvement shall be relocated, if possible. If relocation is not
possible, the improvement shall be designed in accordance with the CBC
or a project specific geotechnical study.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

b. Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could have significant
instability effects because the program could be located on a geologic unit or soil that is
unstable or that would become unstable as a result of the proposed program and
potentially result in on-or off-site landslide, subsidence, or collapse.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The IEUA service area has experienced historic
subsidence caused by groundwater withdrawal. This subsidence can cause collapse of
structures. The subsidence primarily occurs in the City of Chino, where the treatment
facilities RP-2, RP-5, and the CCWREF are located. Subsidence from 0.8 to 5.8 feet is
possible throughout these project areas. Construction and operation of the proposed
facilities would not cause subsidence; rather, proposed facilities could be exposed to
subsidence and collapse risk due to the historic subsidence within the treatment facility
locations. Subsidence and collapse could damage the proposed facilities and affect the
safety of on-site employees. Impacts could be potentially significant.

The locations of some of the proposed conveyance systems and ancillary facilities are
unknown. As mentioned above, the IEUA service area has experienced historic
subsidence; therefore, proposed systems and facilities could be located in areas with a
potential for subsidence and collapse. Portions of the IEUA service area have designated
landslide potential; therefore, soils in the project areas could be unconsolidated and could
be prone to damage from landslides. Impacts could be potentially significant.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-1 (above) would require a design-level
geotechnical investigation to identify potential unstable soils. The geotechnical
investigation would recommend site-specific design criteria based on the initial findings.
Therefore, the proposed project would not expose people or structures to potential

IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 70 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

substantial adverse effects involving unstable geologic units or soils. Impacts would be
less than significant.

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

c. Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could be located on expansive
soils as defined in 24 CCR 1803.5.3 of the California Building Code (2013), or corrosive
soils creating substantial risks to life or property.

Facts in Support of the Finding: When expansive soils swell, the change in volume can
exert significant pressures on loads that are placed on them, such as loads resulting from
structure foundations or underground utilities, and can result in structural distress and/or
damage. Most of the Chino Basin is comprised of old alluvial fans and valley deposits,
which vary in consistency. As stated above, soils throughout the project area mainly
consist of sandy loams that show little change with moisture variation, and thus do not
typically exhibit expansive soil characteristics. Therefore, the project facilities would be
located in areas of low soil expansion potential. However, the specific soil properties of a
site can vary on a small scale, and may include undetermined areas that exhibit expansive
properties. The presence of expansive soils at the existing treatment facility sites could
decrease the structural stability of the proposed project facilities, which could result in
structural or operational failure of these facilities and or threaten the health and safety of
on-site workers. Such impacts are considered potentially significant.

Proposed pipelines would be installed belowground; soils with expansive characteristics
could exert pressure on the pipelines during times of saturation, potentially threatening
pipeline stability. Similar to Project Category 1 facilities, the foundation of the ancillary
facilities could also be damaged by expansive soils. Identified soil types within the IEUA
service area do not have expansive soil characteristics since they do not have a large
amount of clay; however, specific sites could have undetected expansive characteristics.
Therefore, impacts associated with expansive soils could be significant.

Proposed recharge basins and wells could saturate soils and create expansive soil
characteristics that did not exist previously. Additionally, ancillary facilities could also be
damaged by expansive soils. Specific sites could have undetected expansive
characteristics; therefore, impacts associated with expansive soils could be potentially
significant.

The implementation of Mitigation Measure GEO-1 (above) would require a design-level
geotechnical investigation to identify potential unstable soils. The geotechnical
investigation would recommend site-specific design criteria based on the initial findings.
Therefore, the proposed project would not expose people or structures to potential
substantial adverse effects involving unstable geologic units or soils. Impacts would be
less than significant.

|EUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR 71 ESA/150283.07
Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations February 2017



IEUA Facilities Master Plans PEIR

Environmental Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations

Finding: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(1), changes or alterations have
been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the
significant environmental effect as identified in the PEIR.

3.2.1.7 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

a.

Potentially Significant Impact: The proposed program could be located on a site which
is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code
Section 65962.5 and, as a result, could create significant hazard impacts to the public or
the environment.

Facts in Support of the Finding: The hazardous sites analysis